01/28/2016 - AP Sub HS (10:00 AM - 12:00 Noon)

2016 Regular Session

Customized 02/01/2016 7:20 PM
Agenda Order

Tab 1 |SB 1496 by Bradley; (Compare to CS/H 0221) Transparency in Health Care

616578 A S RCS AHS, Richter Delete L.133 - 135: 01/28 02:22 PM
378426 A S RCS AHS, Richter Delete L.364 - 366: 01/28 ©2:22 PM
575020 A S RCS AHS, Richter Delete L.367 - 388. 01/28 ©2:22 PM
234188 A S RS AHS, Richter Delete L.1073 - 1077. 01/28 02:22 PM
602790 SA S RCS AHS, Richter Delete L.1073 - 1077. 01/28 ©2:22 PM

Page 1 of 1




2016 Regular Session

COMMITTEE MEETING EXPANDED AGENDA
APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE ON HEALTH AND

The Florida Senate

HUMAN SERVICES
Senator Garcia, Chair
Senator Smith, Vice Chair

MEETING DATE: Thursday, January 28, 2016
TIME: 10:00 a.m.—12:00 noon

PLACE: James E. "Jim" King, Jr. Committee Room, 401 Senate Office Building

MEMBERS: Senator Garcia, Chair; Senator Smith, Vice Chair; Senators Abruzzo, Bean, Benacquisto, Grimsley,
Richter, and Sobel

TAB BILL NO. and INTRODUCER

BILL DESCRIPTION and
SENATE COMMITTEE ACTIONS

COMMITTEE ACTION

1 SB 1496
Bradley
(Compare CS/H 221, H 1175)

Transparency in Health Care; Requiring a facility
licensed under ch. 395, F.S., to provide timely and
accurate financial information and quality of service
measures to certain individuals; requiring a health
care practitioner to provide a patient upon his or her
request a written, good faith estimate of anticipated
charges within a certain timeframe; requiring a health
insurer to make available on its website certain
methods that a policyholder can use to make
estimates of certain costs and charges, etc.

HP 01/19/2016 Favorable
AHS 01/28/2016 Fav/CS
AP

Fav/CS
Yeas 6 Nays 2

2 Review and Discussion of Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budget Issues Relating to:

Agency for Health Care Administration

Agency for Persons with Disabilities
Department of Children and Families

Department of Elder Affairs
Department of Health
Department of Veterans' Affairs

Discussed

Other Related Meeting Documents

01282016.1134

S-036 (10/2008)
Page 1 of 1



The Florida Senate

Committee Agenda Request

To: Senator Rene Garcia, Chair
Appropriations Subcommittee on Health and Human Services

Subject: Committee Agenda Request

Date: January 22, 2016

I respectfully request that Senate Bill # 1496, relating to Transparency in Health Care, be placed
on the:

X committee agenda at your earliest possible convenience.

[] next committee agenda.

Senator Rob Bradley
Florida Senate, District 7

File signed original with committee office S-020 (03/2004)



THE FLORIDA SENATE

APPEARANCE RECORD
/ / X / (Deliver BOTH copies of this form to the Senator or Senate Professional Staff conducting the meeting) / W é
1

Meetirlg Date™ Bill Nyfnbef (if applicable)

Name / / a ////
Job Title & //Z”//// Ol

Address tmézé éﬁh /Q/ A %M Phone Z .gj “ﬁ f@’ﬂ
//4/ /7 jZ%/ Email- / /// 4 (ﬁ?ﬁ

Amendment Barcode (if applicable)

City ' State
Speaking: [ _|For [ |Against [ZHAformation Waive Speaking: [ |in Support [ ] Against
{The Chair will read this information into the record.)
Representing F/ D, (// %/ ?{ %’f g
Appearing at request of Chair: Yes No Lobbyist registered with Legislature: 1’—’@ No

While it is a Senate tradition to encourage public testimony, time may not permit all persons wishing to speak to be heard at this
meeting. Those who do speak may be asked to limit their remarks so that as many persons as possible can be heard.

This form is part of the public record for this meeting. S-001 (10/14/14)



THE FLORIDA SENATE

APPEARANCE RECORD

l ) ; 2 g ):2 OZ (Deliver BOTH copies of this form to the Senator or Senate Professional Staff conducting the meeting) / t ! q ‘

Meeting [fate Bifl Number (if applicabie)

Topic i!—éa// % /OI‘?L / V(/t /W M %k Amendment Barcode (if applicable)
Name /’OWI/\/C(. Mﬁé’/"l

Job Title /’ /IQM )/ng /// =
Address ’aM Phone 40 L[ § g (‘/ f @ 72

f:[;LC/ZSML// |14, FL Email

State Zip

;MQSJ’ ayfg
Speaking: For [ _JAgainst [ ]Information Waive Speaking: | |In Support [ ] Against
(The Chair will read this information info the record.)

Representing M ﬁmm_bl_[jlp / € gjé'/ {9 [/ 05 /‘S 37‘( /’Qﬁf

Appearing at request of Chair: , Lobbyist registered with Legislature: Yes '/U No

While it is a Senate tradition to encourage public testimony, time may not permit all persons wishing to speak to be heard at this
meeting. Those who do speak may be asked to limit their remarks so that as many persons as possible can be heard.

This form is part of the public record for this meeting. S-001 (10/14/14)



THE FLORIDA SENATE

APPEARANCE RECORD

(Deliver BOTH copies of this form to the Senator or Senate Professional Staff conducting the meeting) < / A
Jen Do D/ SB/97¢
Meeting Date Bill Number (if applicable)
: ” -
Topic 7_ bznrJ W 24 e 9 Amendment Barcode (if applicable)

Name /?/(é?d'('/ pf/‘?h?/h

Job Title
Address | 2c¢ M Deve/ $# Phone (%5¢ ) D2 ¥ -~Y2¢r
Street
7:" //7 //f}""( F/ ?)955’ Email
City State Zip
Speaking: | |For [ ]Against [ |Information Waive Speaking: [X]In Support | | Against

(The Chair will read this information into the record.)

Representing éf"?§c" /! Wers i 0"7/”;( e Ffe s /2

Appearing at request of Chair: Yes DX |No Lobbyist registered with Legislature: Yes No

While it is a Senate tradition to encourage public testimony, time may not permit all persons wishing to speak to be heard at this
meeting. Those who do speak may be asked to limit their remarks so that as many persons as possible can be heard.

This form is part of the public record for this meeting. S-001 (10/14/14)



THE FLORIDA SENATE

APPEARANCE RECORD
(Deliver BOTH copies of this form to the Senator or Senate Professional Staff conducling the meeting} L
D20 24,26 ¢ " S3/97¢

Meeting Date Bill Number (if applicable)

. 2L 7
Topic T v Mﬁ /7 (5 Amendment Barcode (if applicable)

Name /?/CA?’—'(/ /79/2!’)3/”
Job Title éaacrnmz’h% /q?ﬁ?[,?/&f p/"f(';/c l

Address [/ 3C¢ A Dev2/ £ 4 Phone (45—5) PY - o,
Street
7\7//34(’/}?’(‘ ~/ 3)3//‘_5 Email
City State Zip
Speaking: [ |For [ ]Against [_]information Waive Speaking: [XJin Support [ | Against

(The Chair will read thisinformation into the record.)

Representing F/ﬁm'(/" /Q///2'*7f7’ 7/)54' /’?‘"7[/*?’/ P evlc 05

Appearing at request of Chair: Yes .No Lobbyist registered with Legislature: Yes | A No

While it is a Senate tradition to encourage public testimony, time may not permit all persons wishing to speak to be heard at this
meeting. Those who do speak may be asked fo limit their remarks so that as many persons as possible can be heard.

This form is part of the public record for this meeting. S-001 (10/14/14)



THE FLORIDA SENATE

APPEARANCE RECORD
- , L{Peliver BOTH copies of this form to the Senator or Senate Professional Staff conducting the meeting)
Jan 2% ] ) L! q LP

Meeting Date / Bilt Number (if applicable)
Topic /ﬁ/ﬂ P a\! V'S @ l aAlm S La{a bafc Amendment Barcode (if applicable)
Name ’ DV L—a-(z\—é,-

Job Title
Address 5!"1 £ Pdrf( kl/{— Phone &80) 55(0""‘/(@(
Street — .
lallahassee. FL 3230\ emai don, @ sulaionet
City State Zip
Speaking: [ |For [ ]Against [ _]Information Waive Speaking: [ |In Support [ | Against

(The Chair will read this information into the record.)

Representing Fi C0l\€3(, DF Bnefgchou,; ﬂ\\}SI\O\ahS/ ) Or’”ﬂO]_Oﬂdl‘C S)C(tfta
/N ’

o Lobbyist registered with Legislature: Yes No

Appearing at request of Chair: Yes | 4

While it is a Senate tradition to encourage pub(mstimony, time may not permit all persons wishing to spéz‘o be heard at this
meeting. Those who do speak may be asked to limit their remarks so that as many persons as possible can be heard.

This form is part of the public record for this meeting. $-001 (10/14/14)



The Florida Senate

BILL ANALYSIS AND FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT

(This document is based on the provisions contained in the legislation as of the latest date listed below.)

Prepared By: The Professional Staff of the Appropriations Subcommittee on Health and Human Services

BILL: PCS/SB 1496 (664560)

INTRODUCER:  Appropriations Subcommittee on Health and Human Services and Senator Bradley

SUBJECT: Transparency in Health Care
DATE: February 1, 2016 REVISED:
ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR REFERENCE ACTION
1. Looke Stovall HP Favorable
2. Brown Pigott AHS Recommend: Fav/CS
3. AP
Summary:

PCS/SB 1496 increases the transparency and availability of health care pricing and quality of
service information. The Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA) is required to contract
with a vendor to provide a consumer-friendly, Internet-based platform that allows a consumer to
research the cost of health care services and procedures to facilitate price comparison of typical
health care services provided in hospitals and ambulatory surgery centers (ASCs). Quality
indicators for services at the facilities will also be made available to the consumer to facilitate
health care decision making.

Under the bill, hospitals and ASCs are required to provide access to the searchable service
bundles on their websites. Consumers will be presented with estimated average payment and
estimated payment ranges for each service bundle, by facility, facilities within geographic
boundaries, and nationally. A hospital or ASC must notify consumers of other health care
providers that may bill separately from the facility, as well as information about the facility’s
financial assistance policies and collection procedures.

A hospital’s or ASC’s website must also provide hyperlinks to the websites of insurers and
health maintenance organizations (HMOs) for which the facility is in-network or a preferred
provider to enable an insured patient to research cost-sharing responsibilities for the service
bundle. Insurers and HMOs are required to provide on their websites a method for policy holders
to estimate their cost-sharing responsibilities by service bundle, based on the insured’s policy
and known usage. These estimates must include both in-network and out-of-network providers.
Insurers and HMOs are also required to provide hyperlinks on their website to the AHCA’s
performance outcome and financial data.

Consumers may request personalized good faith estimates of charges for non-emergency medical
services from hospitals, ASCs, and health care practitioners relating to medical services provided
in the hospital or ASC. The bill also requires home health agencies and home medical equipment



BILL: PCS/SB 1496 (664560) Page 2

providers to provide consumers with good-faith estimates of medical services and supplies.
These good-faith estimates must be provided to the consumer within seven days after the request.
Information must also be provided about the health care provider’s financial assistance policies
and collection procedures.

A patient may also request an itemized bill or statement from a hospital or ASC after discharge.
The hospital or ASC must provide an itemized bill or statement within seven days that is
specific, written in plain language, and identifies all services provided by the facility, as well as
rates charged, amounts due, and the payment status. The itemized bill or statement must inform
the patient to contact his or her insurer regarding the patient’s share of costs. The facility must
provide records to verify the bill or statement upon request.

The bill requires the consumer advocate in the Department of Financial Services (DFS) to
receive and investigate complaints from insured and uninsured patients concerning billing
practices. If, after investigating a complaint, the consumer advocate determines the billing
practices and charges were unfair, the consumer advocate will report these findings to the AHCA
and the Department of Health (DOH) for regulatory and disciplinary action. The bill provides for
penalties for unconscionable prices. The consumer advocate is also authorized to mediate billing
complaints and negotiate payment arrangements.

The bill requires health insurers and HMOs that participate in the state group health insurance
plan or Medicaid managed care to submit claims data to the vendor selected by the AHCA.

The AHCA estimates the bill will have a negative recurring fiscal impact of approximately $2.7
million in general revenue. Estimates of the fiscal impact of the new duties of the consumer
advocate within the DFS are not available at this time. See Section V.

The bill has an effective date of July 1, 2016, except as otherwise provided in the bill.
Present Situation:
Health Care Price and Quality Transparency

In general, the term “transparency,” when applied to health care, refers to the ability of a patient
or the public to investigate and compare different health care providers for pricing and quality of
care for one or more procedures. Although simple sounding, health care price transparency is
difficult to implement due to legal challenges, the various manners in which health care is
provided, and the various manners in which health care costs are paid. Demonstrating this
difficulty, the Health Care Incentives Improvement Institute gave an F grade to 45 out of 50
states, including Florida, in its 2015 Report Card on State Price Transparency Laws.» 2

Some difficulties in implementing health care price transparency include:

! Health Care Incentives Improvement Institute, Report Card on State Price Transparency Laws, (July 2015), available at
http://www.hci3.org/wp-content/uploads/files/files/2015_Report PriceTransLaws 06.pdf (last visited on Jan. 14, 2016).

2 Only one state, New Hampshire, received an A rating. Colorado and Maine received B’s, and Vermont and Virginia
received C’s.



BILL: PCS/SB 1496 (664560) Page 3

e Legal barriers, including the confidentiality of some contractual information between health
care providers and insurers, as well and health insurer trade secret information;*

e Difficulty in determining who will be providing care and whether or not all providers are in a
patient’s insurance network;*

e General confusion over billing practices;® and

e Difficulty drawing comparisons between patients’ particular situations.®

Common Definitions in Health Care Pricing

Another basic difficulty in interpreting health care pricing is understanding the definition of
many terms. Some common definitions include:
e “Charge,” which means the dollar amount a provider charges for services rendered, before
any contracted discounts are applied; a charge can be different from the amount paid;
e “Cost,” the definition of which varies by the party incurring the expense:
o To the patient, cost is the amount payable out of pocket for health care services;
o To the provider, cost is the expense (direct and indirect) incurred to deliver health care
services to patients;
o Tothe insurer, cost is the amount payable to the provider (or reimbursable to the patient)
for services rendered,;
o To the employer, cost is the expense related to providing health benefits (premiums or
claims paid);
e “Price,” which means the total amount a provider expects to be paid by payers and/or patients
for health care services; and
e “Out-of-pocket payment,” which means the portion of total payment for medical services and
treatment for which the patient is responsible, including copayments, coinsurance, and
deductibles.’

Current Florida Requirements for Health Care Price and Quality Transparency

Current Florida law establishes multiple requirements regarding health care cost and quality

transparency. Examples of such requirements include:

e Florida’s Patient’s Bill of Rights and Responsibilities,® which establishes the right of patients
to, among other rights, be given information of known financial resources for the patient’s
health care, a reasonable estimate of charges before a procedure, and an itemized bill;

3 1d.

4 Anne Weiss and Susan Dentzer, Three Key Lessons from the Health Care Transparency Summit, Robert Wood Foundation,
(April 16, 2015) http://www.rwjf.org/en/culture-of-health/2015/04/3_key lessons_fromt.html?cid=xrs_rss-pr (last visited on
Jan. 14, 2016).

5 Many hospital bills, and bills issued by other health care facilities, consist of billing codes and names of procedures or
medications which may not be easily understood by a layperson. Additionally, it may be difficult to determine whether
charges on the bill have been paid, need to be paid, or will be paid by a third party such as a health insurer.

& For example, an older patient may be more fragile and require more recovery time and caution when administering a
procedure and, therefore, may be charged more than a younger patient for the same procedure. Additionally, actual payment
amounts to the health care provider may differ from patient to patient depending on whether that patient has insurance and
the magnitude of any discounts that the insurer has negotiated with that health care provider.

" Health care Financial Management Association Price Transparency Taskforce, Price Transparency in Health Care, p.2
(2014) (on file with the Senate Committee on Health Policy).

8 Section 381.026, F.S.




BILL: PCS/SB 1496 (664560) Page 4

e The requirement for hospitals and ambulatory surgery centers (ASCs) to provide patients and
their physicians with itemized bills upon request;®

e The requirement for pharmacies, health insurers, and health maintenance organizations
(HMOs) to inform customers of the availability of the Agency for Health Care
Administration’s (AHCA’s) quality and cost information;*° and

e The requirement for HMOs to disclose financial data to customers and provide customers
with estimated costs for services.!!

The Florida Center for Health Information and Policy Analysis

Section 408.05, F.S., establishes the Florida Center for Health Information and Policy Analysis

(Florida Center). The Florida Center is required to establish a comprehensive health information

system to provide for the collection, compilation, coordination, analysis, indexing,

dissemination, and utilization of collected and extant health-related data. The Florida Center is

responsible for:

e Collecting adverse incident reports from hospitals, ASCs, HMOs, nursing homes, and
assisted living facilities (ALFs);

e Collecting discharge data from licensed hospitals, ASCs, emergency departments, cardiac
catheterization laboratories, and lithotripsy;

e Administering patient injury reporting, tracking, trending, and problem resolution programs
for hospitals, ASCs, nursing homes, ALFs, and some HMOs

e Processing patient data requests and providing technical assistance; and

e Administering www.FloridaHealthFinder.gov, Florida’s state-run website which provides
easy access to health care information through health care quality comparison tools, a health
encyclopedia, and other resources. The public may access the website to learn about medical
conditions, compare health care facilities and providers, and find health care resources. The
website also allows users to compare price ranges for some commonly offered health care
services between health care providers.'? 13

The Florida Commission on Health care and Hospital Funding

On May 5, 2015, Governor Rick Scott signed Executive Order 15-99 that established the
Commission on Health care and Hospital Funding (commission).'* The commission was created
to investigate and advise on the role of taxpayer funding for hospitals, insurers, and health care
providers, and the affordability, access, and quality of health care services they provide. The
commission has met 15 times between May 20, 2015 and January 19, 2016, and will continue
meeting. The commission has heard testimony and collected data from numerous sources,
including physicians, hospitals, state agencies, health maintenance organizations, and the public,

% Section 395.301, F.S.

10 Sections 465.0244, 627.54, and 641.54, F.S

11 Section 641.54, F.S.

12 See Florida Center for Health Information and Policy Analysis, http://www.ahca.myflorida.com/schs/index.shtml (last
visited on Jan. 14, 2016) and the Florida Health Finder FAQ, http://www.floridahealthfinder.gov/media/training-video.aspx
(last visited on Jan. 14, 2016)

13 Quality and price data is available on the website and searchable for approximately 150 conditions. Email from Orlando
Pryor, AHCA Legislative Affairs Office (Jan. 15, 2016) (on file with the Senate Committee on Health Policy).

14 Executive order 15-99, available at http://www.flgov.com/wp-content/uploads/orders/2015/EQ_15-99.pdf, (last visited on
Jan. 15, 2016).




BILL: PCS/SB 1496 (664560) Page 5

but it has not yet published conclusions or final recommendations. On November 19, 2015, the
commission endorsed proposed bill language from Governor Scott to address the issue of health
care price and quality transparency.*® 6 Many of the concepts inherent to the Governor’s
proposal are addressed in SB 1496.

Il. Effect of Proposed Changes:

Section 1 amends the licensure requirements for hospitals and ambulatory surgical centers
(ASCs) in s. 395.301, F.S., to require that such facilities meet new standards for providing
financial information and quality of service measures to patients and the public.'’

General Requirements for the Provision of Information to the Public

The bill requires each hospital and ASC to:

e Provide timely and accurate financial information and quality of service measures to
prospective patients, actual patients, and patient’s legal guardians or survivors;

e Provide information on payments made to that facility via the facility’s website, under the
following parameters:

o The posted information must be presented and searchable in accordance with, and
through a hyperlink to, the system and service bundles established by the Agency for
Health Care Administration (AHCA).

o The minimum information that must be provided by the facility for each service bundle
includes:
= The estimated average payment received from all payers except Medicaid and

Medicare; and
= The estimated payment range.

o The facility must state in plain language that the information provided is an estimate of
costs and that actual costs will be based on services actually provided.

o The facility must assist the consumer in accessing his or her health insurer’s or HMO’s
website for information on estimated copayments, deductibles, and other cost-sharing
responsibilities;

e Post information on its website, including:

o The names of all health insurers and HMOs for which the facility is a network provider or
a preferred provider, along with links to the respective websites;

o Information for uninsured or out-of-network patients on:
= The facility’s financial assistance policy including the application process, payment

plans, and discounts; and
= The facility’s collection procedures and charity care policies;

o A notification to patients and prospective patients that services may be provided in the

facility by the facility and by other health care providers who may bill separately;

15 |_etter from the Commission on Health care and Hospital Funding to Senate President Andy Gardiner and Speaker of the
House of Representatives Steve Crisafulli (November 19, 2015) (on file with the Senate Committee on Health Policy).

16 Governor’s Recommended Bill, Health Care Transparency, available at
http://www.healthandhospitalcommission.com/docs/Health careTransparencyProposal.pdf (last visited on Jan. 15, 2016).

17 Note: Some of the effects detailed in the analysis of section 1 of the bill are requirements that are in current law and which
are either kept intact or revised and restated. Due to the significant reorganization of s. 395.301, F.S., the total effects of all
new, current law, and revised requirements are included in this analysis as effects of the bill.




BILL: PCS/SB 1496 (664560) Page 6

©)

©)

Notification that patients and prospective patients may request a personalized estimate of
charges from the facility; and

A link to health-related data, including quality measures and statistics that are
disseminated by the AHCA, and

Take action to notify the public that health-related data is electronically available to the
public and provide a link to the AHCA’s website.

Requirements to Respond to Specific Requests for Information

Upon specific request, the bill requires each facility to provide:
A written, good-faith estimate of reasonably anticipated facility charges for the non-
emergency treatment of the requestor’s specific condition, under the following parameters:

@)
©)
@)

(@]

o

The estimate must be provided within seven business days after the receipt of the request;
The facility is not required to adjust the estimate to account for any insurance coverage;
The estimate may be based on the service bundles created by the AHCA unless the
patient requests a more specific estimate;

The facility must inform the patient that he or she may contact his or her health insurer or
HMO for additional information on cost-sharing responsibilities;

The estimate must provide information on the facility’s financial assistance policy,
including the application process, payment plans, and discounts;

The estimate must provide information on the facility’s charity care policy and collection
procedures;

Upon request, the facility must notify the requestor of any revision to the estimate;

The estimate must contain a notice that services may be provided by other health care
providers who may bill separately;

The facility must take action to notify the public that such estimates are available;

The facility will be fined $500 for each instance of failing to timely provide a requested
estimate; and

The provision of the estimate does not preclude the charges from exceeding the estimate;

An itemized bill or statement to the patient, or the patient’s survivor or legal guardian, under
the following parameters:

o

The initial itemized statement or bill:

= Must be provided within seven days of the patient’s discharge or the patient’s request;

= Must detail the specific nature of charges or expenses in plain language,
comprehensible to an ordinary layperson;

= Must contain a statement of specific services received and expenses incurred by date;

= Must enumerate in detail, as prescribed by the AHCA, the constituent components of
the services received within each department of the facility;

= Must include unit price data on rates charged by the facility;

= Must identify each item as paid, pending payment by a third party, or pending
payment by the patient;

= Must include the amount due, if applicable;

= Must advise the patient or the patient’s legal survivor or guardian to contact the
patient’s health insurer or HMO regarding the patient’s cost-sharing responsibilities;

= Must include a notice of hospital-based physicians and other health care providers
who bill separately;

= May not include any generalized category of expenses;



BILL: PCS/SB 1496 (664560) Page 7

= Must list drugs by brand or generic name;

= Must identify the date, type, and length of treatment for any physical, occupational, or
speech therapy provided; and

= Must prominently display the telephone number of the medical facility’s patient
liaison;

o Any subsequent bill must contain all of the information required in the initial bill with
any revisions clearly delineated;

o A facility must make available at no charge, except copying fees, both in the facility’s
office and electronically, all records necessary for the verification of the accuracy of the
invoice or bill within 10 business days after a request for such records and before
payment of the statement or bill; and

o Each facility must establish a method of responding to a patient’s question about his or
her itemized bill within seven business days after the question is received.

If the patient is not satisfied with the facility’s response to a question, the facility must provide
the patient with the address and contract information for the consumer advocate as provided in
S. 627.0613, F.S.

Miscellaneous Provisions

The bill deletes statutory language:

e Stating that any person who receives an itemized statement is fully and accurately informed
as to each charge and service provided by the institution preparing the statement;

e Requiring an itemized statement to contain a disclosure identifying the ownership status,
either for-profit or not-for-profit, of the facility preparing the statement;

e Requiring an itemized bill to be provided to the patient’s physician at no charge;

e Restricting physicians, dentists, podiatrists, and other licensed facilities from adding to the
price charged by a third party except for a service or handling charge which represents a cost
actually incurred.

The bill also makes other technical and conforming changes.

Section 2 creates s. 395.3012, F.S., to allow the AHCA to impose fines based on the findings of
the consumer advocate’s investigation of billing complaints pursuant to s. 627.0613(6), F.S. The
bill sets the fines for noncompliance at the greater of $2,500 per violation or double the amount

of the original charges.

Sections 3 and 4 amend ss. 400.487 and 400.934, F.S., respectively, to require home health
agencies and home medical equipment providers to, upon request, provide a written, good-faith
estimate of reasonably anticipated charges for services provided by that health care provider
within seven business days after receiving a request and to provide information disclosing
payment plans, discounts, other available assistance, and collection procedures. Additionally,
home health agencies and home medical equipment providers must inform the requestor that he
or she may contact his or her health insurer or HMO for additional information concerning cost
sharing responsibilities.



BILL: PCS/SB 1496 (664560) Page 8

Section 5 amends s. 408.05, F.S., to replace the Florida Center for Health Information and Policy
Analysis with the Florida Center for Health Information and Transparency (center), to be housed
within the AHCA. The center’s responsibilities are streamlined and updated to reflect current
data needs. The center is tasked with collecting, compiling, coordinating, analyzing, indexing,
and disseminating health-related data and statistics. The center and the AHCA must meet
numerous requirements, as described below.®

Health Related Data

The bill:

e Requires that the center be staffed as necessary to carry out its functions;

e Requires that the center maintain data sets in existence before July 1, 2016, unless such data
are duplicated and readily available from other credible sources;

e Requires that the center collect data on:

o

o O O O

Health resources, including licensed health care practitioners by specialty and type of
practice and including data collected by the Department of Health (DOH) pursuant to
ss. 458.3191 and 456.0081, F.S.;

Health service inventories, including acute care, long-term care, and other institutional
care facilities and specific services provided by hospitals, nursing homes, home health
agencies, and other licensed health care facilities;

Service utilization for licensed health care facilities;

Health care costs and financing;

The extent of public and private health insurance coverage in Florida; and

Specific quality-of-care initiatives involving various health care providers when extant
data is not adequate to achieve the objectives of the initiatives;

e Eliminates the requirement that the center collect data on:

(@]

o O O O

The extent and nature of illness and disability of the state population;

The impact of illness and disability of the state population on the state economy;
Environmental, social, and other health hazards;

Health knowledge and practices of the people in Florida; and

Family formation, growth, and dissolution.

Health Information Transparency

The bill:
e Requires the AHCA to:

o

Contract with a vendor to provide a consumer-friendly, Internet-based platform that
allows a consumer to research the cost of health care services and procedures and allows
for price comparison, and the platform must allow a consumer to search by condition or
service bundle that is comprehensible to an ordinary layperson and may not require
registration, password, or user identification;

Collect and compile information on and coordinate the activities of state agencies
involved in providing health information to consumers;

18 As similarly noted in Section 1, due to significant revision and organizational changes in this section, the total effects of all
new, revised, and current law requirements are included in this analysis as effects of the bill.



BILL: PCS/SB 1496 (664560) Page 9

o Promote data sharing by making state-collected data available, transferable, and readily
usable;

o Develop written agreements with local, state, and federal agencies to facilitate the sharing
of data related to health care;

o Establish by rule the types of data collected, complied, processed, used, or shared;

o Consult with contracted vendors, the State Consumer Health Information and Policy
Advisory Council, and other public and private users regarding the types of data that
should be collected and the use of such data;

o Monitor data collection procedures and test data quality to facilitate the dissemination of
data that are accurate, valid, reliable, and complete;

o Develop methods for archiving data, retrieving archived data, and editing data, and
verifying data;

o Make available health care quality measures that will allow consumers to compare
outcomes and other performance measures for health care services; and

o Make available the results of special health surveys, health care research, and health care
evaluations conducted or supported by under s. 408.05, F.S.;

Restricts the AHCA from establishing an all-payer claims database without express

legislative authority;

Eliminates requirements, except as detailed above, for the AHCA and the center to:

o Review the statistical activities of state agencies to ensure they are consistent with the
comprehensive health information system;

o Establish minimum health-care-related data sets;

o Establish advisory standards for the quality of health statistical and epidemiological data
collection;

o Prescribe standards for the publication of health-care-related data;

o Establish a long-range plan for making health care quality measures and financial data
available;

o Provide technical assistance to persons or organizations engaged in health planning
activities;

o Administer, manage, and monitor grants related to health information services; and

o Aid in the dissemination of data through the publication of reports, including an annual
report, and conducting special studies and surveys.

The vendor must:

Be a non-profit research institute that is qualified under s. 1874 of the federal Social Security
Act to receive Medicare claims data and which receives claims data from multiple private
insurers nationwide;

Have a national database consisting of at least 15 billion claim lines of administrative claims
data from multiple payers capable of being expanded by adding third-party payers, including
employers with Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) plans;

Have a well-developed methodology for analyzing claims data within defined service
bundles; and

Have a bundling methodology that is available in the public domain to allow for consistency
and comparison of state and national benchmarks with local regions and specific providers.

Section 6 amends s. 408.061, F.S., to:



BILL: PCS/SB 1496 (664560) Page 10

e Require that the AHCA mandate the submission of data from health care facilities, health
care providers, and health insurers in order to facilitate transparency in health care pricing
and quality measures;

e Provide that data submitted by health care providers may include actual charges to patients as
specified by rule; and

e Provide that data submitted by health insurers may include payments to health care facilities
and health care providers as specified by rule.

Section 7 amends s. 456.0575, F.S., to require that every licensed health care practitioner must
provide, upon request by a patient, a good-faith estimate of reasonably anticipated charges for
any non-emergency services to treat the patient’s condition at a hospital or ASC. This estimate
must be provided within seven business days after receiving the request and before providing the
service for which the request for an estimate was made. The practitioner must inform the patient
that he or she may contact his or her health insurer or HMO for additional information
concerning cost-sharing responsibilities. The practitioner must also provide information to
uninsured or out of network patients on the practitioner’s financial assistance policy, including
the application process, payment plans, discounts, and other available assistance, the
practitioner’s charity care policy, and the practitioner’s collection procedures.

The bill provides that such an estimate does not preclude the actual charges from exceeding the
estimate and that failure to provide a requested estimate in accordance with the provisions stated
and without good cause will result in disciplinary action and a fine of $500 for each instance of
failure to provide the requested estimate.

Section 8 amends s. 456.072, F.S., to include the failure to comply with fair billing practices
pursuant to s. 627.0613, F.S., in the list of grounds for which disciplinary actions may be taken
against a health care practitioner.

Section 9 amends s. 627.0613, F.S., to expand the duties of the consumer advocate.'® The bill

requires that:

e The consumer advocate must report to the AHCA and the DOH the findings resulting from
investigation of unresolved complaints concerning the billing practices of any hospital, ASC,
or health care practitioner licensed under ch. 456, F.S.;

e The AHCA and the DOH must grant the consumer advocate access to any files, records, and
data which are necessary for such investigations;

e The consumer advocate must provide mediation between providers and patients to resolve
billing complaints and negotiate arrangements for extended payment schedules; and

e The consumer advocate must maintain a process for receiving and investigating complaints
concerning billing practices by hospitals, ASCs, and health care practitioners licensed under
ch. 456, F.S.

Under the bill, such investigations by the consumer advocate are limited to determining
compliance with the following:

19 The consumer advocate is appointed by, and reports to, the Chief Financial Officer and is tasked with representing the
general public before various state agencies.



BILL: PCS/SB 1496 (664560) Page 11

The patient was informed before a non-emergency procedure of the expected payments
related to the procedure, the contact information for health insurers or HMOs, and the
expected involvement of other providers who may bill separately;

The patient was informed of policies and procedures to qualify for discounts;

The patient was informed of collection procedures and given the opportunity to participate in
an extended payment schedule;

The patient was given a written, personal, and itemized estimate as required in s. 395.301,
F.S., for facilities and s. 456.0575, F.S., for health care practitioners for services in a facility;
The statement or bill delivered to the patient was accurate and included all required
information; and

The billed amounts were fair charges, defined as “the common and frequent range of charges
for patients who are similarly situated requiring the same or similar medical services.”

Section 10 creates s. 627.6385, F.S., to require each health insurer to:

Make available on its website a method for policyholders to estimate their cost-sharing
responsibilities for health care services and procedures based on the service bundles
established in s. 408.05(3)(c), F.S., or based on a personalized estimate, and a link to the
health and quality information disseminated by the AHCA,;

Include in every policy delivered or issued to a person in Florida a notice that the information
required by this section is available electronically and the address of the website where the
information can be accessed; and

If the health insurer participates in the state group health insurance plan or Medicaid
managed care, provide all claims data to the fullest extent possible to the contracted vendor
selected by the AHCA under s. 408.05(3)(c), F.S.

Section 11 amends s. 641.54, F.S., to require each HMO to:

Make available electronically or by request the estimated amount of any cost-sharing
responsibilities for any covered services described by the service bundles established
pursuant to s. 408.05(3)(c), F.S., or as described in a personalized estimate received from a
health care facility or health care practitioner;

If the HMO participates in the state group health insurance plan or Medicaid managed care,
provide all claims data to the fullest extent possible to the contracted vendor selected by the
AHCA under s. 408.05(3)(c), F.S.; and

Create a link on its website to the health information disseminated by the AHCA.

Section 12 amends s. 409.967, F.S., to require that Medicaid managed care plans provide all
claims data to the fullest extent possible to the contracted vendor selected by the AHCA under
s. 408.05(3)(c), F.S.

Section 13 amends s. 110.123, F.S., to require that the Department of Management Services
make arrangements to provide claims data of the state group health insurance plan to the
contracted vendor selected by the AHCA pursuant to s. 408.05(3)(c), F.S. The bill also requires
that each health plan awarded a contract in state group health insurance must provide claims data
to the selected vendor.



BILL: PCS/SB 1496 (664560) Page 12

Sections 14 through 20 amend various sections of law to make technical and conforming
changes.

Section 21 provides that the bill takes effect on July 1, 2016.

V. Constitutional Issues:

A. Municipality/County Mandates Restrictions:
None.

B. Public Records/Open Meetings Issues:
None.

C. Trust Funds Restrictions:
None.

V. Fiscal Impact Statement:

A. Tax/Fee Issues:
None.
B. Private Sector Impact:

PCS/SB 1496 may have a positive fiscal impact on consumers of health care services to
the extent the transparency measures allow consumers to make better informed choices
on where to obtain their health care services based on price and quality, take advantage of
discounts or other financial assistance, or negotiate with health care service providers on
the specific costs of services.

The bill may have a negative fiscal impact on providers of health care services, health
insurers, and HMOs related to posting health care information on their webpages or
providing patient-specific estimates.

C. Government Sector Impact:

The AHCA estimates that the bill will have recurring costs to the agency of
approximately $2.7 million per year, all of which is general revenue. Contracted services
account for approximately $2.5 to $2.6 million of the annual costs. Approximately
$133,000 of the annual costs are for two full-time-equivalent positions. Additional
recurring costs include approximately $12,000 per year for expenses and less than $1,000
per year for human resource services. The AHCA also estimates non-recurring costs for
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 of $9,054.%°

20 Fiscal analysis provided by the AHCA on January 19, 2016. On file with Senate Health Policy staff.



BILL: PCS/SB 1496 (664560) Page 13

VI.

VII.

VIII.

An estimate of the fiscal impact of the new duties of the office of the consumer advocate
within the Department of Financial Services (DFS) is not yet available, but an estimate
has been requested of the DFS.

Technical Deficiencies:

None.

Related Issues:

None.

Statutes Affected:

This bill substantially amends the following sections of the Florida Statutes: 395.301, 400.487,
400.934, 408.05, 408.061, 456.0575, 456.072, 627.0613, 641.54, 409.967, 110.123, 20.42,
381.026, 395.602, 395.6025, 408.07, 408.18, and 465.0244.

This bill creates the following sections of the Florida Statutes: 395.3012 and 627.6385.

Additional Information:

A.

Committee Substitute — Statement of Changes:
(Summarizing differences between the Committee Substitute and the prior version of the bill.)

Recommended CS by Appropriations Subcommittee on Health and Human Services
on January 28, 2016:
The proposed CS:

Requires a licensed hospital or ambulatory surgery center to make certain information
available on its website that must be presented and searchable in accordance with, and
through a hyperlink to, the system established by the Agency for Health Care
Administration and its vendor under the bill, while the underlying bill did not require
the hyperlink;

Deletes from the bill requirements for nursing homes to provide specified information
upon request;

Deletes from the bill provisions entitling health insurers and health maintenance
organizations to tax credits under certain conditions; and

Deletes from the bill provisions establishing a tax credit of $50 per employee per data
submission, up to $500,000, which could be used against either Florida’s sales and
use tax or corporate income tax for employers with plans covered by the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, under certain conditions.

Amendments:

None.

This Senate Bill Analysis does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill’s introducer or the Florida Senate.




O J o O w NN

Florida Senate - 2016 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT
Bill No. SB 1496

| AN ===

LEGISLATIVE ACTION
Senate . House
Comm: RCS
01/28/2016

Appropriations Subcommittee on Health and Human Services

(Richter) recommended the following:
Senate Amendment
Delete lines 133 - 135

and insert:

payment data must be presented and searchable in accordance

with, and through a hyperlink to, the system established by the

agency and its vendor using the descriptive service bundles

developed under s. 408.05(3) (c). At

Page 1 of 1
1/27/2016 10:19:59 AM HP.AHS.02635




~N o 0o w N

Florida Senate - 2016 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT
Bill No. SB 1496

NI =<

LEGISLATIVE ACTION
Senate . House
Comm: RCS
01/28/2016

Appropriations Subcommittee on Health and Human Services

(Richter) recommended the following:
Senate Amendment
Delete lines 364 - 366

and insert:

(2) The administrative fines for noncompliance with s.

395.301 are the greater of $2,500 per violation or double the

amount of the original charges.

Page 1 of 1
1/27/2016 10:21:05 AM HP.AHS.02632




O W 0 < o O b w N

[EY

Florida Senate - 2016 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT
Bill No. SB 1496

IR ==

LEGISLATIVE ACTION
Senate . House
Comm: RCS
01/28/2016

Appropriations Subcommittee on Health and Human Services

(Richter) recommended the following:
Senate Amendment (with title amendment)
Delete lines 367 - 388.

================= T I T LE A MENIDMENT =s===============
And the title is amended as follows:

Delete lines 33 - 34
and insert:

consumer advocate; amending ss. 400.487 and 400.934,

F.S.; requiring home health

Page 1 of 1
1/27/2016 1:31:22 PM HP.AHS.02688




O W 0 < o O b w N

[N

Florida Senate - 2016 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT
Bill No. SB 1496

| =22

LEGISLATIVE ACTION
Senate . House
Comm: RS
01/28/2016

Appropriations Subcommittee on Health and Human Services

(Richter) recommended the following:
Senate Amendment (with title amendment)

Delete lines 1073 - 1077.
Delete lines 1176 - 1254.

================= T ] TLE A MEDNDDMENT ================
And the title is amended as follows:

Delete lines 81 - 82
and insert:

amending s. 641.54, F.S.; revising

Page 1 of 2
1/27/2016 10:22:30 AM HP.AHS.02631




11
12
13
14

Florida Senate - 2016 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. SB 1496

| =22

Delete lines 99 - 109

and insert:
data to the vendor selected by the agency;
ss. 20.42,

Page 2 of 2
1/27/2016 10:22:30 AM

amending

HP.AHS.02631




[EY

O W 0 < o O b w N

Florida Senate - 2016 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT
Bill No. SB 1496

| DVARIRIR <022

LEGISLATIVE ACTION
Senate . House
Comm: RCS
01/28/2016

Appropriations Subcommittee on Health and Human Services

(Richter) recommended the following:

Senate Substitute for Amendment (234188) (with title

amendment)

Delete lines 1073 - 1077.
Delete lines 1104 - 11009.
Delete lines 1176 - 1254.

================= T I] TLE AMENDME N T ================
And the title is amended as follows:

Delete lines 81 - 91

Page 1 of 2
1/27/2016 6:35:29 PM HP.AHS.02709




11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Florida Senate - 2016 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT
Bill No. SB 1496

| DVARIRIR <022

amending s. 641.54, F.S.; revising the provision

and insert:

requiring a health maintenance organization to make
certain information available to its subscribers;
requiring a health maintenance organization that
participates in the state group health insurance plan
or Medicaid managed care to provide all claims data to
a contracted vendor selected by the agency; amending

s. 409.967, F.S.; requiring

Delete lines 99 - 109
and insert:

data to the vendor selected by the agency; amending
ss. 20.42,

Page 2 of 2
1/27/2016 6:35:29 PM HP.AHS.02709




o J o Ul Ww N

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

By Senator Bradley

7-01281C-16 20161496

A bill to be entitled
An act relating to transparency in health care;
amending s. 395.301, F.S.; requiring a facility
licensed under ch. 395, F.S., to provide timely and
accurate financial information and quality of service
measures to certain individuals; providing an
exemption; requiring a licensed facility to make
available on its website certain information on
payments made to that facility for defined bundles of
services and procedures and other information for
consumers and patients; requiring that facility
websites provide specified information and notify and
inform patients or prospective patients of certain
information; requiring a facility to provide a
written, good faith estimate of charges to a patient
or prospective patient within a certain timeframe;
requiring a facility to provide information regarding
financial assistance from the facility which may be
available to a patient or a prospective patient;
providing a penalty for failing to provide an estimate
of charges to a patient; deleting a requirement that a
licensed facility not operated by the state provide
notice to a patient of his or her right to an itemized
statement or bill within a certain timeframe; revising
the information that must be included on a patient’s
statement or bill; requiring that certain records be
made available through electronic means that comply
with a specified law; reducing the response time for
certain patient requests for information; creating s.
395.3012, F.S.; authorizing the Agency for Health Care

Administration to impose penalties based on certain

findings of an investigation as determined by the

Page 1 of 51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496

consumer advocate; amending ss. 400.165, 400.487, and
400.934, F.S.; requiring nursing homes, home health
agencies, and home medical equipment providers to
provide upon request certain written estimates of
charges within a certain timeframe; amending s.
408.05, F.S.; revising requirements for the collection
and use of health-related data by the agency;
requiring the agency to contract with a vendor to
provide an Internet-based platform with certain
attributes; requiring potential vendors to have
certain qualifications; prohibiting the agency from
establishing a certain database under certain
circumstances; amending s. 408.061, F.S.; revising
requirements for the submission of health care data to
the agency; amending s. 456.0575, F.S.; requiring a
health care practitioner to provide a patient upon his
or her request a written, good faith estimate of
anticipated charges within a certain timeframe;
amending s. 456.072, F.S.; providing that the failure
to comply with fair billing practices by a health care
practitioner is grounds for disciplinary action;
amending s. 627.0613, F.S.; providing that the
consumer advocate must represent the general public
before other state agencies; authorizing the consumer
advocate to report findings relating to certain
investigations to the agency and the Department of
Health; authorizing the consumer advocate to have
access to files, records, and data of the agency and

the department necessary for certain investigations;

Page 2 of 51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496

authorizing the consumer advocate to maintain a
process to receive and investigate complaints from
patients relating to compliance with certain billing
and notice requirements by licensed health care
facilities and practitioners; defining a term;
authorizing the consumer advocate to provide mediation
between providers and consumers relating to certain
matters; creating s. 627.6385, F.S.; requiring a
health insurer to make available on its website
certain methods that a policyholder can use to make
estimates of certain costs and charges; providing that
an estimate does not preclude an actual cost from
exceeding the estimate; requiring a health insurer to
make available on its website a hyperlink to certain
health information; requiring a health insurer to
include certain notice; requiring a health insurer
that participates in the state group health insurance
plan or Medicaid managed care to provide all claims
data to a contracted vendor selected by the agency;
providing a credit against the premium tax to certain
health insurers; amending s. 641.54, F.S.; revising
the provision requiring a health maintenance
organization to make certain information available to
its subscribers; requiring a health maintenance
organization that participates in the state group
health insurance plan or Medicaid managed care to
provide all claims data to a contracted vendor
selected by the agency; providing a credit against

certain premium taxes to specified health maintenance

Page 3 of 51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496
organizations; amending s. 409.967, F.S.; requiring
managed care plans to provide all claims data to a
contracted vendor selected by the agency; amending s.
110.123, F.S.; requiring the Department of Management
Services to provide certain data to the contracted
vendor for the price transparency database established
by the agency; requiring a contracted vendor for the
state group health insurance plan to provide claims
data to the vendor selected by the agency; creating s.
212.099, F.S.; defining terms; authorizing a credit
against sales and use tax for taxpayers that provide
health care claims information; providing a limitation
on credit amounts; providing penalties for
fraudulently claiming the credit; creating s. 220.197,
F.S.; defining terms; authorizing a credit against
corporate income tax for corporations that provide
health care claims information; providing a limitation
on credit amounts; providing penalties for
fraudulently claiming the credit; amending ss. 20.42,
381.026, 395.602, 395.6025, 408.07, 408.18, and
465.0244, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made

by the act; providing effective dates.
Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:
Section 1. Section 395.301, Florida Statutes, is amended to

read:

395.301 Price transparency; itemized patient statement or

bill; fermand—econtent—preseribedPby theageneys patient

Page 4 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496
admission status notification.—

(1) A facility licensed under this chapter shall provide

timely and accurate financial information and quality of service

measures to prospective and actual patients of the facility, or

to patients’ survivors or legal guardians, as appropriate. Such

information shall be provided in accordance with this section

and rules adopted by the agency pursuant to this chapter and s.

408.05. Licensed facilities operating exclusively as state

mental health treatment facilities or as mobile surgical

facilities are exempt from the requirements of this subsection.

(a) Each licensed facility shall make available to the

public on its website information on payments made to that

facility for defined bundles of services and procedures. The

payment data must be presented and searchable in accordance with

the system established by the agency and its vendor using the

descriptive service bundles developed under s. 408.05(3) (c). At

a minimum, the facility shall provide the estimated average

payment received from all payors, excluding Medicaid and

Medicare, for the descriptive service bundles available at that

facility and the estimated payment range for such bundles. Using

plain language, comprehensible to an ordinary layperson, the

facility must disclose that the information on average payments

and the payment ranges is an estimate of costs that may be

incurred by the patient or prospective patient and that actual

costs will be based on the services actually provided to the

patient. The facility shall also assist the consumer in

accessing his or her health insurer’s or health maintenance

organization’s website for information on estimated copayments,

deductibles, and other cost-sharing responsibilities. The

Page 5 of 51

words underlined are additions.

149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16

facility’s website must:

20161496

1. Identify and post the names of all health insurers and

health maintenance organizations for which the facility is a

network provider or preferred provider and include a hyperlink

to the website of each.

2. Provide information to uninsured patients and insured

patients whose health insurer or health maintenance organization

does not include the facility as a network provider or preferred

provider on the facility’s financial assistance policy,

including the application process, payment plans, and discounts,

and the facility’s charity care policy and collection

procedures.

3. Notify patients or prospective patients that services

may be provided in the health care facility by the facility as

well as by other health care providers who may separately bill

the patient.

4. Inform patients or prospective patients that they may

request from the facility and other health care providers a more

personalized estimate of charges and other information.

(b)1. Upon request, and before providing any nonemergency

medical services, each licensed facility shall provide a

written, good faith estimate of reasonably anticipated charges

by the facility for the treatment of the patient’s or

prospective patient’s specific condition. The facility must

provide the estimate in writing to the patient or prospective

patient within 7 business days after the receipt of the request

and is not required to adjust the estimate for any potential

insurance coverage. The estimate may be based on the descriptive

service bundles developed by the agency under s. 408.05(3) (¢)

Page 6 of 51

words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496 Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496 7-01281C-16 20161496
178| unless the patient or prospective patient requests a more 207 s. 408.05. The facility shall also take action to notify the
179| personalized and specific estimate that accounts for the 208| public that such information is electronically available and
180 specific condition and characteristics of the patient or 209| provide a hyperlink to the agency’s website.
181| prospective patient. The facility shall inform the patient or 210 (d)1. Upon request, and after the patient’s discharge or
182| prospective patient that he or she may contact his or her health 211 release from the facility, the facility must provide A3iecensed
183| insurer or health maintenance organization for additional 212 faeility notoperated by —th tat hallrnetif aeh—patient
184 information concerning cost-sharing responsibilities. 213| duringadmission—andat—discharyg £—hi r—herright—to—= 3
185 2. In the estimate, the facility shall provide to the 214| on—dtemized bill upon reguest—Within days—fellewing—th
186| patient or prospective patient information on the facility’s 215| potientls—dischary r—retes from—atiecensed—faciliitynot
187 financial assistance policy, including the application process, 216 perated—by—th tate—theticensed facility providineg—+th
188| payment plans, and discounts and the facility’s charity care 217 i hall;—upen—regquest;——submit to the patients+ or to the
189| policy and collection procedures. 218| patient’s survivor or legal guardian, as may—be appropriate, an
190 3. Upon request, the facility shall notify the patient or 219 itemized statement or bill detailing in plain language,
191 prospective patient of any revision to the estimate. 220 comprehensible to an ordinary layperson, the specific nature of
192 4. In the estimate, the facility must notify the patient or 221 charges or expenses incurred by the patient.;—whieh—3n The
193| prospective patient that services may be provided in the health 222 initial statement or bill bitling shall be provided within 7
194 care facility by the facility as well as by other health care 223| days after the patient’s discharge or release from the facility
195| providers that may separately bill the patient. 224| or after a request for such statement or bill, whichever is
196 5. The facility shall take action to educate the public 225| later. The initial statement or bill must contain a statement of
197| that such estimates are available upon request. 226| specific services received and expenses incurred by date for
198 6. Failure to timely provide the estimate pursuant to this 227 such items of service, enumerating in detail as prescribed by
199| paragraph shall result in a fine of $500 for each instance of 228| the agency the constituent components of the services received
200| the facility’s failure to provide the requested information. 229| within each department of the licensed facility and including
201 230 wunit price data on rates charged by the licensed facility—as
202| The provision of an estimate does not preclude the actual 231 p= ribed by +theageney. The statement or bill must identify
203| charges from exceeding the estimate. 232| each item as paid, pending payment by a third party, or pending
204 (c) Each facility shall make available on its website a 233| payment by the patient and must include the amount due, if
205| hyperlink to the health-related data, including quality measures 234| applicable. If an amount is due from the patient, a due date
206| and statistics that are disseminated by the agency pursuant to 235| must be included. The initial statement or bill must inform the

Page 7 of 51 Page 8 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496 Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496 7-01281C-16 20161496
236| patient or the patient’s survivor or legal guardian, as 265| simitar words sufficient to identify elearly and plainty the
237| appropriate, to contact the patient’s insurer or health 266 rership—state £ theJ1iecensed—faeility+ Each itemized
238| maintenance organization regarding the patient’s cost-sharing 267 statement or bill must prominently display the telephone phere
239| responsibilities. 268| number of the medical facility’s patient liaison who is
240 2. Any subsequent statement or bill provided to a patient 269 responsible for expediting the resolution of any billing dispute
241 or to the patient’s survivor or legal guardian, as appropriate, 270| between the patient, or the patient’s survivor or legal guardian
242 relating to the episode of care must include all of the 271 R+ r—her—repr atative, and the billing department.
243 information required by subparagraph 1., with any revisions 272 H—An—temized—bill shall be provided—on to—th
244 clearly delineated. 273| patient!sphysicianat—+the physieianlsreguest——at—n Hrereer
245 3.42)r+a)> Each suweh statement or bill provided submitted 274 —Fa—anvy—biting—for i wbseguent—to—theSnitialt
246| pursuant to this subsection seetien: 275| bittingfer—sueh F7i —Ehe—Ppatient;—or +the patient!
247 a.d= Must May—smet include notice eharges of hospital-based 276 grviver—eortegal—guardian,—ma teet—at—hit r—her—option—t
248| physicians and other health care providers who bill ifPbililed 2717 = + & = f—the detaited statement—of speeits Fird
249 separately. 278 ¥ red—ane SSacyes ineurred—feor—ecach sueh item—of 7t &
250 b.2= May not include any generalized category of expenses 279| previded—in—sub tieon—)—
251 such as “other” or “miscellaneous” or similar categories. 280 y—Ne—physieian—dentist pediatrie physieian,—or Ticensed
252 c.3+ Must Shadd list drugs by brand or generic name and not 281 foetlity may add—teo—thePprt harged—byany—thirdpart Bt
253| refer to drug code numbers when referring to drugs of any sort. 282 for—= Fit r—handling—charge—representing—a taetuatt
254 d.4~ Must Shatd specifically identify physical, 283 inevrred—as—anitemof perse;—hew r—the physiteian—derntists
255| occupational, or speech therapy treatment as to the date, type, 284| podhatrie physicior;—eor ticensedfacitity—+ reitted—te—fais
256| and length of treatment when such therapy treatment is a part of 285 mpersationfor atlt professieonat Firt rendered—The ameount
257| the statement or bill. 286 £—£h i r—handlingcharge;—3f any;——shalt b t—forth
258 o —Anyperson—receiving o statement pursuant—to—this 287| etearity—in—thebill +tothe patients
259| seetion —shall befully and aececuratelty informed—as—to—ecach charge 288 4+ —Eaeh ticensedfaeility notoperated by the state shalt
260| and FvE provided—by—theinstitution preparing—th tetements 289| previder—priorteo provision eof any nRonemergen e
261 (2) 43} on—eachitemized—statement——submittedpursuvant—to 290| serviecesT——a written goodfatth estimate of reaseonably
262| subseetieon—{I)—there—shall appear the words A FOR-PROFIT Hor 291| antieipated—echaryg for—thefaeility totreat—the patient!
263 B L s e B L T e e e Lo el 292 ndition—upen—written reqguest fea—preospeetd patient Th-
264| CENTER) LICENSED BY THE STATE OF FLORIDAY or substantially 293 stimate—shall be provided—to—the prospective patient within

Page 9 of 51 Page 10 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496

B 3 g £ +h ot £ +h + Th 4 £
€ —€ 1t Ermate—may

Hh

Hh
qr
b
L
N
th
qr
D.
qr
g

b +
=)

b
H
Q.
h
-
qt
>
b
b
b
.

17 3 3 T 1 |
=as Ao P¥ Tae—atr SR TASYE Per Fr g —prannea

= S i s & faith I + £

Roncmergen lective admission o written good faith estima £

K h—inf Fa 3 1
TOFrmatron—* VS

a4 b £hi N + 3 h

T ISE=iioasy =3 regqurree—o 3 === TOH

Hh
n
b
b

th
b
fh

qr
g
th
ft
<
tth

Page 11 of 51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16
p‘fevﬂ?ée_é}:}e_feq’b}es%ed_]?ﬁ_ﬁe‘fﬂ*aﬁeﬁf' 1 3 O
(3)4%> If a licensed facility places a patient on

20161496

observation status rather than inpatient status, observation
services shall be documented in the patient’s discharge papers.

The patient or the patient’s survivor or legal guardian prexy

shall be notified of observation services through discharge
papers, which may also include brochures, signage, or other
forms of communication for this purpose.

(4)+43#6+ A licensed facility shall make available to a
patient all records necessary for verification of the accuracy
of the patient’s statement or bill within 10 36 business days
after the request for such records. The records werifieation
infeormation must be made available in the facility’s offices and
through electronic means that comply with the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). Such records
must shatd be available to the patient before prier—te and after
payment of the statement or bill er—eladim. The facility may not

charge the patient for making such verification records
available; however, the facility may charge its usual fee for
providing copies of records as specified in s. 395.3025.

(5)43+% Each facility shall establish a method for
reviewing and responding to questions from patients concerning
the patient’s itemized statement or bill. Such response shall be
provided within 7 business 36 days after the date a question is
received. If the patient is not satisfied with the response, the
facility must provide the patient with the address and contact

information of the consumer advocate as provided in s. 627.0613

agerey to which the issue may be sent for review.

; Y | faciid bald . ;

Page 12 of 51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496
data +that 3 Bli d by +h £ Health
ceta—that s —pubtishedby—th e for—Health—Car
dministrati PR 408 05 (3) (1) The £ ' + hall
ditstratiron—pursuan 35 The—faeids Frat+
1 + £ 1 thaot +1 £ +
pta a—HotE Th—Ehe—¥ pEtror—area—that—theFTnformation—IS
1 1ab1 1 + 11 d the £ 14t Int + NS
avattabt + trontreatty—ana—the—faceii ity rternet—websit

Section 2. Section 395.3012, Florida Statutes, is created
to read:

395.3012 Penalties for unconscionable prices.—

(1) The agency may impose administrative fines based on the

findings of the consumer advocate’s investigation of billing

complaints pursuant to s. 627.0613(6).

(2) The administrative fines for noncompliance with s.

395.301 are the greater of $2,500 per violation or double the

amount of the charges that exceed fair charges.

Section 3. Present subsections (1) through (5) of section
400.165, Florida Statutes, are redesignated as subsections (2)
through (6), respectively, a new subsection (1) is added to that
section, and present subsection (4) of that section is amended,
to read:

400.165 Itemized resident billing, form and content
prescribed by the agency.—

(1) Every licensed nursing home shall provide upon the

request of a resident or prospective resident or his or her

legal guardian a written, good faith estimate of reasonably

anticipated charges for the resident at the nursing home. The

nursing home must provide the estimate to the requestor within 7

business days after receiving the request. The nursing home must

also provide information disclosing the nursing home’s payment

Page 13 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409

Florida Senate - 2016

7-01281C-16

SB 1496

20161496

plans, discounts, and other available assistance and its

collection procedures.

(5)44r In any billing for services subsequent to the

initial billing for such services,

the resident, or the

resident’s survivor or legal guardian, may elect, at his or her

option, to receive a copy of the detailed statement of specific

services received and expenses incurred for each such item of
service as provided in subsection (2) subseetion—{1).
Section 4. Subsection (1) of section 400.487, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

400.487 Home health service agreements; physician’s,

physician assistant’s, and advanced registered nurse

practitioner’s treatment orders; patient assessment;

establishment and review of plan of care; provision of services;

orders not to resuscitate.—

(1) (a) Services provided by a

home health agency must be

covered by an agreement between the home health agency and the

patient or the patient’s legal representative specifying the

home health services to be provided, the rates or charges for

services paid with private funds, and the sources of payment,

which may include Medicare, Medicaid, private insurance,

personal funds, or a combination thereof. A home health agency

providing skilled care must make an assessment of the patient’s

needs within 48 hours after the start of services.

(b) Every licensed home health agency shall provide upon

the request of a prospective patient or his or her legal

guardian a written, good faith estimate of reasonably

anticipated charges for the prospective patient for services

provided by the home health agency.

The home health agency must

Page 14 of 51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

words underlined are additions.




410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496

provide the estimate to the requestor within 7 business days

after receiving the request. The home health agency must inform

the prospective patient, or his or her legal guardian, that he

or she may contact the prospective patient’s health insurer or

health maintenance organization for additional information

concerning cost-sharing responsibilities. The home health agency

must also provide information disclosing the home health

agency’s payment plans, discounts, and other available

assistance and its collection procedures.

Section 5. Subsection (23) is added to section 400.934,

Florida Statutes, to read:
400.934 Minimum standards.—As a requirement of licensure,
home medical equipment providers shall:

(23) Provide upon the request of a prospective patient or

his or her legal guardian a written, good faith estimate of

reasonably anticipated charges for the prospective patient for

services provided by the home medical equipment provider. The

home medical equipment provider must provide the estimate to the

requestor within 7 business days after receiving the request.

The home medical equipment provider must inform the prospective

patient, or his or her legal guardian, that he or she may

contact the prospective patient’s health insurer or health

maintenance organization for additional information concerning

cost-sharing responsibilities. The home medical equipment

provider must also provide information disclosing the home

medical equipment provider’s payment plans, discounts, and other

available assistance and its collection procedures.

Section 6. Section 408.05, Florida Statutes, is amended to

read:

Page 15 of 51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16
408.05 Florida Center for Health Information and

Transparency PelieyAnalysis.—
(1) ESTABLISHMENT.—The agency shall establish and maintain

20161496

a Florida Center for Health Information and Transparency to

collect, compile, coordinate, analyze, index, and disseminate

Poli h| ; Th + hall o] N h 3
Por3ey FaT TS+t Fr E= Ao SOTESH— HpreRehsT
h 1tk 4nf 4 + + 1 £ +h 11 o
Aot TRTOrMatroR—SyStem—to—PE FEr To¥r—Eh EE= o7
TR I =] 4 1 ind 3 a4 3 + 3
T tTofy rarhpatrohy—ahiaTr TS RGeXIRGgT—G&T Aot ohy
| 413 £ £ bhoth £1311 11 taod g + +
oGt Za T oR T—oot—PuEP Ty E=o S—aher =233

health-related data and statistics. The center shall be staffed

as necessary with—publiehealth perts;—biestatisticiansy
=) P + 1 + RN 14 + Py
information m—afatysts—heatth—pols perEsy Frofi 7
ard—ether stafi = a¥ry to carry out its functions.

(2) HEALTH-RELATED DATA.—The mprehenst heatth
irnformation tem—operated—by—the Florida Center for Health

Information and Transparency Peltiey—Anraltysis shall identify £he
best available data sets, compile new data when specifically
authorized, data—seuwrees and promote the use ecerdinate—the
eempitation of extant health-related data and statistics. The

center must maintain any data sets in existence before July 1,

2016, unless such data sets duplicate information that is

readily available from other credible sources, and may ard
purposefutty collect or compile data on the following:

S ] + 2 1 1 = 13 £ +h 1 1 £
& poprutation—ineluding 1+£ o arey—thedneidern £
yFarious—acute—and—<chronie ilinesses,—andinfantond maternat
VASNY Th 3 + £ 11 a g3 Bili+ £+ o+
or—Fhe—impact—of3tin arnd—disakitt £—th &
bl +h + ot + ] + £ + 1
poputation—on—th ot romy—and—on—other—asp £—+th

Page 16 of 51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496 Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496 7-01281C-16 20161496
468| weldl-beingof the peopte—inthis stater 497 In order to disseminate and facilitate the availability of
469 {ter—Environmentals tat—eand—eother health hazards— 498| preduee comparable and uniform health information ard—statisties
470 {eh—Heatth—knowledge—andpracts £f—+thepeopte—in—thi 499| feor—the—¢ Topment—ofpotiey—r mmendations, the agency shall
471| state—anddeterminantsof health and nutritional practices—and 500| perform the following functions:
472| statuss 501 (a) Collect and compile information on and coordinate the
473 (a)+e)» Health resources, including licensed physieiansy 502 activities of state agencies involved in providing the—<design
474| dentists;—nurses;—and—other health care practitioners 503| and—implementation—of—+th mprehenst health information to
475| prefessiernalts, by specialty and type of practice. Such data 504 consumers sSystEem.
476| shall include information collected by the Department of Health 505 (b) Promote data sharing through dissemination of state-
477 pursuant to ss. 458.3191 and 459.0081. 506 collected health data by making such data available,
478 (b) Health service inventories, including ame€ acute care, 507 transferable, and readily usable Urdertal * arehy
479| long-term care, and other institutional care facilities faeidity 508 & lopment—and atuation—respeeting—th mprehenst health
480| suppties and specific services provided by hospitals, nursing 509 infeormation tefm.
481| homes, home health agencies, and other licensed health care 510 (c) Contract with a vendor to provide a consumer-friendly,
482 facilities. 511 Internet-based platform that allows a consumer to research the
483 (c)+4£)» Service utilization for licensed health care 512 cost of health care services and procedures and allows for price
484 facilities efhealth—ecare by Etyp £ provider. 513| comparison. The Internet-based platform must allow a consumer to
485 (d)+4e)» Health care costs and financing, including trends in 514 search by condition or service bundles that are comprehensible
486| health care prices and costs, the sources of payment for health 515 to an ordinary layperson and may not require registration, a
487 care services, and federal, state, and local expenditures for 516 security password, or user identification. The vendor must be a
488| health care. 517| nonprofit research institute that is qualified under s. 1874 of
489 {—Famity formation—growth,—and -+ Tutien- 518 the Social Security Act to receive Medicare claims data and that
490 (e)+4&)> The extent of public and private health insurance 519| receives claims data from multiple private insurers nationwide.
491 coverage in this state. 520 The vendor must have:
492 (f)+45> Specific guality-of-care initiatives involving Fhe 521 1. A national database consisting of at least 15 billion
493| euatity—eof—eare—providedby various health care providers when 522 claim lines of administrative claims data from multiple payors
494| extant data is not adequate to achieve the objectives of the 523| capable of being expanded by adding third-party payors,
495 initiatives. 524 including employers with health plans covered by the Employee
496 (3) COMPREHENSTVE HEALTH INFORMATION TRANSPARENCY SYSTEM.— 525 Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA).

Page 17 of 51 Page 18 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496 Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496 7-01281C-16 20161496
526 2. A well-developed methodology for analyzing claims data 555| collected and the use of such data.
527 within defined service bundles. 556 (g) Monitor data collection procedures and test data
528 3. A bundling methodology that is available in the public 557| quality to facilitate the dissemination of data that is
529 domain to allow for consistency and comparison of state and 558 accurate, valid, reliable, and complete.
530 national benchmarks with local regions and specific providers. 559 F—Establish minimum health-care—relateddata ts—whiech
531 {er—Revi £ tatistiecatl—aectivitd £ state—agenet £ 560| aremn SEY—en—& rEirningbasis—teo—futfitt—+th e
532| ensure—thatthey are—consistentwith the comprehensivehealtth 561 reguirement £—h rter—and—whichshall beused by stat
533| infermatien Eeft 562| agenedt o Teeting—and mpitingheatth—ecare—related—data
534 (d) Develop written agreements with local, state, and 563 The—ager ot periodically—revi ngoing—heattheare—data
535 federal agencies to facilitate f£e¥ the sharing of data related 564 tteetions—of the bepartment—of Health and other state agenet
536| to health care health—ecare-relateddata—-or usingthe faeititd 565| +e—determine—if—th Heetions—are—being rdueted—in
537| and FE £ suveh—ageneies—State ageneies;—toecalt—healtth 566| = rdan with—th tabtished—minimum + £—dat
538 shetts—and—other ageres wrder—stat seract—shalt assist 567 e tebish advisory—standards—+ Fotre—the—ghattt £
539| #hk rEer—in—obtainings mpiting—and—transferringhealth 568| heatthstatistical—andepidemiological<data Treetiony
540 are—relateddatamaintained by stateand local ageneiess 569| pr ing—and—anatysis—by teoeal——state;—andprivat
541 Hritten agreementsmust speetriv—the types; methods——ard 570| ergapizatiens—
542| periedieityofdata Frang and—speeify—<the—typ £f—data—that 571 e —Pr il tandards—for—thepublicationof health—ear
543| wiltl—betransferred—to—the ecenter. 572| =xrelateddatareportedpursuant—tothis seetion whiech ensurethe
544 (e) Establish by rule the types of data collected, 573 reportingof aecurate;—valid;,—reliables mptete—arnd sparabt
545| compiled, processed, used, or shared. Beeisiensregarding FrEer 574 data—Svebh —standard Houtd—inetude advicser SERTRGS—te—ser
546| data—sets—should bemade basedonconsultationwith the State 575| ef—+thedata—regarding—the status andgualtity of any date
547 AsumerHealtth Information andPeolt dviser vreit—and 576| <xreportedbyoravaitable from—th FrEer
548| ether publie and private users regardingthe types—of data—whieh 5717 (h) 44} Develop Preseribe—standards—for—the maintenance—and
549| shoultdbe—ecoltlecetedand their uses— The ecenter shaltl establiish 578| preservationof the ecenterls dataThis shoultdinetude methods
550 tandardized-—means—for tleeting health information and 579 for archiving data, retrieval of archived data, and data editing
551| statistiesunder taws and rules administered by the ageney— 580| and verification.
552 (f) Consult with contracted vendors, the State Consumer 581 {(F—Ensure—that striet—qgualit rErol—measur a¥
553| Health Information and Policy Advisory Council, and other public 582| maintained forthe di mination—-of data—through publicationsy
554| and private users regarding the types of data that should be 583 tudies—oruserreqguestss

Page 19 of 51 Page 20 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496

(i) - Make Develop—in—econjunetion—with the Stat Aoumer
H 1+ T + 3 a Dol 1 = 1 +
Health Information andPoli dviseor aReil, and implement o

long—rangepran—for making available health care quality
measures and—finaneiat—data that will allow consumers to compare

outcomes and other performance measures for health care

services. The—health ecareguality measur and—financial data
h + 3 1 h 1 1 h 14 £ ] + ah 14
pharmaceuticals—physicians—health ecare faecilities;——and health
1 =] 4 PR m 11 + +
prans—andmanaged—<car ntities—The ageney shall—upda B
1 = + £ ot £ + 3 1 ot 11
pran—and—report—on—th oty £ implementation—annually=
T 11 1 i) + 1 =i ESEE S + 1561
The—agen hall—al ot he—plan—and aEus—repert—availabld
£ N 514 s T + bad + £ + +
he—publs a—3ts—Intern rebsite—As—par £ theplan;—*th
hall 14 42 £ £ A+ £ £
agen hall—ddentif he—pr ss—and—timefram for
1 | ot B 1 + 1 | ESEE S = da+3
implementation barriers—toimplementation——and = mmendation
£ : + 1 + + i fed b N T P I +
£ —chang in—thelaw—thatmay b free & B gistatur
1 1 + + N 1 14 1 £ +h ] + 1
Hminate—thebarriers- pretiminar lemen f—+the—plan—th
- I FEXeRt SafeEi iitdi:eaEEESI 11}?&Eief1E
144+ = + A £ 4 A + 4 N
guatityindicators;—and performan = me—and—patien haryg
dat 17 +od £ K 1+h 313 4+ 3 +
eata 3 from—health—eare—faecilitsd PUESHaR -
w : el "
3 ; 34 3 3 + ” + 3 i A,
inpatient—eguality dndiecator e B ame—meaning—as—the

4o ; i g A} PR P + +
regulations required by this state, or a national entd hat
3 N +h ESEN S Th hall deat 1 3 NE h
providers,—or by other states—The ageneyshall determinewhich
nditions procedures, health care quality measures—and

Page 21 of 51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

20161496

1 + 3 a 1 + Bl + 3
rgantration—wh andards—incorpera mparabte—regulation
N +h + +h Nati 13+ i +h Toint
reguired—bythis state;—the National Ouality Ferum—th int
1 iy 4o o £ 14 3 4 N
mrtssieon—on reditation—of Healthear rgantrattons,—th
I £ 14 R g 3+ +h fal + £
gerey—forHeattheare+ sreh—and—Ouats B Arers—for
D fal 4 ul a-D + 1 21 + 3 1 + 3+
Disea atrol—andPr rEionr—or o —similar natienal—entit
£hot PR | + A =] + N £ £ 14
o abtish candard measyE he—performarn £ heatth
1 & B +h ESEE S
are—providers;—orb ther statess
hrva dat 3 3 1 + 3 + do+ + = 1 +
Hrer—d it rg—whiteh patier Harge—dats diset —Eh
2 £ 1 4
ek urted—eharyg a—fregquentlty performed pr e are
+ 1 = + = +h £ =i .5
PE e diagrostie—pr dures—the—rang £ pr dar harges
£ ik £+ 1 + + a5 +aod 3 +
fromhtghest west—average ¥ rue—per—adiusted—patient
P + A o + + A 4+
dayr—averag t—per—adiu d—patientday—and—averas Ber
admission;—ameong—others—
- 7 7
3 R £ N 14+ 1 1 £ 4 4+
premium t—data—fromhealth plans ticensedpursuan hapter

Page 22 of 51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




642
643
644
645
646
647
648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664
665
666
667
668
669
670

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496

ditats ot 3 + h| +
rage—areas; accreartation StatesS premium Es—ptahn £57
: 3 £ 1 £i4+ + &
premium—ineres —rahg f—Peneft 7 payments—and
deduetibl = a £ alas + dent 1
SeeueETo=T TaeeuTra aha—Speeer taims—paymeRty regentiat
£ oh L e - £ id £ + e g
f—physteians, humber £—pr Tae¥rs,Rames—otf netEwork—pr TS ¥Sy
& 1ol ' +h + ] 1 1 11 1abl
anehosprtats—Iin—the network—Health—pian Frat+—smad Svattabt
£ + dat : ' that 3 + +1
hre—ageney weh—data—or Information—that—I5+ HErertly
tad & +h 1 ££2
reporteea the—agen r—Ef £+ =
3 Det ' + thod a £ £ £ 5 = h| £
—b FHTF the—method—ana—format—feor publie—edaised == £
dat tad £ o to +hd h— Th 11
data—reporteapurstan i s—paragraph—Theageney Shatt—mal
o det 3 Fa] 5 = 3 £ £ the State O
* € FRIRctron—Pasea—upor—Rpvt—ftrom—the—Stat FrSumer
H 1 Trf 1 a4 Pols A sz fal | + e
HeatthInformationanadPoliey ASFISoFE et At o MEntmahy
the—data—shall be made—available on—the ageneyls—Internet
ot 3 P S 11 + duet
bsitein—amanner—that—al+ Asumer £ naget—ahn
' 4 h +that 11 + + 3 +
rteractsr areh—that—att Hef = SrFrer FPaE Fr
i f 4 £ £ i Th ot g
rrformatron—for—speerfre—P¥ rae¥rs—Th bsite—must—Rretua
e addits 1 3nf 1 det 3 +
veh—adarttronat—informatieon—as—3s—¢ rRRee—H aF ASHE

i ot Al
mIarmugiyapproprIat Si-=acicsa At

4 publish i+ ot ds ted—eh £ £

4—Publishon—+ vebsi Tre urted—echarges—forno—+£ ¥
£ 150 of & + 1 £ a—adult g Aiatrs
than—+ f—he—wm oAy performeadagutt—andpeairatrt

= 1 a4 + £ + 3 3 4 a4 £ g
pE Sacz= —iaeludingoutpatient; Iinpatient; diagnostice,——and

Page 23 of 51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

671
672
673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683
684
685
686
687
688
689
690
691
692
693
694
695
696
697
698
699

Florida Sen

7-01281C-16

ate - 2016

SB 1496

20161496

ot 4
pE rEats: PE¥ duress
4—TIECHNICAL SESTANCE
(e)}—T + 17 + 1 + +
{teo—Th rEer—shatdt—provia rRieat—asSSistan
: £ | health o1 ' e
person r—organization rgaged—irr—heatthplanning activities
+ £faat £ ottt 17 tad 4 i led by +
Fa—Eh ££ == =3 f—statist: 1 d—are mpited—b Fr
+ il + 11 1 de—t £o11 it 1
rEer—TFh rEer—shati——at Provie he—fottowing—aaditionat
technsd 1 i : .
techniecat—assistan Vi 3
1 et albl tdentifizd + + 4
I—Establish—Ppr SHEHE Feentifying—th Freumstan aRaeE
+ + W+ £ a—&
viarrehy—the—pia = hieh—the—persons—fromwhor,—ana—th
+haod =N + +h +
methods—bywhtcha personta vre—data—from—th rEery
T g i + £ a i £
Fpetuding—PpE Sac=2 FRIRG—Fegquestsy Fr raering—of
+ £ handls + a4 ot g
reet 7 e ram for—hanaling—reagn —arFrer her—pr Sacsa
4+ £ ik IR N £+ r Aot m N
Fr ¥ to—faeititat Fe—us £—th reer cata—TF B
tant ] + + howuld L £ dota +3 1
tent—P ote;—th rEer—shouta—provia vrrent—data—timedy
: + o £ 513 : 3
H—FresSpon ree: from—pubit F—Ppriva GgeRct -
D a + aot 4 1 +h
—Provide—assistan Sicasics S== aRe—use¥rs—Fn—th
£ datab g : a 3 13
aFres f—aatabe e STghy GEvey—aeStghy SHRPTHRg—PE SHHEe Sy

h 1tk lated dat +
Aeatth—ea¥ relatea—eaata =

3 Identifrh 1+ 3 £ 3 il

—raentrEy ACaTrEtn—€a¥ SEa—gapS—ana—P¥ e ARreaT

f o £ E B £ 3 3 £ i

S5 SEaH € e r—PpuoTT r—prIvat R ZatroRS—Tor MeetErhyg
a 4 14+ dat =
aocumertea—hReatrEh—€ea¥ Sorta—Reeass

& T +h + + 11 a—+ J+3 ul 4 £
—7F B tent—possible;—respond—tomuttiple reguests—for
i nf 3 + 1 11 tad byt + 1 1abl
information—hnot—ecurrently HHeetead—by—th rEer—or—avairtabt
£ +h N taiEsats dat 11 +3
from her wrees—byinttiatingdata HHeetion~

CODING: Words

Page 24 of 51
strieken are deletions; words underlined

are additions.




700
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716
717
718
719
720
721
722
723
724
725
726
7217
728

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496

+ 1 ot £ i 4 +
her—Foeals tate;—federal;—andpriva SicisraacEa Ta—eoraer
+ £h + £ tantigl £ dat
ST Fr WHe—t Fr rrer—of potentiat === f—data
hieh teod but whieh + L 1abd £ +h +
vhireh—are—reguested—bu hreh—are—n avaitable—from—th rEer-
g _n a+ o £ dat + 1 1okl
—F ponc—to—reguests—for data—whireh arenot—avatriabie—in
iG] 4 NI 1 ] dat +
pabtishea—form by Inrtiating speciat fptter—run A—aata
i 1abl to +th +
avaitabte—& B rEer-
9 _ M + i + i healt £ +
—Menirtor—innovations—inhealtth—Information hrelogys
£ + a—+h £ 1+ £ = a L pEad
rformatiesy—and—th Frafre fF—heatthinformation—andmarntatn
+ £+ K 1 + £ 4+ = 1 +
a—repostter f—teehniecal—r S== uwpport—the 6 Topment
£ healt + ]
f—a—heatth informationnetworks
)T 17 driaist g e +
tor—Tthe—agen Fatt—admint r—ahage; o moRTtor —gran
+ £ £3 4 3 3 3 1 14k 3£
to—not—f profrtorganizations,; regironatheatthinformation
3 = 13 health—d + + P 3 thot
rarzatrons, pubiireheatth departmentss ¥ tar SEFeRETE thar
e 1 £ 1 3 3 1 P + L nd
ubmit—proposats—forpianningy —mplementationy F—Eraining
+ + A + g ] + £ 1+ 1 1
pre: to—advat hre—a Topmen f—a—health—information
+ ] + + 11 b tad £ th
Fr FR—ARy—g¥atr AEFar Fati—o aTgated RSt H
ffoeti + £ +the haglth 3nF +3 a +
ffeetsx TECo f—the—health—information—pProT £~
) Th a1l + + a
r—he—agen hatt—3nitiates ¥ —ahage;—and
atuate the integration of health ecare data from ecach stat
ageney—that—eolleetsystores, and reports—onheatth eare—issues
g thot dot 1 1okl + heglt s
Szacamiicg) that—data—avatrtab+ aRy—heatth—earepractitioner

h | 1

h| h|
TSR oG Caa-===ct

Page 25 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

729
730
731
732
733
734
735
736
737
738
739
740
741
742
743
744
745
746
747
748
749
750
751
752
753
754
755
756
757

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496

- ] e 1+ FE + + 3 bl
HEveys—pubtieations—proviaiagheatth FEFSEE A—tepteat

£17 £ 4+ + oo g + + 11 14
profil R e A Lew pieat—heatth
o ] 1 44
et publieations—
(j) 4y The—ecenter—shallpubltishy Make available;—and
i minate;promptliy andas—widely aspractieablesr the results

of special health surveys, health care research, and health care

evaluations conducted or supported under this section. Any

Bblieati b—th + £ 3 Tud tat £ of +h
pubtrection—H Hr rEer—my Hretude—a TEemeR —Eh
Timitats + hIETS 4 let £ +
Hamirtation Ar—Ehe—guat ity aceuracy;ane T+ Fr £—th
(e} T + 13 i d L ad ; + 4
te—Th rEe¥r—Ssholt—provide Thaexing, abstractingy
1atd 513 4 dot ; 1 ; +
raRrstatiron; publtireation,——ana her Y Teaaing S HROF¥
££ 4 A 4+ 1 A4 3 + o £ 1 1+h PR
ffeets apd—timely—aisseminatiron—of health—ear tatistiess
(7 + hall b 1151 £ blishi
teh—Th rEer ratt—be—responsible—for pubitishing—ana
1 . . ] ; ’ s
y Tl 4+ hall b | + +h + +
—FH rEer—shatt—be—responsibier—t Fr teR
11 abl £ ' f et £ |
¥ BE are—avattapbte;—for regetRg—a—vatrt f—speetat
tatiat 1abl £ heals 13 1 1
aEESET avartabte—feorheatth—pots et —partireudtart
£ +h ; £ 5 I 13 ; Th £ hall 1
for—the—reviewof publiePpot ssues—Th rEer—shatt—e Top
B ieh £ +£h £ r daot s 4
a—P¥ Sy —whieh—user f—th HEeF data—are—pertrodiealdy
4 a4 e 1 da+ 4 +h 1+ +h
Hrveyea—regardrng—erirtiecal—dotaneeds—and—the—¥resut £—th
i g g in-det A hich i o]
HEFEY asiadered—ia—determintrg—whieh—spectal——survey ¥
tadd 111 B dueted—Th + hall 151
Eaett Wittt et S—TFh reer—shatd teet—problems—in
healt £ 13 1 1 dat
heatth—eare—for—F a¥reh—potiey—anat r—speerat—eaata
13 +4 the basi £ +hed 1 ; ot
- rons—eonr—the—bast f—theirJeoeal; regionadt; or sta

Page 26 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




758
759
760
761
762
763
764
765
766
767
768
769
770
771
772
773
774
775
776
7717
778
779
780
781
782
783
784
785
786

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496
. . . S Eipitd ) ]

151 N a + {2 £ 13 £ £ + 11l
problem—and—opportunits for—appltication—of—+th Eaey

(4)+6) PROVIDER DATA REPORTING.—This section does not
confer on the agency the power to demand or require that a
health care provider or professional furnish information,
records of interviews, written reports, statements, notes,
memoranda, or data other than as expressly required by law. The

agency may not establish an all-payor claims database or a

comparable database without express legislative authority.

(5) 4+ BUDGET; FEES.—

(a) The Legislature intends that funding for the Florida
Center for Health Information and Transparency Peliey—Anralysis
be appropriated from the General Revenue Fund.

(b) The Florida Center for Health Information and
Transparency PeltieyAnaltysis may apply for and receive and

accept grants, gifts, and other payments, including property and

services, from any governmental or other public or private
entity or person and make arrangements as to the use of same,
including the undertaking of special studies and other projects
relating to health-care-related topics. Funds obtained pursuant
to this paragraph may not be used to offset annual

appropriations from the General Revenue Fund.

(c) The center may charge such reasonable fees for services

as the agency prescribes by rule. The established fees may not

exceed the reasonable cost for such services. Fees collected may

not be used to offset annual appropriations from the General

Revenue Fund.

(6) 48y STATE CONSUMER HEALTH INFORMATION AND POLICY

Page 27 of 51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

787
788
789
790
791
792
793
794
795
796
7917
798
799
800
801
802
803
804
805
806
807
808
809
810
811
812
813
814
815

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16
ADVISORY COUNCIL.—

20161496

(a) There is established in the agency the State Consumer

Health Information and Policy Advisory Council to assist the

center in—reviewing—th mprehenst heatthinformation sEemy
1 ] a3 + 1 ESEEE 4+ o 11 + o + =i a3 + 3
inetuding—thetdentifications 1+ tony endardizations
h 1 = = + 3 £ K 14+ h il +od da+ £ =i g
hrering——and rdinationof health-related datar—fraud and
abuse—data;—andprofessiconalandfacility Iicensing data—amony
£o4 1 o k] 1 A 2 + PR A+ 4
federaly ste;—teoeal;—andprivat et et ¥ mrrerre
1 + £ £ Kl h 1+ h 13 | 1 g
rpE RO for—purp £ publichealth;—poliey analysis,—and
transparen £ asumer—healtth—eare—infermation. The council

consists skallt—eensist of the following members:

1. An employee of the Executive Office of the Governor, to
be appointed by the Governor.

2. An employee of the Office of Insurance Regulation, to be
appointed by the director of the office.

3. An employee of the Department of Education, to be
appointed by the Commissioner of Education.

4. Ten persons, to be appointed by the Secretary of Health
Care Administration, representing other state and local
agencies, state universities, business and health coalitions,
local health councils, professional health-care-related
associations, consumers, and purchasers.

(b) Each member of the council shall be appointed to serve

for a term of 2 years following the date of appointment;—exeept
h

+ £ o a3 £o11

£ Pt 11 i +
23 E=iis —appoTrRtHeh Ao e E EaSE=ES E=2aC] +r

vacancy shall be filled by appointment for the remainder of the
term, and each appointing authority retains the right to

reappoint members whose terms of appointment have expired.

Page 28 of 51

words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496 Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496 7-01281C-16 20161496
816 (c) The council may meet at the call of its chair, at the 845 Statutes, 1s amended to read:
817 request of the agency, or at the request of a majority of its 846 408.061 Data collection; uniform systems of financial
818| membership, but the council must meet at least quarterly. 847 reporting; information relating to physician charges;
819 (d) Members shall elect a chair and vice chair annually. 848 confidential information; immunity.—
820 (e) A majority of the members constitutes a quorum, and the 849 (1) The agency shall require the submission by health care
821| affirmative vote of a majority of a quorum is necessary to take 850 facilities, health care providers, and health insurers of data
822| action. 851| necessary to carry out the agency’s duties and to facilitate
823 (f) The council shall maintain minutes of each meeting and 852 transparency in health care pricing data and quality measures.
824 shall make such minutes available to any person. 853| Specifications for data to be collected under this section shall
825 (g) Members of the council shall serve without compensation 854 be developed by the agency and applicable contract vendors, with
826| but shall be entitled to receive reimbursement for per diem and 855| the assistance of technical advisory panels including
827| travel expenses as provided in s. 112.061. 856| representatives of affected entities, consumers, purchasers, and
828 (h) The council’s duties and responsibilities include, but 857 such other interested parties as may be determined by the
829 are not limited to, the following: 858 agency.
830 1. To develop a mission statement, goals, and a plan of 859 (a) Data submitted by health care facilities, including the
831 action for the identification, collection, standardization, 860 facilities as defined in chapter 395, shall include, but are not
832 sharing, and coordination of health-related data across federal, 861 limited to: case-mix data, patient admission and discharge data,
833| state, and local government and private sector entities. 862| hospital emergency department data which shall include the
834 2. To develop a review process to ensure cooperative 863 number of patients treated in the emergency department of a
835| planning among agencies that collect or maintain health-related 864 licensed hospital reported by patient acuity level, data on
836| data. 865| hospital-acquired infections as specified by rule, data on
837 3. To create ad hoc issue-oriented technical workgroups on 866 complications as specified by rule, data on readmissions as
838| an as-needed basis to make recommendations to the council. 867 specified by rule, with patient and provider-specific
839 (7)458% APPLICATION TO OTHER AGENCIES.Nething—in This 868| identifiers included, actual charge data by diagnostic groups or
840 section does not shatt limit, restrict, affect, or control the 869 other bundled groupings as specified by rule, financial data,
841 collection, analysis, release, or publication of data by any 870| accounting data, operating expenses, expenses incurred for
842 state agency pursuant to its statutory authority, duties, or 871 rendering services to patients who cannot or do not pay,
843 responsibilities. 872 interest charges, depreciation expenses based on the expected
844 Section 7. Subsection (1) of section 408.061, Florida 873| wuseful life of the property and equipment involved, and

Page 29 of 51 Page 30 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496 Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496 7-01281C-16 20161496
874| demographic data. The agency shall adopt nationally recognized 903| of the insurer that the information submitted is true and
875| risk adjustment methodologies or software consistent with the 904| accurate.
876 standards of the Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality and 905 (d) Data required to be submitted by health care
877| as selected by the agency for all data submitted as required by 906| facilities, health care providers, or health insurers may shald
878| this section. Data may be obtained from documents such as, but 907| not include specific provider contract reimbursement
879 not limited to: leases, contracts, debt instruments, itemized 908 information. However, such specific provider reimbursement data
880| patient statements or bills, medical record abstracts, and 909| shall be reasonably available for onsite inspection by the
881 related diagnostic information. Reported data elements shall be 910| agency as 1is necessary to carry out the agency’s regulatory
882 reported electronically in accordance with rule 59E-7.012, 911 duties. Any such data obtained by the agency as a result of
883 Florida Administrative Code. Data submitted shall be certified 912 onsite inspections may not be used by the state for purposes of
884 by the chief executive officer or an appropriate and duly 913 direct provider contracting and are confidential and exempt from
885| authorized representative or employee of the licensed facility 914| <+he—prevision £ s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State
886| that the information submitted is true and accurate. 915| Constitution.
887 (b) Data to be submitted by health care providers may 916 (e) A requirement to submit data shall be adopted by rule
888| include, but are not limited to: professional organization and 917 if the submission of data is being required of all members of
889 specialty board affiliations, Medicare and Medicaid 918 any type of health care facility, health care provider, or
890| participation, types of services offered to patients, actual 919| health insurer. Rules are not required, however, for the
891 charges to patients as specified by rule, amount of revenue and 920| submission of data for a special study mandated by the
892| expenses of the health care provider, and such other data which 921| Legislature or when information is being requested for a single
893| are reasonably necessary to study utilization patterns. Data 922| health care facility, health care provider, or health insurer.
894 submitted shall be certified by the appropriate duly authorized 923 Section 8. Section 456.0575, Florida Statutes, is amended
895 representative or employee of the health care provider that the 924 to read:
896| information submitted is true and accurate. 925 456.0575 Duty to notify patients.—
897 (c) Data to be submitted by health insurers may include, 926 (1) Every licensed health care practitioner shall inform
898| but are not limited to: claims, payments to health care 927 each patient, or an individual identified pursuant to s.
899 facilities and health care providers as specified by rule, 928 765.401 (1), in person about adverse incidents that result in
900 premium, administration, and financial information. Data 929 serious harm to the patient. Notification of outcomes of care
901 submitted shall be certified by the chief financial officer, an 930 that result in harm to the patient under this section shall not
902| appropriate and duly authorized representative, or an employee 931 constitute an acknowledgment of admission of liability, nor can

Page 31 of 51 Page 32 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496 Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496 7-01281C-16 20161496
932 such notifications be introduced as evidence. 961 (1) The following acts shall constitute grounds for which
933 (2) Every licensed health care practitioner must provide 962 the disciplinary actions specified in subsection (2) may be
934 upon request by a patient, before providing any nonemergency 963 taken:
935| medical services in a facility licensed under chapter 395, a 964 (oo) Failure to comply with fair billing practices pursuant
936| written, good faith estimate of reasonably anticipated charges 965 to s. 627.0613(6).
937 to treat the patient’s condition at the licensed facility. The 966 Section 10. Section 627.0613, Florida Statutes, is amended
938| health care practitioner must provide the estimate to the 967| to read:
939| patient within 7 business days after receiving the request and 968 627.0613 Consumer advocate.—The Chief Financial Officer
940 is not required to adjust the estimate for any potential 969| must appoint a consumer advocate who must represent the general
941 insurance coverage. The health care practitioner must inform the 970| public of the state before the department, amrd the office, and
942 patient that he or she may contact his or her health insurer or 971 other state agencies, as required by this section. The consumer
943| health maintenance organization for additional information 972| advocate must report directly to the Chief Financial Officer,
944 concerning cost-sharing responsibilities. The health care 973| but is not otherwise under the authority of the department or of
945| practitioner must provide information to uninsured patients and 974 any employee of the department. The consumer advocate has such
946| insured patients for whom the practitioner is not a network 975| powers as are necessary to carry out the duties of the office of
947 provider or preferred provider which discloses the 976 consumer advocate, including, but not limited to, the powers to:
948| practitioner’s financial assistance policy, including the 977 (1) Recommend to the department or office, by petition, the
949| application process, payment plans, discounts, and other 978| commencement of any proceeding or action; appear in any
950 available assistance; the practitioner’s charity care policy; 979| proceeding or action before the department or office; or appear
951| and the practitioner’s collection procedures. Such estimate does 980| 1in any proceeding before the Division of Administrative Hearings
952| not preclude the actual charges from exceeding the estimate. 981 relating to subject matter under the jurisdiction of the
953 Failure to provide the estimate in accordance with this 982 department or office.
954 subsection, without good cause, within the 7 business days shall 983 (2) Report to the Agency for Health Care Administration and
955| result in disciplinary action against the health care 984| to the Department of Health any findings resulting from
956| practitioner and a fine of $500 for each instance of the 985| investigation of unresolved complaints concerning the billing
957| practitioner’s failure to provide the requested estimate. 986| practices of any health care facility licensed under chapter 395
958 Section 9. Paragraph (oo) is added to subsection (1) of 987| or any health care practitioner subject to chapter 456.
959 section 456.072, Florida Statutes, to read: 988 (3)+42)» Have access to and use of all files, records, and
960 456.072 Grounds for discipline; penalties; enforcement.— 989| data of the department or office.

Page 33 of 51 Page 34 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496 Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496
7-01281C-16 20161496 7-01281C-16 20161496

990 (4) Have access to any files, records, and data of the 1019 accurate and included all information required pursuant to s.

991| Agency for Health Care Administration and the Department of 1020 395.301.

992| Health which are necessary for the investigations authorized by 1021 (f) The billed amounts were fair charges. As used in this

993| subsection (6). 1022| paragraph, the term “fair charges” means the common and frequent

994 (5)+43) Examine rate and form filings submitted to the 1023 range of charges for patients who are similarly situated

995 office, hire consultants as necessary to aid in the review 1024 requiring the same or similar medical services.

996| process, and recommend to the department or office any position 1025 (7) Provide mediation between providers and patients to

997| deemed by the consumer advocate to be in the public interest. 1026| resolve billing complaints and negotiate arrangements for

998 (6) Maintain a process for receiving and investigating 1027 extended payment schedules.

999 complaints from insured and uninsured patients of health care 1028 (8)+44) Prepare an annual budget for presentation to the
1000 facilities licensed under chapter 395 and health care 1029 Legislature by the department, which budget must be adequate to
1001| practitioners subject to chapter 456 concerning billing 1030| carry out the duties of the office of consumer advocate.

1002 practices. Investigations by the office of the consumer advocate 1031 Section 11. Section 627.6385, Florida Statutes, 1s created
1003| shall be limited to determining compliance with the following 1032| to read:
1004 requirements: 1033 627.6385 Disclosures to policyholders; calculations of cost
1005 (a) The patient was informed before a nonemergency 1034 sharing.—
1006| procedure of expected payments related to the procedure as 1035 (1) Each health insurer shall make available on its
1007 provided in s. 395.301, contact information for health insurers 1036 website:
1008| or health maintenance organizations to determine specific cost- 1037 (a) A method for policyholders to estimate their
1009| sharing responsibilities, and the expected involvement in the 1038 copayments, deductibles, and other cost-sharing responsibilities
1010| procedure of other providers who may bill independently. 1039| for health care services and procedures. Such method of making
1011 (b) The patient was informed of policies and procedures to 1040| an estimate shall be based on service bundles established
1012| gqualify for discounted charges. 1041| pursuant to s. 408.05(3) (c). Estimates do not preclude the
1013 (c) The patient was informed of collection procedures and 1042| actual copayment, coinsurance percentage, or deductible,
1014| given the opportunity to participate in an extended payment 1043| whichever is applicable, from exceeding the estimate.
1015| schedule. 1044 1. Estimates shall be calculated according to the policy
1016 (d) The patient was given a written, personal, and itemized 1045| and known plan usage during the coverage period.
1017 estimate upon request as provided in ss. 395.301 and 456.0575. 1046 2. Estimates shall be made available based on providers
1018 (e) The statement or bill delivered to the patient was 1047 that are in-network or out-of-network.
Page 35 of 51 Page 36 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496 Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496 7-01281C-16 20161496
1048 3. A policyholder must be able to create estimates by any 1077| any premium tax credit limitation imposed by s. 624.5009.
1049 combination of the service bundles established pursuant to s. 1078 Section 12. Subsection (6) and present subsection (7) of
1050 408.05(3) (c) or by a specified provider or a comparison of 1079 section 641.54, Florida Statutes, are amended, present
1051 providers. 1080 subsection (7) of that section is redesignated as subsection
1052 (b) A method for policyholders to estimate their 1081 (9), and a new subsection (7) and subsection (8) are added to
1053 copayments, deductibles, and other cost-sharing responsibilities 1082 that section, to read:
1054| Dbased on a personalized estimate of charges received from a 1083 641.54 Information disclosure.—
1055 facility pursuant to s. 395.301 or a practitioner pursuant to s. 1084 (6) Each health maintenance organization shall make
1056 456.0575. 1085 available to its subscribers on its website or by request the
1057 (c) A hyperlink to the health information, including, but 1086 estimated copayment eepay, coinsurance percentage, or
1058 not limited to, service bundles and quality of care information, 1087 deductible, whichever is applicable, for any covered services as
1059| which is disseminated by the Agency for Health Care 1088| described by the searchable bundles established on a consumer-
1060| Administration pursuant to s. 408.05(3). 1089 friendly, Internet-based platform pursuant to s. 408.05(3) (c) or
1061 (2) Each health insurer shall include in every policy 1090| as described in a personalized estimate received from a facility
1062| delivered or issued for delivery to any person in the state or 1091| pursuant to s. 395.301 or a practitioner pursuant to s.
1063 in materials provided as required by s. 627.64725 notice that 1092 456.0575, the status of the subscriber’s maximum annual out-of-
1064 the information required by this section is available 1093| pocket payments for a covered individual or family, and the
1065| electronically and the address of the website where the 1094 status of the subscriber’s maximum lifetime benefit. Such
1066 information can be accessed. 1095 estimate does shatt not preclude the actual copayment eepay,
1067 (3) Each health insurer that participates in the state 1096| coinsurance percentage, or deductible, whichever is applicable,
1068| group health insurance plan created pursuant to s. 110.123 or 1097 from exceeding the estimate.
1069| Medicaid managed care pursuant to part IV of chapter 409 shall 1098 (7) Each health maintenance organization that participates
1070| provide all claims data to the fullest extent possible to the 1099| 1in the state group health insurance plan created pursuant to s.
1071 contracted vendor selected by the Agency for Health Care 1100 110.123 or Medicaid managed care pursuant to part IV of chapter
1072| Administration under s. 408.05(3) (c). 1101 409 shall provide all claims data to the fullest extent possible
1073 (4) Each health insurer that provides all claims data to 1102 to the contracted vendor selected by the Agency for Health Care
1074 the fullest extent possible to the contracted vendor under s. 1103 Administration under s. 408.05(3) (c) .
1075 408.05(3) (c) is entitled to a 0.05 percent credit against the 1104 (8) Each health maintenance organization that provides all
1076| premium tax established pursuant to s. 624.509, notwithstanding 1105| claims data to the fullest extent possible to the contracted

Page 37 of 51 Page 38 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




1106
1107
1108
1109
1110
1111
1112
1113
1114
1115
1116
1117
1118
1119
1120
1121
1122
1123
1124
1125
1126
1127
1128
1129
1130
1131
1132
1133
1134

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496
vendor under s. 408.05(3) (c) is entitled to a 0.05 percent

credit against the premium tax established pursuant to s.

624.509, notwithstanding any premium tax credit limitation
imposed by s. 624.5009.

(9) 4+ Each health maintenance organization shall make

available on its Faternet website a hyperlink sk to the health
information perfeormance—outcome—and—finanecial—data that is
disseminated publiished by the Agency for Health Care
Administration pursuant to s. 408.05(3) s+—468-0653)+{k) and
shall include in every policy delivered or issued for delivery
to any person in the state or any materials provided as required
by s. 627.64725 notice that such information is available
electronically and the address of its Internet website.

Section 13. Paragraph (n) is added to subsection (2) of
section 409.967, Florida Statutes, to read:

409.967 Managed care plan accountability.—

(2) The agency shall establish such contract requirements
as are necessary for the operation of the statewide managed care
program. In addition to any other provisions the agency may deem
necessary, the contract must require:

(n) Transparency.—Managed care plans shall comply with ss.
627.6385(3) and 641.54 (7).

Section 14. Paragraph (d) of subsection (3) of section
110.123, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

110.123 State group insurance program.—

(3) STATE GROUP INSURANCE PROGRAM.—

(d)1. Notwithstanding the—previsiens—ef chapter 287 and the

authority of the department, for the purpose of protecting the

health of, and providing medical services to, state employees

Page 39 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

1135
1136
1137
1138
1139
1140
1141
1142
1143
1144
1145
1146
1147
1148
1149
1150
1151
1152
1153
1154
1155
1156
1157
1158
1159
1160
1161
1162
1163

Florida Senate - 2016

7-01281C-16

SB 1496

20161496

participating in the state group insurance program, the

department may contract to retain the services of professional

administrators for the state group insurance program. The agency

shall follow good purchasing practices of state procurement to

the extent practicable under the circumstances.

2. Each vendor in a major procurement, and any other vendor

if the department deems it necessary to protect the state’s

financial interests, shall, at the time of executing any

contract with the department, post an appropriate bond with the

department in an amount determined by the department to be

adequate to protect the state’s interests but not higher than

the full amount estimated to be paid annually to the vendor

under the contract.

3. Each major contract entered into by the department

pursuant to this section shall contain a provision for payment

of liquidated damages to the department for material

noncompliance by a vendor with a contract provision. The

department may require a liquidated damages provision in any

contract if the department deems it necessary to protect the

state’s financial interests.

4. Section Theprovisiens—ef

120.57(3) applies appty to

the department’s contracting process, except:

a. A formal written protest of any decision, intended

decision, or other action subject to protest shall be filed

within 72 hours after receipt of notice of the decision,

intended decision, or other action.

b. As an alternative to any provision of s. 120.57(3), the

department may proceed with the bid selection or contract award

process if the director of the department sets forth, in

Page 40 of 51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496 Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496
7-01281C-16 20161496 7-01281C-16 20161496
1164| writing, particular facts and circumstances which demonstrate 1193| authorized for qualifying health care claims information
1165 the necessity of continuing the procurement process or the 1194 submissions made by an eligible employer. The credit is equal to
1166| contract award process in order to avoid a substantial 1195| the number of eligible employees included on each qualifying
1167| disruption to the provision of any scheduled insurance services. 1196| health care claims information submission multiplied by $50. The
1168 5. The department shall make arrangements as necessary to 1197| total credit that may be claimed by an eligible employer under
1169| provide claims data of the state group health insurance plan to 1198 this section is $500,000 annually.
1170| the contracted vendor selected by the Agency for Health Care 1199 (3) If the credit under this section is greater than can be
1171| Administration pursuant to s. 408.05(3) (c). 1200 taken on a single tax return, excess amounts may be taken as
1172 6. Each contracted vendor for the state group health 1201 credits on any return submitted within 12 months after the
1173 insurance plan shall provide claims data to the fullest extent 1202 submission of the qualifying health care claims information.
1174| possible to the vendor selected by the Agency for Health Care 1203 (4) A corporation may take the credit under this section
1175| Administration pursuant to s. 408.05(3) (c). 1204| against its corporate income tax liability, as provided in s.
1176 Section 15. Effective January 1, 2017, section 212.099, 1205 220.197; however, a corporation that uses its credit against the
1177 Florida Statutes, is created to read: 1206 tax imposed by chapter 220 may not receive the credit provided
1178 212.099 Health information and transparency tax credit.— 1207 in this section. A credit may be taken against only one tax.
1179 (1) As used in this section, the term: 1208 (5) Any person who fraudulently claims this credit is
1180 (a) “Eligible employee” means an employee who is employed 1209 liable for repayment of the credit plus a mandatory penalty of
1181 in this state by an eligible employer and is covered under the 1210 100 percent of the credit and commits a misdemeanor of the
1182| eligible employer’s health plan covered by the Employee 1211 second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s.
1183| Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. 1212 775.083.
1184 (b) “Eligible employer” means an employer that provides a 1213 Section 16. Effective January 1, 2017, section 220.197,
1185| health plan covered by the Employee Retirement Income Security 1214| Florida Statutes, is created to read:
1186| Act of 1974 to eligible employees and provides qualifying health 1215 220.197 Health information and transparency tax credit.—
1187 care claims information submissions on a quarterly basis. 1216 (1) As used in this section, the term:
1188 (c) “Qualifying health care claims information submission” 1217 (a) “Eligible employee” means an employee who is employed
1189| means the submission of health care claims information on 1218| 1in this state by an eligible employer and is covered under the
1190| eligible employees to the contract vendor selected by the Agency 1219| eligible employer’s health plan covered by the Employee
1191 for Health Care Administration pursuant to s. 408.05(3) (c). 1220| Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.
1192 (2) A credit against the tax imposed by this chapter is 1221 (b) “Eligible employer” means an employer that provides a
Page 41 of 51 Page 42 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496 Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496
7-01281C-16 20161496 7-01281C-16 20161496
1222| health plan covered by the Employee Retirement Income Security 1251 liable for repayment of the credit plus a mandatory penalty of
1223| Act of 1974 to eligible employees and provides qualifying health 1252 100 percent of the credit and commits a misdemeanor of the
1224 care claims information submissions on a quarterly basis. 1253 second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s.
1225 (c) “Qualifying health care claims information submission” 1254 775.083.
1226| means the submission of health care claims information on 1255 Section 17. Subsection (3) of section 20.42, Florida
1227| eligible employees to the contract vendor selected by the Agency 1256| Statutes, is amended to read:
1228 for Health Care Administration pursuant to s. 408.05(3) (c). 1257 20.42 Agency for Health Care Administration.—
1229 (2) A credit against the tax imposed by this chapter is 1258 (3) The department shall be the chief health policy and
1230| authorized for quarterly qualifying health care claims 1259| planning entity for the state. The department is responsible for
1231 information submissions made by an eligible employer. The credit 1260| health facility licensure, inspection, and regulatory
1232 is equal to the number of eligible employees included on each 1261| enforcement; investigation of consumer complaints related to
1233| gqualifying health care claims information submission multiplied 1262| health care facilities and managed care plans; the
1234 by $50. The credit must be claimed on the next annual return 1263 implementation of the certificate of need program; the operation
1235 filed by the corporation under this chapter. The total credit 1264 of the Florida Center for Health Information and Transparency
1236| that may be claimed by a corporation under this section is 1265| PelieyAratysis; the administration of the Medicaid program; the
1237 $500,000 annually. 1266 administration of the contracts with the Florida Healthy Kids
1238 (3) If the credit under this section is greater than can be 1267| Corporation; the certification of health maintenance
1239| taken on a single tax return, excess amounts may be carried 1268| organizations and prepaid health clinics as set forth in part
1240 forward for a period not to exceed 5 years. 1269 IIT of chapter 641; and any other duties prescribed by statute
1241 (4) The credit provided for in this section may be taken on 1270| or agreement.
1242 a consolidated return; however, the total credit taken by the 1271 Section 18. Paragraph (c) of subsection (4) of section
1243| affiliated group is subject to the limitation established under 1272 381.026, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:
1244 subsection (2). 1273 381.026 Florida Patient’s Bill of Rights and
1245 (5) A corporation may take the credit under this section 1274| Responsibilities.—
1246| against its sales tax liability, as provided in s. 212.099; 1275 (4) RIGHTS OF PATIENTS.—Each health care facility or
1247| however, a corporation that uses its credit against the tax 1276| provider shall observe the following standards:
1248| imposed by chapter 212 may not receive the credit provided in 1277 (c) Financial information and disclosure.—
1249 this section. A credit may be taken against only one tax. 1278 1. A patient has the right to be given, upon request, by
1250 (6) Any person who fraudulently claims this credit is 1279| the responsible provider, his or her designee, or a
Page 43 of 51 Page 44 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




1280
1281
1282
1283
1284
1285
1286
1287
1288
1289
1290
1291
1292
1293
1294
1295
1296
1297
1298
1299
1300
1301
1302
1303
1304
1305
1306
1307
1308

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16

representative of the health care facility full information and

20161496

necessary counseling on the availability of known financial
resources for the patient’s health care.

2. A health care provider or a health care facility shall,
upon request, disclose to each patient who is eligible for
Medicare, before treatment, whether the health care provider or
the health care facility in which the patient is receiving
medical services accepts assignment under Medicare reimbursement
as payment in full for medical services and treatment rendered
in the health care provider’s office or health care facility.

3. A primary care provider may publish a schedule of
charges for the medical services that the provider offers to
patients. The schedule must include the prices charged to an
uninsured person paying for such services by cash, check, credit
card, or debit card. The schedule must be posted in a
conspicuous place in the reception area of the provider’s office
and must include, but is not limited to, the 50 services most
frequently provided by the primary care provider. The schedule
may group services by three price levels, listing services in
each price level. The posting must be at least 15 square feet in
size. A primary care provider who publishes and maintains a
schedule of charges for medical services is exempt from the
license fee requirements for a single period of renewal of a
professional license under chapter 456 for that licensure term
and is exempt from the continuing education requirements of
chapter 456 and the rules implementing those requirements for a
single 2-year period.

4. If a primary care provider publishes a schedule of

charges pursuant to subparagraph 3., he or she must continually

Page 45 of 51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

1309
1310
1311
1312
1313
1314
1315
1316
1317
1318
1319
1320
1321
1322
1323
1324
1325
1326
1327
1328
1329
1330
1331
1332
1333
1334
1335
1336
1337

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496
post it at all times for the duration of active licensure in
this state when primary care services are provided to patients.
If a primary care provider fails to post the schedule of charges
in accordance with this subparagraph, the provider shall be
required to pay any license fee and comply with any continuing
education requirements for which an exemption was received.

5. A health care provider or a health care facility shall,
upon request, furnish a person, before the provision of medical
services, a reasonable estimate of charges for such services.
The health care provider or the health care facility shall
provide an uninsured person, before the provision of a planned
nonemergency medical service, a reasonable estimate of charges
for such service and information regarding the provider’s or
facility’s discount or charity policies for which the uninsured
person may be eligible. Such estimates by a primary care
provider must be consistent with the schedule posted under
subparagraph 3. Estimates shall, to the extent possible, be
written in language comprehensible to an ordinary layperson.
Such reasonable estimate does not preclude the health care
provider or health care facility from exceeding the estimate or
making additional charges based on changes in the patient’s
condition or treatment needs.

6. Each licensed facility, except a facility operating

exclusively as a state mental health treatment facility or as a

mobile surgical facility, net—eperatedby—th tate shall make

available to the public on its Internet website or by other

electronic means a description of and a hyperlink +ink to the

health information perfermen gteome—and—financialdata that

is disseminated pubtishked by the agency pursuant to s. 408.05(3)

Page 46 of 51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496 Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496 7-01281C-16 20161496
1338| s+—4088-05(3)+k)>. The facility shall place a notice in the 1367 4. A hospital with a service area that has a population of
1339| reception area that such information is available electronically 1368 up to 100 persons per square mile. As used in this subparagraph,
1340 and the website address. The licensed facility may indicate that 1369 the term “service area” means the fewest number of zip codes
1341| the pricing information is based on a compilation of charges for 1370| that account for 75 percent of the hospital’s discharges for the
1342 the average patient and that each patient’s statement or bill 1371| most recent 5-year period, based on information available from
1343| may vary from the average depending upon the severity of illness 1372| the hospital inpatient discharge database in the Florida Center
1344| and individual resources consumed. The licensed facility may 1373 for Health Information and Transparency Peltiey—Aratysis at the
1345| also indicate that the price of service is negotiable for 1374| agency; or
1346 eligible patients based upon the patient’s ability to pay. 1375 5. A hospital designated as a critical access hospital, as
1347 7. A patient has the right to receive a copy of an itemized 1376 defined in s. 408.07.
1348 statement or bill upon request. A patient has a right to be 1377
1349| given an explanation of charges upon request. 1378| Population densities used in this paragraph must be based upon
1350 Section 19. Paragraph (e) of subsection (2) of section 1379 the most recently completed United States census. A hospital
1351 395.602, Florida Statutes, is amended to read: 1380| that received funds under s. 409.9116 for a quarter beginning no
1352 395.602 Rural hospitals.— 1381 later than July 1, 2002, is deemed to have been and shall
1353 (2) DEFINITIONS.—As used in this part, the term: 1382 continue to be a rural hospital from that date through June 30,
1354 (e) “Rural hospital” means an acute care hospital licensed 1383 2021, if the hospital continues to have up to 100 licensed beds
1355| under this chapter, having 100 or fewer licensed beds and an 1384 and an emergency room. An acute care hospital that has not
1356 emergency room, which is: 1385| previously been designated as a rural hospital and that meets
1357 1. The sole provider within a county with a population 1386| the criteria of this paragraph shall be granted such designation
1358| density of up to 100 persons per square mile; 1387| wupon application, including supporting documentation, to the
1359 2. An acute care hospital, in a county with a population 1388 agency. A hospital that was licensed as a rural hospital during
1360| density of up to 100 persons per square mile, which is at least 1389| the 2010-2011 or 2011-2012 fiscal year shall continue to be a
1361 30 minutes of travel time, on normally traveled roads under 1390| rural hospital from the date of designation through June 30,
1362 normal traffic conditions, from any other acute care hospital 1391 2021, if the hospital continues to have up to 100 licensed beds
1363| within the same county; 1392| and an emergency room.
1364 3. A hospital supported by a tax district or subdistrict 1393 Section 20. Section 395.6025, Florida Statutes, is amended
1365| whose boundaries encompass a population of up to 100 persons per 1394 to read:
1366| square mile; 1395 395.6025 Rural hospital replacement facilities.—

Page 47 of 51 Page 48 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496 Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496
7-01281C-16 20161496 7-01281C-16 20161496
1396| Notwithstanding the—provisiens—ef s. 408.036, a hospital defined 1425| hospital within the same county;
1397 as a statutory rural hospital in accordance with s. 395.602, or 1426 (c) A hospital supported by a tax district or subdistrict
1398| a not-for-profit operator of rural hospitals, is not required to 1427| whose boundaries encompass a population of 100 persons or fewer
1399| obtain a certificate of need for the construction of a new 1428| per square mile;
1400| hospital located in a county with a population of at least 1429 (d) A hospital with a service area that has a population of
1401 15,000 but no more than 18,000 and a density of fewer +ess than 1430| 100 persons or fewer per square mile. As used in this paragraph,
1402 30 persons per square mile, or a replacement facility, provided 1431| the term “service area” means the fewest number of zip codes
1403 that the replacement, or new, facility is located within 10 1432 that account for 75 percent of the hospital’s discharges for the
1404| miles of the site of the currently licensed rural hospital and 1433| most recent 5-year period, based on information available from
1405| within the current primary service area. As used in this 1434 the hospital inpatient discharge database in the Florida Center
1406| section, the term “service area” means the fewest number of zip 1435| for Health Information and Transparency PedieyAnalysis at the
1407 codes that account for 75 percent of the hospital’s discharges 1436| Agency for Health Care Administration; or
1408 for the most recent 5-year period, based on information 1437 (e) A critical access hospital.
1409 available from the hospital inpatient discharge database in the 1438
1410| Florida Center for Health Information and Transparency Peliey 1439| Population densities used in this subsection must be based upon
1411| Awmeltysis at the Agency for Health Care Administration. 1440 the most recently completed United States census. A hospital
1412 Section 21. Subsection (43) of section 408.07, Florida 1441 that received funds under s. 409.9116 for a quarter beginning no
1413 Statutes, 1s amended to read: 1442 later than July 1, 2002, is deemed to have been and shall
1414 408.07 Definitions.—As used in this chapter, with the 1443 continue to be a rural hospital from that date through June 30,
1415 exception of ss. 408.031-408.045, the term: 1444 2015, if the hospital continues to have 100 or fewer licensed
1416 (43) “Rural hospital” means an acute care hospital licensed 1445| Dbeds and an emergency room. An acute care hospital that has not
1417 under chapter 395, having 100 or fewer licensed beds and an 1446| previously been designated as a rural hospital and that meets
1418| emergency room, and which is: 1447| the criteria of this subsection shall be granted such
1419 (a) The sole provider within a county with a population 1448| designation upon application, including supporting
1420| density of no greater than 100 persons per square mile; 1449| documentation, to the Agency for Health Care Administration.
1421 (b) An acute care hospital, in a county with a population 1450 Section 22. Paragraph (a) of subsection (4) of section
1422| density of no greater than 100 persons per square mile, which is 1451 408.18, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:
1423 at least 30 minutes of travel time, on normally traveled roads 1452 408.18 Health Care Community Antitrust Guidance Act;
1424 under normal traffic conditions, from another acute care 1453 antitrust no-action letter; market-information collection and
Page 49 of 51 Page 50 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




1454
1455
1456
1457
1458
1459
1460
1461
1462
1463
1464
1465
1466
1467
1468
1469
1470
1471
1472
1473
1474
1475

Florida Senate - 2016 SB 1496

7-01281C-16 20161496
education.—

(4) (a) Members of the health care community who seek
antitrust guidance may request a review of their proposed
business activity by the Attorney General’s office. In
conducting its review, the Attorney General’s office may seek
whatever documentation, data, or other material it deems
necessary from the Agency for Health Care Administration, the
Florida Center for Health Information and Transparency Peliey
Anatysis, and the Office of Insurance Regulation of the
Financial Services Commission.

Section 23. Section 465.0244, Florida Statutes, is amended
to read:

465.0244 Information disclosure.—Every pharmacy shall make
available on its FInaternet website a hyperlink I4mk to the health
information perferman wteome—and—finaneial—data that is
disseminated publtished by the Agency for Health Care
Administration pursuant to s. 408.05(3) s+—468-0653)+{k) and

shall place in the area where customers receive filled

prescriptions notice that such information is available
electronically and the address of its Internet website.
Section 24. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this

act, this act shall take effect July 1, 2016.

Page 51 of 51
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Color Key for Budget Spreadsheet

FY 2016-17
Orange = Base/Continuation Budget
Pink = Budget Amendments and/or Non-Policy Technical Adjustments
Purple = Base Budget Reductions Issues & Fund Shifts
Federal Grants/Donations/Other Entity Contracts (state match in-kind, if
Blue = applicable)
Yellow = Social Services Estimating Conference
Tan = Full Appropriations Committee Decisions - Statewide Issues
Light Green = Total By Agency

Light Blue = Total for Health and Human Services Appropriations Committee



DRAFT CHAIR PROPOSAL Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee for Fiscal Year 2016-17
January 28, 2016

Row # Issue Issue Title FTE Rate R;ce\(f:::eral Tobacco Other State TFs All TF Federal Total Funds Row #
1 | AGENCY/HEALTH CARE ADMIN \ | 1
2 1100001 Startup (OPERATING) 1,563.00 71,046,035 5,873,194,619 312,908,002 3,621,872,692 15,153,124,373 24,961,099,686 2

Transfer Rate For Appeals Hearings Position From
y Department Of Children and Families - Add 8
41,154 - -
Transfer Of Appeals Hearings Positions From
4 1700010 Department Of Children and Families For Medicaid 4
Benefits Fair Hearing Appeals - Add 2.00 41,058 31,954 26,414 58,368
Transfer To The Agency For Persons With
5 1700050 Disabilities Home and Community Based Services 5
Waiver (659,879) (1,032,553) (1,692,432)
6 1700300 Transfer Of Qualified Evaluator Network Funding 6
To The Department Of Children and Families (278,541) (835,624) (1,114,165)
7 2000200 Realign _Budget Authority Between Operating -
Categories - Deduct - (250,000) (100,000) (350,000)
Realign Budget Authority Between Operating
8 8
ALY Categories - Add - 250,000 100,000 350,000
9 2000280 Realign Prepaid Health Plan Funding - Deduct (8,068,944) (21,195,116) (29,264,060) 9
10 2000290 Realign Prepaid Health Plan Funding - Add 8,068,944 21,195,116 29,264,060 10
Realign Prepaid Health Plan - Long Term Care
11 11
2000300 Funding - Deduct (39,914,247) (59,502,221) (99,416,468)
Realign Prepaid Health Plan - Long Term Care
12 12
ALY Funding - Add 39,914,247 59,502,221 99,416,468
Transfer Project Aids Care Waiver Recipients To
13 2000340 The Managed Medical Assistance Program - 13
Deduct (3,400,762) (5,321,378) (8,722,140)
Transfer Project Aids Care Waiver Recipients To
14 2000350 . . 14
The Managed Medical Assistance Program - Add 3,385,063 5.337,077 8.722,140
Transfer From Lump Sum Category To Operating
1 1
° Category - Deduct - (7,479,418) (7,240,855) (14,720,273) °
Transfer From Lump Sum Category To Operating
16 16
2000370 Category - Add - 7,479,418 7,240,855 14,720,273
17 2301510 Institutional and Prescribed Drug Providers (432,106,115) 4,559,270 (770,373,655)| (1,197,920,500) 17
18 2503080 Direct Billing For Administrative Hearings (67,991) (435,373) (67,991) (571,355) 18
Supplemental Appropriation For Legal
1 1
9|3000120 Representation - 1,664,159 1,564,159 3,228,318 °
Consultant For Development of Managed Care
20 20
3000180 Plan Contract Compliance Monitoring - 48,000 432,000 480,000
Development Of Nursing Home Prospective
21 21
8000210 Payment - 250,000 250,000 500,000
Medicaid Long Term Care Waiver Wait List
22/3000220 Reduction 3,600,000 5,633,137 9,233,137 2
23 3001780 Children's Special Health Care (1,753,961) 1,773,283 8,127,047 8,146,369 23
24 3004500 Medicaid Services 962,545,895 150,285,533 1,160,445,893 2,273,277,321 24
25 33V0160 Reduction Based On Historical Reversions - (2,200,000) (2,200,000) 25
26 33V0620 Management And Efficiency (20.00) (450,800) - (546,134) (455,639) (1,001,773) 26
27 i 27
330C400 Contract Savings ) (781.250) (1,343,750) (2.125.,000)
28 3300100 Delete Unfunded Budget - (12,500,000) (50,000,000) (62,500,000) 28
General Revenue To Health Care Trust Fund -
2 Deduct (237,432) (237,432) 29

Page 1 of 10




DRAFT CHAIR PROPOSAL Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee for Fiscal Year 2016-17

January 28, 2016

Row # Issue Issue Title FTE Rate IREE CERrEl R e Tobacco Other State TFs All TF Federal Total Funds Row #
Revenue Revenue
30 3400130 General Revenue To Health Care Trust Fund - Add ) 237.432 237.432 30
Realignment Of Tobacco Settlement Trust
31 31
3400200 Fund/General Revenue Appropriations - Deduct - (34,400,000) (34,400,000)
Realignment Of Tobacco Settlement Trust
32 32
3400210 Fund/General Revenue Appropriations - Add 34,400,000 34,400,000
Florida Medicaid Management Information System
33 33
36301C0 (FMMIS) - 1,024,463 7,696,907 8,721,370
34/36302C0 |Consulting Services For Enterprise System ) 300,000 300,000 34
35/36305C0 |Advanced Data Analytics and Detection Services ) 293,500 2,641,500 2,935,000 35
36/36322C0 |All-Payer Claims Database 3 2,250,000 2,250,000 4,500,000 36
3714000020 |Additional Funding For The Medicaid Program -| 12,500,000 12,500,000 37
38/4002030 |Shands Teaching Hospital - 500,000 500,000 38
3914100035 |Homeless Mental Health Transitional Housing 4,000,000 6,259,041 10,259,041 39
Services To Individuals With Phelan-Mcdermid
40/4100045 Disease 2,000,000 3,129,520 5,129,520 4
4114100055 |[Medicaid Charter School Reimbursement 4,000,000 6,259,041 10,259,041 41
42|4100065 |Funding For Children's Specialty Hospitals 7,345,351 7,345,351 42
Rate Adjusters For Diagnosis Related Groups
43 43
4100075 (DRG) 67,654,649 105,863,302 173,517,951
44/4100080 |Rate Increase For Private Duty Nursing Services 1,215,752 1,902,358 3,118,110 44
Rate Increase For Labor and Delivery
45 45
4100085 Anesthesiologists 10,000 15,648 25,648
Mandatory Federal Requirements To Secure
46 46
4100200 Approval For The Renewal Of Medicaid Waivers - 150,250 600,750 751,000
Other Provider Access - Community Primary Care
47 47
4100510 Grants -] 14,275,470 14,275,470
484101600 |Physician Supplemental Payments - 5,000,000 72,405,706 121,121,368 198,527,074 48
Rural Inpatient Hospital Reimbursement
4 4
9|4101660 Adjustment - 935,762 1,464,243 2,400,005 o
Critical Pediatric Neonatal Intensive Care Unit
50|4102150 |(NICU)/ Pediatric Intensive Care Unit (PICU) Rate 50
Increase 763,644 3,054,576 3,818,220
51|4105400 |Establish Budget Authority For Medicaid Services ) 15,890,623 24,123,573 40,014,196 51
Intermediate Care Facilities For Developmentally
52/14106101 Disabled Rate Increase 4,023,672 6,296,081 10,319,753 52
53/4106103 |Dentaquest - 81,748 127,917 209,665 53
54/4106104 |Mcna Dental - 73,962 115,733 189,695 54
Florida Kidcare Coverage For Lawfully Residing
55/4106110 Children - 296,429 28,538,785 28,835,214 %
Additional Resources For Fraud and Abuse
56/4204400 Prevention - 250,000 250,000 %6
57/5000020 |Agency Telecommunication Services - 563,500 11,500 575,000 57
58 Total AGENCY/HEALTH CARE ADMIN 1,545.00 70,677,447 6,529,665,918 33,267,192 266,008,002 3,870,251,833 15,826,981,353 26,526,174,298 58
59| | | 59
60| | AGENCY/PERSONS WITH DISABL | | o0
61 1100001 Startup (OPERATING) 2,865.50 102,712,942 500,746,207 2,910,600 695,800,250 1,199,457,057 61
62/160S100 |Correct Funding Source Identifier - Add | 6,730,264 | \ 801,587 | 33,480 | 7,565,331 | 62
63/160S200 | Correct Funding Source Identifier - Deduct | (6,730,264)] | (619,834) | (215.233)| (7,565,331)| 63

Page 2 of 10




DRAFT CHAIR PROPOSAL Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee for Fiscal Year 2016-17

January 28, 2016

Row # Issue Issue Title FTE Rate IREE CERrEl R e Tobacco Other State TFs All TF Federal Total Funds Row #
Revenue Revenue
Transfer From The Agency For Health Care
64 1700020 Administration Intermediate Care Facilities To The 64
Agency For Persons With Disabilities - Waivers 659,879 1,032,553 1,692,432
65 2503080 Direct Billing For Administrative Hearings (67,082) (1,862) (68,944) 65
6613000030 Serve Additional Clients On The Home and 66
Community Based Services Waiver 30.00 1,560,000 1,312,847 1,312,849 2,625,696
Pre-Admission Screening and Resident Review
673000050 |14 utilization Review 231,250 343,750 575000 | '
Centers For Medicare and Medicaid Rule
68 68
3000060 Implementation 448,022 6,175 454,198 908,395
69/3000130 |Supports For Behavior Analysis Services 519,847 26,094 545,941 1,091,882 69
70 3300100 Delete Unfunded Budget (184.00) (5,613,403) - (13,774,152) (13,774,152) 70
Changes To Federal Financial Participation Rate -
1 e (5,769,805) (5,769,805) "
Changes To Federal Financial Participation Rate -
I - Federal - 5,769,805 5,769,805 ”
Client Data Management And Electronic Visit
73 73
S Verification Project - 1,881,929 1,881,929
74136291CO0 |Information Technology Infrastructure 30,805 61,000 58,605 150,500 74
75/36303C0 |Computer Refresh ) 60,000 40,000 100,000 75
76|36304CO0 |Information Technology Equipment ) 58,158 58,158 76
77 4000040 Establish Budget Authority For Medicaid Services ) 660,406 660,406 7
Employment And Internships - Individual And
7 7
814000050 |- i 'Supports - 500,000 500,000 8
7914000160 |Medicaid Waiver Rate Study - 200,000 200,000 400,000 79
8014000240 |The Arc Tampa Bay Foundation - 150,000 150,000 80
8114000280 |Mailman Center For Child Development - 800,000 800,000 81
8214000290 |Angels Reach Foundation, Inc. - 50,000 50,000 82
834001200 Serve Additional Clients On The Home And 83
Community Based Services Waiver Waitlist 14,188,744 22,201,981 36,390,725
8414001280 |Mactown Fitness And Wellness Services - 150,000 150,000 84
85/4003200 |Our Pride Academy Child Care Training Program ) 1,200,000 1,200,000 85
Operation Grow - Seminole County Work
86/4003306 Opportunity Program - 316,060 316,060 8
Area Stage Company (ASC) Developmental
87 87
4003308 Disabilities Theater Program For Children - 150,000 150,000
Grants And Aids - Fixed Capital Outlay - City of
88/990G000 Hialeah Gardens - 600,000 600,000 8
Grants And Aids - Fixed Capital Outlay - Brandon
88, 88
3|990G000 Sports and Aquatic Center for Unigue Abilities 850,000 850,000 i
Grants And Aids - Fixed Capital Outlay - Palm
880990G000 Beach Habilitation Center 649,111 649,111 88b
89/990M000 |Maintenance and Repair ) 2,600,000 2,600,000 89
90 Total AGENCY/PERSONS WITH DISABL 2,711.50 98,659,539 512,300,714 8,426,598 - 3,092,353 716,344,590 1,240,164,255 90
91 91
92 CHILDREN & FAMILIES 92

Page 3 of 10




DRAFT CHAIR PROPOSAL Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee for Fiscal Year 2016-17

January 28, 2016

Row # Issue Issue Title FTE Rate IREE CERrEl R e Tobacco Other State TFs All TF Federal Total Funds Row #
Revenue Revenue
93 1100001 Startup (OPERATING) 11,830.50 477,433,284 1,636,674,414 45,606,318 1,254,436,712 2,936,717,444 93
Transfer Rate For Appeals Hearings Position To
94 1700A30 Agency For Health Care Administration (AHCA) - 94
Deduct (41,154) - -
Transfer Of Appeals Hearings Positions To Ahca
95 1700030 For Medicaid Benefit Fair Hearing Appeals - 95
Deduct (2.00) (41,058) (31,954) (26,414) (58,368)
96 1700350 'l'ransfﬁ: O;Quahﬂ'cid Eljilall]ltar]ttg Net\:((‘)rk_ F_utndl'ng %6
rom The Agency For Heal are Administration 278,541 835,624 1,114,165
Realignment Of Information Technology Resources
97 97
2000010 | Deduct (4,781,352) (3,458,510) (8,239,862)
Realignment Of Information Technology Resources
98 98
2000020 | Add 4,781,352 3,458,510 8,239,862
Realignment Of Data Processing Categories -
99 99
2000030 Deduct - (363,236) (363,236)
10012000040 |Realignment Of Data Processing Categories - Add 3 363,236 363,236 100
Transfer Data Processing Category From
1012000050 |Executive Leadership To Information Technology - 101
Deduct (10,288,922) (2,726,304) (8,046,473) (21,061,699)
Transfer Data Processing Category From
102|2000060 |Executive Leadership To Information Technology - 102
Add 10,288,922 2,726,304 8,046,473 21,061,699
Mental Health Executive Leadership Positions -
103 103
2000390 Deduct (5.00) (251,479) (389,945) (389,945)
Mental Health Executive Leadership Positions -
104 104
2000400 Add 5.00 251,479 389,945 389,945
Transfer Adoption Assistance Payments and
1 1
05/2000410 ‘Subsidies To A Special Category - Deduct (85,554,157) (98,792,527) (184,346,684) 05
Transfer Adoption Assistance Payments and
106 106
2000420 ‘Subsidies To A Special Category - Add 85,554,157 98,792,527 184,346,684
Family Safety Contracted Services Realignment -
107 107
Deduct (100,000) (100,000) 0
Family Safety Contracted Services Realignment -
108 108
2000640 Add 100,000 100,000
1 . . s _ 1
09 2000730 Child Protection Investigations Expense - Deduct (381.836) (232.241) (614.077) 09
110 2000740 Child Protection Investigations Expense - Add 381,836 232,241 614,077 110
Realignment Of Resources Within The Department
11 Add 32.00 1,871,460 762,010 1,392,257 178,583 2,332,850 1
Realignment Of Resources Within The Department
112 112
2000770 Deduct (32.00) (1,871,460) (762,010) (1,388,286) (182,554) (2,332,850)
Sexual Violent Predator Program Category
11 11
° Realignment - Add 1,140,000 1,140,000 8
Sexual Violent Predator Program Category
114 114
ALY Realignment - Deduct (1,140,000) (1,140,000)
Transfer Optional State Supplementation To
11 11
° Personal Care Allowance - Add 230,220 230,220 s
Transfer Optional State Supplementation To
116 116
2003200 Personal Care Allowance - Deduct (230,220) (230,220)
117 2503080 Direct Billing For Administrative Hearings (84,407) (84,407) 117

Page 4 of 10




DRAFT CHAIR PROPOSAL Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee for Fiscal Year 2016-17
January 28, 2016

Row # Issue Issue Title FTE Rate IREE CERrEl R e Tobacco Other State TFs All TF Federal Total Funds Row #
Revenue Revenue
Cash Assistance Adjustment - Estimating
118 118
3000091 Conference Adjustment (2,137,971) (119,309) (2,257,280)
Community Based Care Case Management
1193000520 Workload 9,196,647 5,616,745 14,813,392 19
Child Care Regulation Increase In Staffing To
120 3000540 Implement New Federal Health and Safety 120
Requirements - 614,755 614,755
Substance Abuse Licensure Specialist Positions
121 121
3000700 Workload Increase ‘ - 359,212 359,212
122 3201010 Eliminate Unfunded Budget - (227,084) (227,084)| 122
Changes In Federal Financial Participation For
123 123
SaLLEEy Maintenance Adoption Subsidy - Deduct (2,016,145) (2,016,145)
Changes In Federal Financial Participation For
124 124
ALY Maintenance Adoption Subsidy - Add - 2,016,145 2,016,145
Changes To Federal Financial Participation Rate -
125 3401470 giie (41,857) @aissn|
Changes To Federal Financial Participation Rate -
12— Federal - 41,857 41,857 126
Substance Abuse And Mental Health Financial and
127 127
36312C0 Service Accounting System - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Mainframe Upgrade To Support Access Florida
128|36327C0 |And Florida Safe Families Network (FSFN) 128
Applications - 730,783 802,786 1,533,569
Strengthening Child Safety Practice Through
129 129
36332C0 Technoloay - 2,126,194 4,571,816 6,698,010
Improve Medicaid Program Integrity and Reduce
130 130
36340C0 Caseload Size - 112,000 208,000 320,000
Medical Care Costs In The State-Operated Mental
131 4000040 Health Treatment Facility Northeast Florida State 131
Hospital - 1,058,705 1,058,705
Restore Alcohol, Drug Abuse, And Mental Health
132 132
- Trust Fund Funding - 20,458,512 20,458,512 8
133|4000235 |Healthy Families Expansion 496,125 1,488,375 1,984,500 133
Audio/Video Security Surveillance Systems For
134 134
84/4000580 State Mental Health Treatment Facilities - 1,646,485 1,646,485 3
135/4000660 |Community Based Care Risk Pool - 5,000,000 5,000,000 135
136/4000740 |Automated Medication Dispensing Systems - 1,482,796 1,482,796 136
137/4000760 |Forensic Bed Expansion 43.00 1,124,951 4,340,618 28,374 4,368,992 137
138/4000802 |Homeless Coalitions 700,000 300,000 1,000,000 138
Public Benefits Integrity Data Analytics And
139 139
4000827 Information Sharing Initiative - 750,000 750,000
Federal Funding For Child Welfare Improvement
14 14
‘. Training Title IV-E - 77,536 3,064,864 3,142,400 0
14114001210 |Transition Vouchers 3,500,000 3,500,000 141
Enhanced Services For Human Trafficking Victims -
142/14001260 Camillus House - 250,000 250,000 142
Enhanced Services For Human Trafficking Victims -
1424001260 | it House 200,000 200,000 | "**
Enhanced Services For Human Trafficking Victims -
14204001260 Devereux 359,000 359,000 142
Increase For The Office of The State Attorney's
14314001620 |Contract For The Provision of Children's Legal 143
Services In Circuit Six 249,500 249,500

Page 5 of 10




DRAFT CHAIR PROPOSAL Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee for Fiscal Year 2016-17
January 28, 2016

Row # Issue Issue Title FTE Rate IREE CERrEl R e Tobacco Other State TFs All TF Federal Total Funds Row #
Revenue Revenue
1444002050 \Safety Management Services - 343,699 7,743,341 8,087,040 144
145 4002250 Emergency Solutions Grant Increase - 808,951 808,951 145
1464003340 |Camillus House Mental Health - 200,000 200,000 146
147|4004310 |Marissa Amora Relief Bill Annual Request - 1,700,000 1,700,000 147
148/4004510 |Central Receiving Facilities - Grant Program 10,000,000 10,000,000 148
149/4004830 |Mental Health Transitional Beds - 1,814,880 1,814,880 149
Criminal Justice, Mental Health and Substance
150 ’ 150
4004930 Abuse Reinvestment Grant Program Expansion 1.00 42,690 6,076,368 4,230 6,080,598
Community Forensic Multidisciplinary Teams For
151 151
4005060 Hospital Diversion 3,260,000 3,260,000
152|4005150 |Children's Community Action Teams 3,750,000 3,750,000 152
15314006020 |Maintenance Adoption Subsidies 3,637,939 3,095,199 6,733,138 153
1 coscas. | QLo certue s o Commuity S
9 ploy 3,500,000 3,500,000
155/4006860 |Mental Health Forensic Beds 1,211,727 1,211,727 155
Stop Violence Against Women Formula Grant
156 156
4008160 Program - 181,667 181,667
1574402008 |Grace Point Crisis Stabalization Unit - 848,000 848,000 157
Florida Certification Board Behavioral Health
158 158
4402009 Training Center - 300,000 300,000
1594402020 |Recovery Residence Certification Funding - 100,000 100,000 159
Citrus Health Network Graduate Medical Education
160 160
4402023 (GME) For Psychiatry - 350,000 350,000
1614402025 |Victory For Youth - 373,800 373,800 161
162|4402026 |Meridian Behavioral Healthcare - 410,000 410,000 162
163|4402027 |Directions For Living - 400,000 400,000 163
David Lawrence Center Providing Behavioral
164 164
6414402031 Health Services 100,000 100,000 6
1654402032 |Veterans And Families Pilot Program - 485,000 485,000 165
Child Welfare Results Oriented Accountability
1 1
664402034 System - 500,000 500,000 66
167|4402035 |His House Children's Home - 100,000 100,000 167
168|4402036 |Mobile Technology For Child Welfare Agencies - 250,000 250,000 168
Ft. Myers Salvation Army Providing Behavior
169 169
4402037 Health Services 100,000 100,000
170/4402039 |Day Care Scholarships - 200,000 200,000 170
171/4402040 |Here's Help - 300,000 300,000 171
172|4402042 |Breaking The Cycle Institute - 100,000 100,000 172
173/4402054 |Florida Psychological and Associated Healthcare ) 100,000 100,000 173
174|4402055 |Starting Point Behavioral Healthcare - 100,000 100,000 174
Enroliment Assistance For Supplemental Nutrition
175 175
4402056 Assistance Program - 250,000 250,000 500,000
176/4600310 |Family Intensive Treatment Teams 2,800,000 2,800,000 176
Grants And Aids - Fixed Capital Outlay - Gateway
177 177
990G000 Community Services - 200,000 200,000
178/990M000 | Maintenance and Repair ) 3,590,434 3,500,434 178
179 Total CHILDREN & FAMILIES 11,872.50 478,518,713 1,685,559,545 26,522,879 - 47,711,500 1,306,735,609 3,066,529,533 179
180 | 180
181 |ELDER AFFAIRS, DEPT OF | 181
182 1100001 Startup (OPERATING) 433.50 18,255,922 121,377,892 720,398 168,308,461 290,406,751 182

Page 6 of 10




DRAFT CHAIR PROPOSAL Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee for Fiscal Year 2016-17

January 28, 2016

Row # Issue Issue Title FTE Rate IREE CERrEl R e Tobacco Other State TFs All TF Federal Total Funds Row #
Revenue Revenue
183 2503080 Direct Billing For Administrative Hearings 5,452 5,452 183
184 330C400 Contract Savings (2.709) (31,130) (33,839) 184
Preadmission Screening And Resident Review
165 SOOI (PASRR) Funding - General Revenue (33,451) (33,451) 185
Preadmission Screening And Resident Review
186 3400080 (PASSR) Funding - Operations And Maintenance 186
Trust Fund - 33,451 33,451
Changes To Federal Participation Rate - State
187 3401470 & honses (229,391) (29301 "'
Changes To Federal Participation Rate - Federal
166 3401480 £, henses - 229,391 220301 | %
189/4100020 |Waitlist Priority Score Evaluation - 61,800 61,800 189
190{4100030 |Aging Resource Centers 650,000 650,000 1,300,000 190
Alzheimer'S Disease Initiative - Frail Elders Waiting
101/4100040 For Services 1,700,000 1,700,000 191
Needs Analysis For Client Information And
192141001C0 Registration Tracking System - 125,000 125,000 250,000 192
Serve Additional Clients In The Community Care
193/4100200 For The Elderly (CCE) Program 2,000,000 2,000,000 193
194/4100271 |Alzheimer'S Community Care, Inc. - 250,000 250,000 194
195/4100274 |City Of Hialeah Gardens - Hot Meals - 200,000 200,000 195
196/4300120 |United Home Care Assisted Living Facility - 500,000 500,000 196
197|4300135 |American Communities Assisted Living Facility - 200,000 200,000 197
198/4300150 |Assisted Living Information Hotline - 50,000 50,000 198
199/4300170 |Easter Seals Of South Florida - 101,850 101,850 199
200/4400060 |Additional Funding For Public Guardianship - 750,000 750,000 200
Additional Funding To Support The Comprehensive
20114900020 |Assessment And Review For Long-Term Care 201
Services (CARES) Program 3,288,197 3,288,197
Grants And Aids - Fixed Capital Outlay - Easter
202/990G000 Seals South Florida - 60,037 60,037 202
Grants And Aids - Fixed Capital Outlay - Violetta
2028/990G000 | 5,045 Senior Center - 100,000 100,000 | %%
203 Total ELDER AFFAIRS, DEPT OF 433.50 18,255,922 128,755,990 2,398,687 - 720,398 169,315,173 301,190,248 203
204 | | | 204
205 |HEALTH, DEPT OF \ | 205
206 1100001 Startup (OPERATING) 14,358.57 594,848,576 474,697,262 68,000,718 923,135,339 1,298,920,028 2,764,753,347 206
Continuation Of Budget Amendment Transfer
207 160F330 Between Categories Administrative Trust Fund - 207
Deduct - (250,000) (250,000)
Continuation Of Budget Amendment Transfer
208 160F340 Between Categories Administrative Trust Fund - 208
Add - 250,000 250,000
Continuation Of Budget Amendment Transfer
209 160F350 Between Categories Federal Grants Trust Fund - 209
Deduct - (42,600) (42,600)
Continuation Of Budget Amendment Transfer
210 160F360 Between Categories Federal Grants Trust Fund - 210
Add - 42,600 42,600
Continuation Of Budget Amendment For Office Of
211 1600230 Compassionate Use Lump Sum Full Time 211
Equivalent (FTE), Rate, Appropriation - Deduct (3.00) - (368,826) (368,826)

Page 7 of 10




DRAFT CHAIR PROPOSAL Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee for Fiscal Year 2016-17
January 28, 2016

Row # Issue Issue Title FTE Rate IREE CERrEl R e Tobacco Other State TFs All TF Federal Total Funds Row #
Revenue Revenue
Continuation Of Budget Amendment For Office Of
212 1600240 Compassionate Use Lump Sum Full Time 212
Equivalent (FTE), Rate, Appropriation - Add 3.00 187,149 - 368,826 368,826
Realign Rape Crisis Program Trust Fund
213 213
LUy Expenditures - Deduct - (50,924) (50,924)
Realign Rape Crisis Program Trust Fund
214 214
2001030 Expenditures - Add - 50,924 50,924
215 2503080 Direct Billing For Administrative Hearings - (163,475) (19,547) (183,022) 215
216 3201010 Eliminate Unfunded Budget - (45,417) (45,417)| 216
217 33V0620 Management And Efficiency (517.00) (8,415,872) (454,888) (15,000,000) (15,454,888) 217
218 3300010 Delete Unfunded Budget - (714,572) (714,572)| 218
Changes To Federal Financial Participation Rate -
219 3401470 oo (106,182) (106,182) 219
Changes To Federal Financial Participation Rate -
220 220
SR Federal - 106,182 106,182
Fund Shift From Epilepsy Services Trust Fund To
221 221
SAUHNEY General Revenue - Add 561,078 561,078
Fund Shift From Epilepsy Services Trust Fund To
222 222
3402060 General Revenue - Deduct - (561,078) (561,078)
Information Technology - Addressing Security
223 223
36203C0 Risks And Disaster Recovery Services 1,393,858 904,626 2,298,484
224136327C0 |Cancer Registry Enhancements 654,150 654,150 224
Funding For Federally Qualified Health Centers
225 225
4000010 (FOHC) -| 18,276,256 18,276,256
Change In Medicaid Federal Medical Assistance
22 22
e Percentage (FMAP) (56,278) (56,278) 6
22714100010 |A Safe Haven For Newborns 300,000 300,000 227
2284100140 |Nurse-Family Partnership Program - 681,250 681,250 228
Auditory-Oral Services For Children With Hearing
229/4100190 Loss - 400,000 400,000 229
23014100220 |Statewide Marketing Campaign 250,000 250,000 230
Sertoma Speech and Hearing Foundation Of
23114100230 |Florida - Statewide Network For Newborn 231
Diagnostic Evaluations - 223,326 223,326
23214101210 |Safety Net Program - Children's Medical Services 5,000,000 5,000,000 232
Miami Dade Health Action Network, Community
2 ’ 2
93/4103310 Transformation Model - 250,000 250,000 33
23414103350 |Teen Xpress - 350,000 350,000 234
235/4103450 |The Center Of Central Florida - 35,000 35,000 235
236/4200060 |Dental Health Initiatives - 200,000 200,000 236
23714300015 |Sanford-Burnham Medical Research Institute - 2,600,000 2,600,000 237
23814300025 |Torrey Pines Institute For Molecular Studies - 250,000 250,000 238
2394300140 |lIslet Cell Transplantation To Cure Diabetes - 321,668 321,668 239
240/4300190 |Poison Control Centers - 3,672,805 3,672,805 240
Brain And Spinal Cord Injury Medicaid Waiver
241 241
4300240 Program 389,032 608,743 997,775
University Of Miami - Human Immunodeficiency
24214300280 |Virus/Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome 242
(HIV/AIDS) Research 1,000,000 1,000,000

Page 8 of 10




DRAFT CHAIR PROPOSAL Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee for Fiscal Year 2016-17
January 28, 2016

Row # Issue Issue Title FTE Rate IREE CERrEl R e Tobacco Other State TFs All TF Federal Total Funds Row #
Revenue Revenue
Hope And Health Center - Hug Me! Pediatric And
24314300420 |Adolescent Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) 243
Care Program - 710,000 710,000
24414301090 |Miami Project To Cure Paralysis - 200,000 200,000 244
2454301110 |Guardian Hands Foundation - 50,000 50,000 245
246/4301120 |Hands Of St. Lucie County - 700,000 700,000 246
Human Immunodeficiency Virus/Acquired Immune
247|4307070 |Deficiency Syndrome (HIV/AIDS) Outreach 247
Funding For Broward Health - 350,000 350,000
24814309000 |Tobacco Constitutional Amendment - 68,079 68,079 248
24914400010 |Rape Crisis Centers - 122,442 122,442 249
250 4800020 Child Nutrition Program - 34,344,023 34,344,023 250
[ 251]4800150 |Dental Health - 170,000 170,000 | 251
Additional Budget Authority For The Preventive
252 252
el Health Services Block Grant Trust Fund - 412,465 412,465
253|4806520 \Pre_qnancy Support Services Program 2,000,000 2,000,000 253
254 4807000 Women, Infant and Children (WIC) Program - 13,377,720 13,377,720 254
255/5300200 |St. Joseph'S Children'S Hospital - 1,000,000 1,000,000 255
Florida International University - Disaster Medical
256 256
5900030 Response - 150,000 150,000
Mary Brogan Breast And Cervical Cancer Early
257 257
6200080 Detection Program - 300,000 300,000
Additional Grants And Donations Trust Fund
2586200560 |Budget Authority To Purchase Pharmaceuticals For 258
The Department Of Corrections - 3,175,216 3,175,216
Bitner/Plante Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis
259)64P0300 Initiative - 250,000 250,000 259
Primary Care - Florida State University - College of
260 260
64P0320 Medicine Immokalee 450,000 450,000
Increase Disabilty Determination Budget Authority -
2 United States Trust Fund - 9,837,129 9,837,129 261
2626500040 |Sant La Haitian Neighborhood Center - 200,000 200,000 262
26316500100 |Banyan Community Health Center - 500,000 500,000 263
264/6500120 |St. John Bosco Clinic - 200,000 200,000 264
265(6500160 |Florida Association Of Free and Charitable Clinics 9,000,000 500,000 9,500,000 265
Florida International University - Telemedicine and
266 266
6500260 Student Health Services - 250,000 250,000
Expanded Primary Care Access Program -

267 267
676500270 Manatee, Sarasota and Desoto Counties - 300,000 300,000 6
268|7800100 |Andrews Institute Foundation - Eagle Fund - 100,000 100,000 | 268
269|7800130 |Health Council of South Florida - 500,000 500,000 269

Grants And Aids - Fixed Capital Outlay - Mount
270 270
990G000 Sinai Medical Center - 3,000,000 3,000,000
Grants And Aids - Fixed Capital Outlay - Rural
27 27!
0a990G000 Hospital Capital Improvement Plan - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0a
Grants And Aids - Fixed Capital Outlay - West
270b 270b
990G000 Pembroke Pines Clinic - 200,000 200,000
Grants And Aids - Fixed Capital Outlay - Florida
270c|990G000 |International University's Disaster Response 270c
Program - 70,000 70,000
271|/990M000 |Maintenance and Repair ) 3.319.219 7.936.110 11,255,329 271

Page 9 of 10




DRAFT CHAIR PROPOSAL Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee for Fiscal Year 2016-17
January 28, 2016

Row # Issue Issue Title FTE Rate IREE CERrEl R e Tobacco Other State TFs All TF Federal Total Funds Row #
Revenue Revenue
272 Total HEALTH, DEPT OF 13,841.57 586,619,853 495,078,032 40,584,150 68,068,797 920,529,982 1,357,541,326 2,881,802,287 272
273] \ | 273
274 |VETERANS' AFFAIRS, DEPT OF \ L
275 1100001 Startup (OPERATING) 1,105.50 37,849,292 8,092,729 60,909,665 24,790,774 93,793,168 275
Florida Department Of Veterans' Affairs State
276|2401510 |Veterans' Nursing Home Program Replace Vans 276
Equipped To Transport Handicapped Residents - 81,500 81,500
Replacement Of Office And Medical Equipment In
27712402300 State Veteran Nursing Homes - 1,136,000 1,136,000 2r
Bureau Of State Approving Agency For Veterans'
278 278
3000460 Training Increase Staffing 1.00 66,000 - 103,584 103,584
279|36245C0 |Information Technology Base Budget Increase 15,266 15,266 279
280|36370C0 |Health Information Technology Systems Upgrade 21,363 21,363 280
Florida Department Of Veterans' Affairs, Florida Is
281|4000090 |For Veterans, Inc., Workforce Training Grant Aid 281
To Local Governments - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Florida Department Of Veterans' Affairs, Florida Is
282 282
4000100 For Veterans Inc., Entrepreneur Training Grant - 500,000 500,000
Disabled Veterans Insurance Careers Training
283 283
4200110 Program - 125,000 125,000
284/4600130 |Veterans Adaptive Bowling Pilot Program - 75,000 75,000 284
285/990M000 |Maintenance and Repair ) 2,000,000 2,000,000 285
286/990P000 |Increased Capacity - 2,363,644 4,389,624 6,753,268 286
287 Total VETERANS' AFFAIRS, DEPT OF 1,106.50 37,915,292 8,129,358 1,700,000 - 66,490,809 29,283,982 105,604,149 287
288 Grand Total 31,510.57 1,290,646,766  9,359,489,557 112,899,506 334,076,799 4,908,796,875 19,406,202,033 34,121,464,770 288

Page 10 of 10




HHS APPROPRIATIQONS SUBCOMMITTEE DRAFT BACK OF THE BILL LANGUAGE FY 2016-17

SECTION 8. The unexpended balance of funds provided to the Agency for
Health Care Administration for the Grant Program for Community Primary
Care Services in Specific Appropriation 187A, chapter 2015-232, Laws of
Florida, shall revert and is reappropriated in Fiscal Year 2016-17 for
the same purpose. This section shall take effect upon becoming law.

SECTION 9. There is hereby appropriated $410,555 in nonrecurring funds
from the General Revenue Fund to the Agency for Health Care
Administration to cover costs associated with the KidCare program for
Fiscal Year 2015-2016. This section shall tzke effect upon becoming law.

SECTION 10, There is hereby appropriated $16,276,674 in nonrecurring
funds from the General Revenue Fund, $132,962,786 in nonrecurring funds
from the Grants and Donations Trust Fund and $16,463,245 in nonrecurring
funds from the Refugee Assistance Trust Fund to the Agency for Health
Care Aadministration to cover costs associated with the Medicaid program
for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.

SECTION 11. There is hereby appropriated 51,400,000 in nonrecurring
funds from the General Revenue Fund to the Agency for Health Care
Administration to cover costs associated with the Tobacce Settlement
Trust Fund in the Medicaid program for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. This
section shall take effect upon becoming law.

SECTICN 12. From the funds appropriated in Specific Appropriation 211
of chapter 2015-232, Laws of Florida, to the Agency for Health Ceare
Administratin, 61,400,000 from the Tobacco Settlement Trust Fund is
hereby reverted. This section shall take effect upon becoming law.

SECTION 13. The gum of $24,414,352 from the General Revenue Fund
provided to the Agency for Persons with Disabilities in Section 39 of
chapter 2015-232, Laws of Florida, shall revert and is appropriated for
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 in the Lump Sum - Home and Community Based
Services Waiver category. The agency is authorized to submit budget
amendments requesting release of funds pursuant to the provisicns of
chapter 216, Florida Statutes. Any requests for release of funds shall
include a plan for how the funds will be expended for increases in
Medicaid Home and Community Based Services Waiver cost plans resulting
from the application of the U.S. Department of Labor Fair Standards to
Domestic Service rule. Such plan must be based upon actuarial fingings
that detail the cost increases by service category, a comparative
analysis between current service rates and those necessary to meet
compliance, and the annualized need by fund source necessary to be in
full compliance with federal law and regulations. This sectien shall
take effect upon becoming law.

SECTION 14. The unexpended balance of funds from the General Revenue
Fund provided to the Agency for Persons with Disabilities in Section 40
of chapter 2015-232, Laws of Florida, shall revert and is appropriated
for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 in the Lump Sum - Home and Community Based
Services Waiver category. The agency 1g authorized to submit budget
amendments reguesting release of funds pursuant to the provisions of
chapter 216, Florida Statutes. Any requests for release of funds shall
include a plan for how the funds will be expended for increases in
Medicaid Home and Community Based Services Waiver cost plans resulting
from the application of the U.S. Department of Labor Fair Standards to
Domestic Service rule. Such plan must be based upon actuarial findings
that detail the cost increases by service category, a comparative
analysis between current service rates and those necessary to meet
compliance, and the annualized need by fund source necessary to be in
full compliance with federal law and regulations. This section shall
take effect upon becoming law.

SECTION 15, The unexpended balance of funds provided in Specific
Appropriation 251 of chapter 2015-232, Laws of Florida, provided to the
agency for Persons with Disabilities for the Home and Community Based
Services Waiver, shall revert and 1is appropriated for Fiscal Year
2016-2017 in the Lump Sum - Home and Community Based Services Walver
category. The agency 1is authorized to submit budget amendments
requesting the release of funds pursuant to the provisions of chapter
216, Florida Statutes. Any requests for release of funds shall include a
plan for how the funds will be expended for increases in Medicaid Home
and Community Based Services Waiver cost plans resulting from the
application of the U.S. Department of Labor Fair Standards to Domestic
Service rule. Such plan must be based upon actuarial findings that
detail the cost increases by service category, a comparative analysis
between current service rates and those necessary to meet compliance,
and the annualized need by fund source necessary to be in full



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCCMMITTEE DRAFT BACK OF THE BILL LANGUAGE FY 2016-17

compliance with federal law and regulaticons. This section shall take
effect upon becoming law.

SECTION 16. The unexpended balance in Section 41, chapter 2015-232,
Laws of Florida, provided to the Agency for Persons with Disabilities
for the Client Data Management System and Electronic visit Verification
gualified Expenditure Category shall revert and is appropriated to the
agency for DPersons with Disabilities for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 in the
Home and Community Services Administration category and shall be placed
in reserve. The agency i1s authorized to submit budget amendments
requesting release of funds pursuant to the provisions of chapter 216,
Florida Statutes. Any request for release of funds shall include a
detailed operaticnal work and spending plan. This section shall take
effect upon becoming law.

SECTION 17. The unexpended balance of funds appropriated to the
Department of Children and Families in Specific Appropriation 377K of
chapter 2015-232, Laws of Florida, for Central Receiving Facilities
shall revert and is appropriated to the department for Fiscal Year
2016-17 for the same purpose.

SECTION 18. The unexpended balance of funds provided in Specific
Appropriation 302a, Chapter 2015-232, Laws of Florida, for the Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Financial and Services Accountability Management
System, shall revert and is appropriated for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 to
the Department of Children and Families for the same purpose.

SECTION 19. The unexpended balance of funds provided to the Department
of Children and Families in Section 46, Chapter 2015-232, Laws of
Florida, for motor wvehicle insurance for children in foster care, shall
revert and is appropriated for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 to the department
for the same purpose.

SECTION 20. In the event and until the Federal Centers for Medicaid angd
Medicare Services reduces the federal matching percentage related to the
Preadmission Screening and Resident Review (PASRR) activities, the
agency for Health Care Administration shall continue to pay the
Department of Elder Affairs at the enhanced federal reimbursement rate
for all CARES related activities through a transfer from the @rants and
Donations Trust Fund until official approval of the amended cost
allocation plan is received by the state.

SECTION 21. The unexpended balance of funds provided to the Department
of Health for the Ed and Ethel Moore Alzheimer‘’s Disease Research
Program in Specific Appropriation 454B and Section 50, chapter 2015-232,
Laws of Florida, shall revert and is appropriated for Fiscal Year
2016-2017 for the same purpose.

SECTION 22. The unexpended balance of funds from the General Revenue
Fund provided to the Department of Health for the James and Esther King
Biomedical Research Program in Section 53 of Chapter 2015-232, Laws of
Florida, shall revert and is appropriated to Specific Appropriation 4638
for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 for the same purpose.

SECTION 23. The unexpended balance of funds from the General Revenue
Fund provided to the Department of Health for the william &. "Bill"
Bankhead, Jr., and David Coley Cancer Research Program in Section 54 of
Chapter 2015-232, Laws of Florida, shall revert and is appropriated to
Specific Appropriation 468 for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 for the same

purpose.

SECTION 24. The unexpended balance of funds appreopriated to the
Department of Veterans' Affairs in Section 56 of chapter 2015-232, Laws
of Florida, for Entrepreneur Training shall revert and is appropriated
to the department for Fiscal Year 2016-17 for the same purpose.

SECTION 25. The unexpended balance of funds apprepriated to the
Department of Veterans’ Affairs in Section 57 of chapter 2015-232, Laws
of Florida, for Work Force Training Grants shall revert and is
appropriated to the department for Fiscal Year 2016-17 for the same
purpose.



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

The moneys contained herein are appropriated from the named funds teo the
Agency for Health Care Administration, BAgency for Persons with
Digabilities, Department of Children and Families, Department of Elder
Affairs, Department of Health, and the Department of Veterans’ Affairs
as the amounts to be used to pay the salaries, other operational
expenditures and fixed capital outlay of the named agencies.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION
PROGRAM: HEALTH CARE SERVICES
CHILDREN'S SPECIAL HEALTH CARE

172 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - FLORIDA HEALTHY KIDS
CORPORATION

Funds in Specific Appropriatiens 172 and 175 are provided to the
Agency for Health Care Administration to contract with the Flerida
Healthy EKids Corporation to provide comprehensive health insurance
coverage, including dental services, to Title XXI children eligible
under the Florida EKidCare Program and pursuant to section 624.91,
Florida Statutes. The corporation shall use local funds to serve
non-Title XXI children that are eligible for the program pursuant to
section 624,91(3) (b}, Florida Statutes. The corporation shall return
unspent local funds collected in Fiscal Year 2015-2016 to provide
premium assistance for non-Title XXI eligible children based on a
formula developed by the corporation.

175 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - FLORIDA HEALTHY KIDS
CORPCRATION DENTAL SERVICES

Funds in Specific¢ Appropriation 175 are provided to the Agency for
Health Care Administration for Florida Healthy Kids dental services to
be paid a monthly premium of no more than $15.17 per member per month.

From the funds in Specific Appreopriation 175, $81,748 in nonrecurring
funds from the General Revenue Fund and $127,917 in nonrecurring funds
from the Medical Care Trust Fund is provided to DentaQuest to cover
costs associated with the Health Insurance Tax on Managed Care rates as
mandated by the Affordable Care Act.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 175, $§73,962 in nonrecurring
funds from the General Revenue Fund and $115,733 in nonrecurring funds
from the Medical Care Trust Fund is provided to MCNA Dental to cover
costs associated with the Health Insurance Tax on Managed Care rates as
mandated by the Affordable Care Act.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTION AND SUPPORT SERVICES

186 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
CONTRACTED SERVICES

From  the funds in Specific  Appropriation 186, 52,935,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the Medical Care Trust Fund is provided to the
Agency for Health Care Administration to continue the Public Benefits
Integrity Data Analytics and Information Sharing Initiative which will
detect and deter fraud, waste, and abuse in Medicaid and other public
benefit programs within the state.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 186, $500,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the Medical Care Trust Fund is provided to the
Agency for Health Care Administration to contract with an independent
consultant to develop a plan to convert Medicaid payments for nursing
home services from a cost based reimbursement methodology to a
prospective payment system. The study shall identify steps necessary for
the transition to be completed in a budget neutral manner. The report
shall be submitted to the Governor, the President of the Senate, and the
Speaker of the House of Representatives.

From the funds in Specific Appropriatien 186, $480,000 from the
Medical Care Trust Fund is provided to the Agency for Health Care
Administration to contract for the development of a single platform to
manage and oversee contracted Statewide Medicaid Managed Care (SMMC)
health plans.



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

From the funds in specific Appropriation 186, $8,721,370 in
nonrecurring funds from the Medical Care Trust Fund is provided to the
Agency for Health Care Administration for the Florida Medicaid
Management Information System/Decision Support System/Fiscal Agent
(FMMIS/DSS/FA) procurement project. Of these funds, 57,168,828 shall be
placed in reserve. The Agency for Health Care &Administration is
authorized te submit budget amendments for the release of these funds
pursuant to the provisions of chapter 216, Florida Statues. Release is
contingent upon the submission of a comprehensive operational work plan
reflecting all project tasks: and detailed spend plan reflecting
estimated and actual costs that comply with the regquirements prescribed
and funding approved by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services.

From the funds in Specific  Appropriation 186, $150,250 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund and £600,750 in
nonrecurring funds from the Medical Care Trust Fund is provided to
expand the scope of evaluations for Medicaild waivers up for renewal as
recquired by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid (CMS).

187 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - CONTRACTED SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 187, $3,000,000 from the
Grants and Donations Trust Fund and $3,000,000 from the Medical Care
Trust Fund may be used by the Agency for Health Care Administration to
contract with the Florida Medical Schools Quality Network created under
section 409.975(2), Florida Statutes.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 187,$250,000 in nonrecurring
funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the Agency for Health
care Administration to competitively procure a contract for enhanced
Medicaid fraud prevention services in Miami-Dade County at the point of
gervice. The vendor selected for this project must be capable of
applying unigue technical procedures including analytics, bicmetrics and
use of photographic images to ensure that Medicaid services are provided
to eligible recipients. In support of the contract, the agreement
between the agency and the Department of Highway Safety and Motor
Vehicles pursuant to section 322.143(10), Florida Statutes, shall allow
the contractor electronic access to the driver’'s 1license and
photographic database, provided that such access does not include record
retention.

MEDICAID SERVICES TC INDIVIDUALS

From the funds in Specific Appropriations 192A through 237, the Agency
for Health Care Administration shall provide a quarterly reconciliation
report of all Medicaid service appropriation expenditures and fund
sources. The reconciliation shall compare actual expenditures paid
through each specific appropriation category by fund either through the
Florida Medicaid Management Information System (FMMIS) or the Agency for
Health Care Administration to expenditure estimates forecasted through
the 8Social Services Estimating Conference Medicaid services forecasting
model, as directed in section 216.136(6), Florida Statutes. The
comparison shall include fund source detail for each comparison. For any
category where a variance is Iidentified, the Agency for Health Care
Administration shall submit a written corrective action plan to address
each variance by category and fund source. The recconciliation shall be
submitted to the Office of the Governor, the President of the Senate,
and the Speaker of the House of Representatives no later than 30 days
after the close of each quarter. The Agency for Health Care
Administration may submit budget amendments to the Legislative Budget
Commissicn to realign appropriation categories based on the
reconciliation pursuant to the provisions of chapter 216, Florida
Statutes.

1924 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - GRANT PROGRAM FOR
COMMUNITY PRIMARY CARE SERVICES

From the  funds in Specific Appropriation 1922, $14,275,470 in
nonrecurring General Revenue funds is provided to increase access to
primary care services in the state and to reduce and prevent unnecessary
emergency room visits and inpatient hospitalizations. In developing a
plan to increase access to primary care services and the funding of
these primary care services, the agency shall solicit proposals from
county health departments, community health care cliniecs, and Federally
Qualified Health Centers in order to expand primary care clinic services



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

for the uninsured and underinsured. The agency shall solicit grant
proposals and award grants te those programs most capable of reducing
health spending while improving the health status of uninsured and
underinsured persons in their communities. Programs receiving these
grants shall reduce unnecessary emergency room visits and preventable
hospitalizations by providing disease management; improving patient
compliance; and coordinating services, such as needed physician, dental,
nurse practitioner, and pharmaceutical services. There is a cap of
$1,500,000 per grant proposal. The agency shall evaluate grant proposals
and develop reporting requirements for grant recipients to measure the
effectiveness of the grant-funded programs. The specific reporting
requirements shall be incorporated into the competitive sclicitation
which will also identify the evaluation methodology and establish a
timetable for publishing results.

194 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
CASE MANAGEMENT

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 194, 51,154,142 from the
Medical Care Trust Fund is provided to the Agency for Health Care
Administration for Medicaid reimbursable services that suppert children
enrolled in contracted medical foster care programs under the Department
of Health. This funding is contingent upon the availability of state
matching funds in the Department of Health in Specific Appropriation
541.

185 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriatiens 195 and 196, the Agency for
Health Care Administration in consultation with the Department of
Children and Families may seek approval from the federal Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services to implement a certified public
expenditure or similar mechanism to increase reimbursement rates for
services reimburged to community behavioral health care providers.

197 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
DEVELOPMENTAL EVALUATION AND INTERVENTION/
PART C

Funds in Specific Appropriation 197 are contingent on the
availability of state mateh being provided in Specific Appropriation
547.

199 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - RURAL HOSPITAL FINANCIAL
LASSTISTANCE PROGRAM

Funds in Specific Appropriation 199 are provided for a federally
matched Rural Hospital Disproportionate Share program and a state funded
Rural Hospital Financial Assistance program as provided in section
409.9116, Florida Statutes.

From the funds in Specific Appreopriation 199, the calculations of the
Medicaid Hospital Funding Program for the 2016-2017 fiscal year are
incorporated by reference in SPB 2502. The calculations are the basis
for the appropriations made in the General Appropriations Act.

201 SPECIAL CATEGCRIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - SHANDS TEACHING HOSPITAL

The funds in Specific Appropriation 201 shall be primarily designated
for transfer to the Agency for Health Care Administration’s Grants and
Donations Trust Fund for use in the Medicaid program. Should the Agency
for Health Care Administration be unable to use the full amcunt of these
designated funds as Medicaid match, the remaining funds may be used
secondarily for payments to Shands Teaching Hospital to continue the
original purpose of providing health care services to indigent patients
through Shands Healthcare System.

Fram the funds in Specific Appropriation 201, $500,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the Grants and Donaticns Trust Fund is provided
to Shands Teaching Hospital.



HHS APPROPRIATIQNS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

204 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
HOSPICE SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriations 204 and 218, $15,726,441
from the Grants and Donations Trust Fund and $24,608,109 from the
Medical Care Trust Fund are provided to buy back hospice rate
reductions, effectiwve on or after January 1, 2008, and are contingent on
the nonfederal share being provided through nursing home gquality
assessments. Authority is granted to buy back rate reductions up teo, but
no higher than, the amounts available under the budgeted authority in
this Specific¢ Appropriation. In the event that the funds are not
available in the Grants and Donations Trust Fund, the State of Florida
is not obligated to continue reimbursements at the higher amount.

205 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRADUATE MEDICAL EDUCATION

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 205, %31,192,000 from the
General Revenue Fund, $38,990,000 from the Grants and Donations Trust
Fund and $109,818,000 from the Medical Care Trust Fund are provided to
fund the Statewide Medicaid Residency Program and the Graduate Medical
Education Startup Bonus Program. Of these funds $80,000,000 shall be
used to fund the Statewide Medicald Residency Program in accordance with
section 409.909(3), Flerida Statutes. O©Ff these funds, $42,262,976 shall
be distributed to the two hospitals with the largest number of graduate
medical resgidents in statewide supply/demand deficit. The remaining
funds shall be used to fund the @raduate Medical Education Startup Bonus
Program in accordance with section 409.909(5), Florida Statutes, and are
provided for the following physician specialties and subspecialties,
both adult and pediatric, that are in statewide supply/demand deficit:
allergy or immunology; anesthesiolegy; cardiology; endocrinology; family
medicine; general surgery; hematology; oncology; infectious diseases;
nephrelogy; neurclogy; obstetrics/gynecology; ophthalmology; orthopedic
surgery; otolaryngology; psychiatry; pulmonary; radiology; rheumatoclogy;
thoracic surgery; and urology. Funding for the Graduate Medical
Education Startup Bonus Program ig contingent on the nonfederal share
being provided through intergovernmental transfers in the Grants and
Donations Trust Fund.

206 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
HOSPITAL INPATIENT SERVICES

Funds in Specific Appropriation 206 are contingent upon the state
share being provided through grants and donations from state, county or
other govermmental funds. In the event the state share provided through
grants and donatiens in the Grants and Donations Trust Fund is not
available, the Agency for Health Care Administration may submit a
revised hospital reimbursement plan to the Legislative Budget Commission
for approval.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 206, the calculations of the
Medicaid Hospital Funding Program for the 2016-2017 fiscal yvear are
incorporated by reference in SPB 2502. The calculations are the basis
for the appropriations made in the General Appropriations Act.

From the funds in Specific 2Appropriation 206, the Agency for Health
Care Administration may establish a global fee for bone marrow
transplants and the global fee payment shall be paid to approved bone
marrow transplant providers that provide bone marrow transplants to
Medicaid beneficiaries.

Any hospital that was exempt from the inpatient reimbursement ceiling in
the prior state fiscal year, due to their charity care and Medicaid days
as a percentage to total adjusted hospital days equaling or exceeding 11
percent, but no longer meets the 11 percent threshold, because of
updated audited Disproportionate Share (DSH) data, shall remain exempt
from the inpatient reimbursement ceilings for a period of two years.

From the funds in Specific Appropriations 206 and 216, $2,867,658
from the Grants and Donations Trust Fund and $4,487,197 from the Medical
Care Trust Fund are provided to make Medicaid payments for
multi-visceral transplants and intestine transplants in Florida. The
Agency for Health Care Adminigtration shall establish a global fee for
these transplant procedures and the payments shall be used to pay
approved multi-visceral transplant and intestine transplant facilities a
global fee for providing these transplant services to Medicaid
beneficiaries. Payment of the global fee 1is contingent upon the



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

nonfederal share being provided through grants and donations from state,
county or other governmental funds. The agency is authorized to seek any
federal waiver or state plan amendment necessary to implement this
provision.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 206, the Agency for Health
Care Administratien shall apply a six percent adjustment for anticipated
case mix increases from improved documentation and coding through the
implementation of Diagnosis Related Grouping (DRG). The agency shall
also apply & one percent adjustment for real case mix change. By
February 28, 2017, the agency shall perform a reconciliation and apply
positive or negative adjustments to the reimbursements comparing actual
to predicted case mix in aggregate. Actual case mix will be measured
using admissions between April 1, 2015, and March 31, 2016, from both
the fee-for-service and managed care programs. Actual case mix in state
fiscal wvear 2016-2017 will be assumed to be higher than measured case
mix by between =zero and three percent based on case mix trending.
Effective March 1, 2017, adjustments will be performed prospectively to
the fee-for-service DRG payment parameters and will be applied for the
remainder of the fiscal year. Adjustments applied must maintain budget
neutrality for the fiscal year. No recalculation of managed care
capitation payments will be made based upon these adjustments.

From the funds in Specific BAppropriation 206, the Agency for Health
Care 2Administration shall continue a Diagnosis Related Grouping
reimbursement methodology for hospital inpatient services as directed in
section 409.905 (5) (¢}, Florida Statutes.

Base Rate - £3,237.45

Neonates Service Adjustor Severity Level 1 - 1.00
Neonates Service Adjustor Severity Level 2 - 1.60
Neonates Service Adjustor Severity Level 3 - 1.80
Neonates Service Adjustor Severity Level 4 - 2.00
Pediatrics Service/aAge Adjustor - 1.30

Free Standing Rehabilitation Provider Adjustor - 2.709
Rural Provider Adjustor - 2.088

Long Term Acute Care {(LTAC) Provider Adjuster - 2.113
High Medicaid and High Outlier Provider Adjustor - 2.303
outlier Threshold -~ $60,000

Marginal Cost Percentage - 60%/80%

Marginal Cost Percentage for Pediatric Claims Severity
Levels 3 oxr 4 - 80%

Marginal Cost Percentage for Necnates Claims Severity
3 or 4 - 80%

Documentation and Coding Adjustment - 7%

Level I Trauma Add On - 17%

Level II or Level II and Pediatric 2dd On - 11%
Pediatric Trauma Add On - 4%

Funds in Specific Appropriation 206 reflect an increase of $935,762
in nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund and $1,464,246 in
noenrecurring funds from the Medical Care Trust Fund for sole community
hogpitals that meet the definition of "rural hospital" under section
395.602(2) (e}, Florida Statutes, to be recognized as rural hospitals in
the Agency for Health Care Administration‘s Diagnosis Related Group
(DRG) reimbursement methodology services for hospital inpatient.

207 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
REGULAR DISPROPORTIONATE SHARE

Funds in specific  Appropriation 207 shall be used for a
Dispreportionate Share Hogpital Program and are contingent on the state
share being provided through grants and donations from state, county, or
other government entities.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 207, the calculations of the
Medicaid Hospital Funding Program for the 2016-2017 fiscal year are
incorporated by reference in SPB 2502. The calculationg are the basis
for the appropriations made in the General Appropriations Act.

208 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
LOW INCOME POOL

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 208, the calculations of the
Medicaid Hospital Funding Program for the 2016-2017 fiscal year are
incorporated by reference in SPB 2502. The calculations are the basis
for the appropriations made in the General Appropriations Act.



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 208, in the event the amount
of approved nonfederal share of matching funds is not provided by local
governmental entities, the agency may adjust low-income pool funds
between programs described within this specific appropriation as
necessary to ensure sufficient nonfederal matching funds. any
modification, under this provision, shall be consistent with the model,
methodology and framework utilized by the Legislature.

From the funds in Specific 2Appropriation 208, the Agency for Health
Care Administration may make low-income pool Medicaid payments in an
accelerated manner that is more frequent than on a guarterly basis
subject to the availability of state, local and federal funds.

Funds provided in Specific Appropriation 208, are contingent upon the
nonfederal share being provided through grants and donations from state,
county or other governmental funds.

209A SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - CHILDREN'S SPECIALTY
BOSPITALS

of the funds in Specific Appropriation 209a, 57,345,351 is provided
for children’s specialty hospitals in the following manner:

A1l Children‘s Hospital.............. e iemeaaas e 4,609,608
Nicklaug Children’s Hospital......... = A TR 1,935,743
Shriners Hospital for Children....... e et errarae e 400,000
Nemours Children's Health System..... A A A TR T 400,000

211 SPECTAL (ATEGORIES
HOSPITAL OQUTPATIENT SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 211, the calculations eof the
Medicaid Hospital Funding Program for the 2016-2017 fiscal year are
incorporated by reference 1in SPB 2502. The calculaticns are the basis
for the appropriations made in the General Appropriations Act.

From the funds in Specific 2Appropriations 211 and 218, 525,123,536
from the Grants and Donations Trust Fund and $39,312,309 from the
Medical Care Trust Fund are provided so that the Agency for Health Care
Administration may amend its current facility fees and physician
gervices to allow for payments to hospitals providing primary care to
low-income  individuals and participating in the Primary Care
Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH) program in Fiscal Year 2003-2004,
provided such hospital implements an emergency room diversion program so
that non-emergent patients are triaged to lesser acute settings; or a
public hospital assumed the fiscal and operating respongibilities for
one or more primary care centers previocusly operated by the Florida
Department of Health or the local county government,. Any payments made
to qualifying hospitals because of this change shall be contingent on
the state share being provided through grants and donations from
counties, local governments, public entities, or taxing districts, and
federal matching funds. This provision shall be contingent upon federal
approval of a state plan amendment.

213 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
OTHER FEE FOR SERVICE

Funds in specific appropriation 213 are for the inclusion of
freestanding dialysis clinics in the Medicaid program. The Agency for
Health Care Administration shall limit payment to $125.00 per visit for
each dialysis treatment. Freestanding dialysis facilities may obtain,
administer and submit claims directly to the Medicaid program for
End-Stage Renal Disease pharmaceuticals subject to coverage and
limitations policy. All pharmaceutical claims for this purpose must
include National Drug Codes (NDC) to permit the invoicing for federal
and/or state supplemental rebates from manufacturers. Claims for drug
products that do not include NDC information are not payable by Florida
Medicaid unless the drug product is exempt from federal rebate
requirements.

From the funds in 8Specifie Appropriation 213, the Agency for Health
Care Administration shall work with dialysis providers, managed care
organizations, and physicians to ensure that all Medicaid patients with
End Stage Renal Disease (ESRD) are educated and assessed by their
physician and dialysis provider to determine their suitability for
peritoneal dialysis (PD) as a modality choice, Further, the agency shall
consult with the dialysis community concerning suitable voluntary



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISQ FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

reporting to the state Medicaid program on members’ PD suitability.

218 SPECTAL CATEGORIES
PHYSTCIAN AND HEALTH CARE PRACTITIONER
SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 216, the Agency for Health
Care Administration is authorized to continue the physician lock-in
program for recipients who participate in the pharmacy lock-in program.

From the funds in Specific Appropriations 216, £5,000,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund, 521,524,652 in
nonrecurring funds from the Grants and Deonations Trust Fund and
$41,504,720 in nonrecurring funds from the Medical Care Trust Fund is
provided for a differential fee schedule for payments for services
provided by doctors of medicine and osteopathy as well as other licensed
health care practitioners acting under the supervision of those doctors
pursuant to existing statues and written protocols employed by or under
contract with a medical schocl in Florida. This provision shall be
contingent wupen the nonfederal share being provided through grants and
donations from state, local or other governmental funds and federal
approval of a state plan amendment.

218 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
PREPAID HEALTH PLANS

From the funds in Specific BAppropriations 218 and 224, $6,20%,347
from the Grants and Donations Trust Fund and $9,703,621 from the Medical
Care Trust Fund are provided to buy back clinic services rate
adjustments, effective on or after July 1, 2008, and are contingent on
the nonfederal share being provided through grants and donations from
state, county or other governmental funds. Autherity is granted to buy
back rate reductions up te, but not higher than, the amounts available
under the authority appropriated in this Specific Appropriation. In the
event that the funds are not available in the Grants and Donations Trust
Fund, the State of Florida is not obligated to continue reimbursements
at. the higher amount.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 218, the calculations of the
Medicaid Hospital Funding Program for the 2016-2017 fiscal year are
incorporated by reference in SPB 2502. The calculations are the basis
for the appropriations made in the General Appropriations Act.

From the funds in Specific 2Appropriation 218, $763,644 from the
General Revenue Fund and $3,054,576 from the Medical Care Trust Fund are
provided for a rate increase for Critical Pediatric Neonatal Intensive
Care Unit (NICU)/Pediatric Intensive Care Unit (PICU} services.

From the funds in Specific B&Appropriation 218, 550,881,054 in
nonrecurring funds from the from the Grants and Donations Trust Fund and
579,616,648 in nonrecurring funds from the Medical Care Trust Fund may
be used to pay prepaid Medicaid plans to support access to high quality
care from statewide essential providers through a partial sub-capitation
amount or eguivalent payment based on historic utilization of services.

From the funds in Specific Appropriations 218 and 221, $1,215,751
from the General Revenue Fund and $1,902,35% from the Medical Care Trust
Fund are provided for a rate increase for Private Duty Nursing services
provided by Licensed Practical Nurses.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 218 and 206, $10,000 from
the CGeneral Revenue Fund and $15,648 from the Medical Care Trust Fund
are provided for a rate increase for Labor and Delivery
Anesthesiologists.

222 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
STATEWIDE INPATIENT PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

The funds in Specific Appropriation 222 are provided to the Agency
for Health Care Administration for services for children in the
Statewide Inpatient Psychiatric Program. The program shall be designed
to permit prior authorization of services, monitoring and quality
assurance, discharge planning, and continuing stay reviews of all
children admitted tc the program.



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISQ FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

224 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
CLINIC SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 224, the Agency for Health
Care Administration shall apply a recurring methodology to establish
rates taking into consideration the reductions imposed on or after
October 1, 2008, in the follewing manner: (1) the agency shall divide
the total amount of each recurring reduction imposed by the number of
visits originally used in the rate calculation for each rate setting
period on or after Octocber 1, 2008, which will yield a rate reduction
per diem for each rate period; (2) the agency shall multiply the
resulting rate reduction per diem for each rate setting period on or
after October 1, 2008, by the projected number of vigits used in
establishing the current budget estimate which will yield the total
current reduction amount to be applied to current rates; (3) in the
event the total current reduction amount is greater than the historical
reduction amount, the agency ghall hold the rate reduction to the
historical reduction amount.

225 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
MEDICAID SCHOOL REFINANCING

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 225, $4,000,000¢ from the
General Revenue Fund and $6,259,041 from the Medical Care Trust Fund are
provided for school-based services provided by private schools or
charter =chools that are not participating in the school district’s
certified match program under section 409.%072, Florida Statutes, to
children vyounger than 321 years of age with specified disabilities who
are eligible for Medicaid and part B or part H of the Individuals with
Disabilities Act (IDEA}, or the exceptional student education program,
or who have an individualized educational plan.

226 QUALIFIED EXPENDITURE CATEGORY
PREPATD HEALTH PLANS

From the funds provided in Specific Appropriations 226, $236,013,498
from the General Revenue Fund and $369,304,526 from the Medical Care
Trust Fund are provided to the Agency for Health Care Administration for
payments to Medicaid prepaid health plans. The Agency for Health Care
2Administration is authorized to submit budget amendments to request
release of these funds pursuant to the provisions of chapter 216,
Florida Statutes. The budget amendments shall include a detailed
spending plan Jjustifying the need for this funding based upon the
results of the Agency’s capitation rate setting process. The amendments
shall also include actuarial reports and studies to support the need for
rate adjustments as well as detailed calculations in suppeort of the need
to access additional funding.

MEDICAID LONG TERM CARE

228 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
HOME AND COMMUNITY BASED SERVICES

From the funds in Specific 2Appropriation 228, $4,000,000 from the
General Revenue fund and $6,259,041 from the Medical Care Trust Fund are
provided for flexible services for persons with severe mental illness or
substance abuse disorders, including, but mnot limited te, temporary
housing assistance, subject to federal approval under section
409.906 (13) {e), Florida Statutes.

Prom the funds in Specific Appropriation 228, 52,000,000 from the
General Revenue Fund and $3,129,520 from the Medical Care Trust Fund is
provided for home and community based services for individuals diagnosed
with Phelan-McDermid Syndrome under section 409.9%064, Florida Statutes,
subject to federal approval. Financial eligibility for Medicaid benefits
under this plan option will be determined in the same manner as the home
and community based services waiver for persons with developmental
digabilities.

229 SPECIAL CATEGCRIES
INTERMEDIATE CARE FACILITIES/
INTELLECTUALLY DISABLED - SUNLAND CENTER

From the funds in Specific Appropriations 229, 230 and 231, the
Agency for Health Care Administration, in consultation with the Agency
for Persons with Disabilities, is authorized to transfer funds, in



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

accordance with the provisions of chapter 216, Fleorida Statutes, to
Specific Appropriation 259 for the Developmental Disabilities Home and
Community Based Waiver. Priority for the use of these funds will be
given to the planning and service areas with the greatest potential for
transition success.

230 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
INTERMEDIATE CARE FACILITIES/
DEVELOPMENTALLY DISABLED COMMUNITY

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 230, $15,255,670 from the
Grants and Donations Trust Fund and $23,871,465 from the Medical Care
Trust Fund are provided to buy back intermediate care facilities for the
developmentally disabled rate reductions, effective on or after October
1, 2008 and are contingent on the nonfederal share being provided
through intermediate care facilities for the developmentally disabled
quality assessments. Authority is granted to buy back rate reductions up
to, but not higher than, the amounts available under the budgeted
authority in this Specific Appropriation. In the event that the funds
are not available in the Grants and Donations Trust Fund, the State of
Florida is not obligated to continue reiwmbursements at the higher
amount .

The recurring methodology to be utilized by the Agency for Health Care
Administration to establigh rates taking into consideration the
reductions imposed on or after October 1, 2008, shall be to compare the
average unit appropriation with actual average unit cost as follows: 1)
the average unit appropriation shall be determined by dividing the total
appropriation in Specific Appropriation 230 by the total bed days for
the past fiscal year: 2) the total actual cost as generated based on the
July 1 rate setting shall be divided by the total bed days for the past
fiscal vyear to determine the actual unit cost:; 3) the actual unit cost
shall be reduced to a Reduced Actual Unit Cost by the same percentage
used to calculate the Legislative Appropriation to account for client
participation contributions; 4} no negative adjustment to the rates paid
to providers shall occur so long as the Reduced Actual Unit Cost is
equal to or less than the average unit appropriation; and 5) in the
event the Reduced Actual Unit Cost is greater than the average unit
appropriation a prorated reduction shall be imposed on all rates after
all Quality Assessment Fee funds have been exhausted to cover the rate
reductions.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 230, 54,023,672 from the
General Revenue Fund and $6,296,081 from the Medical Care Trust Fund are
provided for an Intermediate Care Facility for the Developmentally
Disabled (ICF/DD} rate increase.

The Agency for Health Care Administration shall not pay any legal
judgments, settlements, lawsuit damages or awards imposed by a court as
the result of any legal proceeding relating to prior fiscal years
without specific authority in the General Appropriations Act.

231 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
NURSING HOME CARE

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 231, the Agency for Health
Care Administration, in consultation with the Department of Health, is
authorized to transfer funds in accordance with the provisions of
chapter 216, Florida Statutes, to specific Appropriation 228
specifically for slots under the Model Waiver, Specific Appropriation
527A Brain and Spinal Cord Home and Community Based Services Waiver, and
specific Appropriation 232 Statewide Medicaid Managed Care Long-Term
Care Waiver to transition the greatest number of appropriate eligible
beneficiaries from skilled nursing facilities to community-based
alternatives in order to maximize the reduction in Medicaid nursing home
occupancy. Priority for the use of these funds will be given to the
planning and service areas with the greatest potential for tramsition
SuCCess.

From the funds in Specific Appropriations 231 and 232, $403,982,869
from the Grants and Donations Trust Fund and $632,136,313 from the
Medical Care Trust Fund are provided to buy back nursing facility rate
reductions, effective on or after January 1, 2008, and are centingent on
the nonfederal share being provided through nursing heme quality
asgessments. AButhority is granted to buy back rate reductions up to, but
not higher than the amounts available under the budgeted authority in
this Specific appropriation. In the event that the funds are not
available in the Grants and Donations Trust Fund, the State of Florida



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

is not obligated to continue reimbursements at the higher ameount.

232 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
PREFAID HEALTH PLAN/LONG TERM CARE

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 232, $3,600,000 from the
General Revenue Fund and $5,633,137 from the Medical Care Trust Fund are
provided to serve elders on the Medicaid Long Term Care waitlist whe
have been classified as a priority score of four or higher.

237 QUALIFIED EXPENDITURE CATEGORY
PREFATD HEALTH PLANS - LONG TERM CARE

From the funds provided in Specific Appropriation 237, $38,664,030
from the General Revenue Fund and $60,499,935 from the Medical Care
Trust Fund are provided to the Agency for Health Care Administration for
payments to Medicaid prepaid health plans. The Agency for Health Care
Administration is authorized to submit budget amendments to request
release of these funds pursuant to the provisions of chapter 216,
Florida Statutes. The budget amendments shall include a detailed
spending plan Jjustifying the need for this funding based upon the
results of the agency’s capitation rate setting process. The amendments
shall also include actuarial reports and studies to support the need for
rate adjustments as well as detailed calculations in support of the need
to access additional funding.

AGENCY FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
PROGRAM: SERVICES TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
HOME AND COMMUNITY SERVICES

255 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANT AND AID INDIVIDUAL AND FAMILY
SUPPORTS

Funds in Specific Appropriation 255 expended tor developmental
training programs shall reguire a 12.5 percent match from local sources.
In-kind match is acceptable provided there are no reductions in the
number of persons served or level of services provided.

From the funds in Specific  Appropriation 255, $500,000 in
nenrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided for
supported employment services for individuals on the waiting list for
the Developmental Disabilities Medicaid Waiver program in Specific
Appropriation 25%. The supported employment services shall be provided
in a manner consistent with the same rules and regulations governing
these gservices in the Developmental Disabilities Medicaid Wailver
program, and may additicnally be used toward cbtaining and maintaining
paid or unpaid internships.

258 SPECIAL, CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - CONTRACTED SERVICES

From the funds in specific Appropriation 258, 41,200,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to Our
Pride Academy to establish a child care training program for individuals
with developmental disabilities.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 258, $2,000,000 from the
General Revenue Fund 1is provided to the ARC of Florida for dental
services to individuals with developmental disabilities.

From the funds in specific Appropriation 258, &§1,616,060 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the
foliowing projects:

Angels Reach Foundation, InC......c..ceuvesvresoanarnnsiasnnnsn 50,000
Area Stage Company (ASC) Developmental Disabilities

Theater Program for Children.........ceceevrsrermnnnninnanscs 150,000
MACTown Fitness and Wellness Center......ouveeunranncnsronnn 150,000
Mailman Center for Child Development...........c.cuiuiuiassnscn 800,000
Operation Grow - Seminole County Work Opportunity Program. .. 316,060
The Arc Tampa Bay Foundation... ... .. .......... b AR e e e 150,000

10



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

259 SPECTAL CATEGURIES
HOME AND COMMUNITY BASED SERVICES WAIVER

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 259, $14,188,744 from the
General Revenue Fund and $22,201,981 from the Operations and Maintenance
Trust Fund are provided to expand the Individual Budget (iBudget} Waiver
by removing the greatest number of individuals permissible under the
additional funding.

Funds in specific Appropriation 259 shall not bhe used for
administrative costs. Funds for developmental training programs shall
reguire a 12.5 percent match from local sources. In-kind match is
acceptable provided there are no reductions in the number of persons
served or level of services provided.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 259, the Agency for Persons
with Disabilities shall provide to the Governor, the President of the
Senate, and the Speaker of the House of Representatives monthly
surplus-deficit reports projecting the total Medicaid Waiver program
expenditures for the fiscal year along with any corrective action plans
necessary to align program expenditures with annual appropriations.

261A GRANTS AND AIDS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AND
NONSTATE ENTITIES - FIXED CAPITAL OUTLAY
FIXED CAPITAL OUTLAY FOR PERSONS WITH
DISABILITIES

From the funds in Specific  Appropriation 261A, $600,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the City
of Hialeah @Gardens to provide water therapy for individuals with
disabilities.

2061B GRANTS AND ATDS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AND
NONSTATE ENTITIES - FIXED CAPITAL OUTLAY
BRANDON SPORTS AND RQUATIC CENTER FOR
INDIVIDUALS WITH UNIQUE ABILITIES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 2618, $850,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the Q@eneral Revenue Fund is provided to the
Brandon Sporte and Aguatic Center for individuals with unique abilities.

261C GRANTS AND AIDS TO LOCAL GCVERNMENTS AND
NONSTATE ENTITIES - FIXED CAPITAL OUTLAY
PALM BEACH HABILITATION CENTER FACILITY
MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, OR NEW CONSTRUCTION

From  the funds in Specific Appropriation 261C, 5166,511 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the Palm
Beach Habilitation Center for roofing repairs or replacement.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 261C, $482,600 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the Palm
Beach Habilitation Center for the repair or replacement of fire safety
and potable water systems.

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE

271 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
HOME AND COMMUNITY SERVICES ADMINISTRATION

From the funds in Specific Bppropriation 271, $1,881,929 in
nonrecurring funds from the Operations and Maintenance Trust Fund shall
be placed in reserve and is provided to the Agency for Persons with
Disabilities to implement the ¢Client Data Management System for the
purpose of providing electronie wverification of service delivery to
recipients by providers, electronic billings for Developmental
Disabilities Medicaid Waiver services, and electronic processing of
claims. The agency is authorized to submit budget amendments requesting
release of funds pursuant to the provisions of chapter 216, Florida
Statutes. Any request for release of funds ghall include a detailed
operational work and spending plan.

DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY CENTERS - CIVIL PROGRAM

From the funds provided to the Developmental Disability Centers - Civil
Program, the Agency for Persons with Disabilities shall provide to the
Governor, the President of the Senate, and the Speaker of the House of
Representatives monthly surplus-deficit reports projecting the total
civil program expenditures of the Developmental Disability Centers for

11



BHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL -YEAR 2016-17

the fiscal vyear along with any corrective action plans necessary to
align program expenditures with annual appropriations.

285 FIXED CAPITAL OUTLAY
AGENCY FOR PERSCNS WITH DISABILITIES FIXED
CAPITAL QUTLAY NEEDS FOR CENTRALLY MANAGED
FACILITIES

From the funds in  Specific¢ Appropriation 288, $1,305,485 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided for William
"Billy Joe" Rish Recreational Park.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 285, $1,294,515 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided for
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) accessibility modifications and
other critical repairs to state facilities.

DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY CENTERS - FORENSIC
PROGRAM

From the funds provided to the Developmental Disability Centers
Forensic Program, the Agency for Persons with Disabilities shall provide
te the Governor, the President of the Senate, and the Speaker of the
House of Representatives monthly surplus-deficit reports projecting the
total forensic program expenditures of the Developmental Disability
Centers for the fiscal year along with any corrective action plans
necegsary to align program expenditures with annual appropriations.

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES, DEPARTMENT OF
ADMINISTRATION

PROGRAM: SUPPORT SERVICES
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

From the funds in Specific Appropriations 315 through 321B, the
Department of Children and Families shall provide a report to the chair
of the Senate Apprepriations Committee and the chair of the House
Appropriations Committee by December 1, 2016, that categorizes the
funding and full-time equivalency positions supporting the Florida Safe
Family Network ({FSFN), the Plorida Online Recipients Integrated Data
Access (FLORIDA), or other department applications. The report data must
identify funds by the budget entity, program component, appropriation
category, fund, and fund source identifier lewvels.

31%9a SPECIAL CATEGORIES
FLORIDA SAFE FAMILIES NETWORK (FSFN)
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SYSTEM

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 31934, the nonrecurring sums
of 2,126,194 from the General Revenue Fund, $1,066,914 from the Federal
Grants Trust Fund, and $3,504,902 from the Welfare Transition Trust Fund
are provided to the Department of Children and Families to procure
contracted services support to enhance the Florida Safe Families Network
(FSFN) application. The FSFN enhancements shall include, but not be
limited to: a) refinements to the Child Welfare Safety Methodology
Practice  Model; b} data reporting improvements to support the
Cormunity-Based Care providers and management reporting; and c) align
the FSFN system processes to recent policy revisions., The enhancements
shall be developed and deployed through the dJdepartment’s Software
Development Life Cycle. These funds shall be placed in reserve. The
department may submit budget amendments, which include a detailed
operational work plan and project spending plan, pursuant to chapter
216, Florida Statutes, for the release of these funds.

The department =shall provide guarterly updates on the progress of the
FSFN enhancements to the chair of the Senate Appropriations Committee,
the chair of the House Appropriations Committee, and the Executive
office of the Governor’s Office of Policy and Budget.

321A QUALIFIED EXPENDITURE CATEGORY
SUBSTANCE ABUSE AND MENTAL HEALTH
FINANCIAL, AND SERVICES ACCOUNTABILITY
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 321A, the nonrecurring sum of
2,000,000 from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the Department
of Children and Families for the continved development and
implementation of a uniform management information and fiscal accounting

12



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

system for use by providers of community substance abuse and mental
health services. The department ig auvthorized to submit budget
amendments requesting release of these funds pursuant to the provisions
of chapter 216, Florida Statutes.

321B DATA PROCESSING SERVICES
STATE DATA CENTER - AGENCY FOR STATE
TECHNOLOGY (AST}

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 321B, the nonrecurring sums
of $730,783 from the General Revenue Fund and 5802,786 from the Federal
Grants Trust Fund are provided to the Department of Children and
Families for the nonrecurring costs associated with the replacement of
the mainframe infrastructure supporting the Florida On-Line Recipient
Integrated Data Access (FLORIDA) and Florida Safe Families Network
{FSFN) applications. The mainframe replacement shall provide increased
processing capacity to ensure an acceptable system performance for the
users of the FLORIDA and FSFN applications, and support the anticipated
system growth based on the department’'s reguested enhancements to the
FSFN application. The mainframe replacement shall be physically located
at the Southwood Shared Resource Center.

SERVICES
PROGRAM: FAMILY SAFETY PROGRAM
FAMILY SAFETY AND PRESERVATION SERVICES

326 LUMP SUM
SHARED RISK FUND FOR COMMUNITY BASED
PROVIDERS OF CHILD WELFARE SERVICES

The funds provided in Specific Appropriation 326 are available to
community-based care lead agencies pursuant to the provisions of section
409.990, Florida Statutes.

329 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
CONTRACTED SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 3289, the nonrecurring sum of
$750,000 from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the Department of
Children and Families to continue contracting for the analytics and
predictive analysis initiative within the child welfare system.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 329, the nonrecurring sum of
$500,000 from the General Revenue Fund shall be placed in reserve and is
provided to the Department of Children and Families for the continuation
of the Child Welfare Results Oriented Accountability System as described
in section 409.997, Florida Statutes. The department is authorized to
request the release of funds pursuant to the provisions of chapter 216,
Florida Statutes.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 329, the nonrecurring sum of
$250,000 from the General Revenue Fund shall be placed in reserve and is
provided to the Department of Children and Femilies for mobile
technology  enhancements for field investigators, inspectors, and
caseworkers in the Child Welfare Svstem. The department is authorized
to request the release of funds pursuant to the provisions of chapter
216, Florida Statutes.

330 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND ATDS - CONTRACTED SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 330, the nonrecurring sum of
51,382,800 from the General Revenue fund is provided for the following

projects:

Camillus House - Human Trafficking Recovery Program..... . 250,000
Kristi House - Drop-in Center for sexually exploited

adolescent girls. .. v cene oo cm o e e i sa i - 200,000
Devereux, Inc. - Services to sexually exploited youth....... 359,000
Victory For Youth, In¢. - Share Your Heart Program...... . 373,800
His House Children‘s Home - Residential Program......... i 100,000
Breaking the Cycle Institute - Child to Parent Domestic

Viclence Family PrOOraN.. . eesersccomemeeransisrassnsanss : . 100,000

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 330, the nonrecurring sum of
$200,000 frem the General Revenue Fund is provided to the City of
Hollywood Community Development Department for day care scholarships for
the Liberia and Washington Park neighborheods.

13



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

331 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - GRANTS TO SHERIFFS FOR
PROTECTIVE INVESTIGATIONS

The funds in Specific Appropriation 331 sghall be used by the
Department of Children and Families to award grants to the sheriffs of
the following counties to conduct child protective investigations as
mandated in section 39.3065, Florida Statutes. The funds shall he
allocated as follows:

Broward County Sheriff.......... eesaseemiereaieee-sasesaas 15,054,474
Hillsborough County Sheriff..........-..... L T, e . 13,430,952
Manatee County Sheriff..... JR Ty Ny S S 4,719,787
Pasco County Sheriff. . ..... f s s s SR e AR e v e W e w 6,241,374
Pinellas County Sheriff..... ... civioear i vera-s 11,828,667
Seminole County Sheriff.......... S RN X< F L. kR ¥ 4,537,152

332 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - DOMESTIC VICQLENCE
PROGRAM

From the funds in Specific 2Appropriation 332, §11,964,596 from the
General Revenue Fund, 57,897,064 from the Domestic Vieolence Trust Fund,
$10,799,061 from the Federal Grants Trust Fund and %7,750,000 from the
Welfare Transition Trust Fund shall be provided to the Florida Coalitien
Against Domestic Violence for implementation of programs and the
management and deliivery of services of the state’s domestic violence
program including implementation of statutory directives contained in
chapter 39, Florida S$tatutes, implementation of special projects,
coordinate a strong families and domestic violence campaign, expansion
of the child welfare and domestic co-location projects, conduct training
and provide technical assistance to certified domestic violence centers
and allied professionals, and administration of contracts designated
under this appropriation.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 332, $208,391 f£from the
Federal Grants Trust Fund is provided to the Florida Coalition Against
Domestic Viclence to implement portions of the Grants to Enceourage
aArrest Policies and Enforcement of Protection Orders Program.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 332, $195,987 from the
Federal Grants Trust Fund is provided to the Florida Council Against
Sexual Vielence to lmplement portions of the Grants to Encourage Arrest
Policies and Enforcement of Protection Orders Program.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 332, 51,192,219 from the
Federal Orants Trust Fund shall be transferred to the Department of
Health to contract with the Florida Council Against Sexual Violence to
implement portions of the Violence Against Women Act STOP Formula Grant.

333 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION
AND INTERVENTION

Funds provided in Specific Appropriation 333 shall be provided for
the Healthy Families Program.

338 SPECIAIL CATEGORIES
SPECIAL NEEDS ADOPTION INCENTIVES

The funds provided in Specific Appropriation 338, are provided for
state employee adeption benefits pursuant to section 409.1664, Florida
Statutes.

342 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - COMMUNITY BASED CARE
FUNDS FOR PROVIDERS OF CHILD WELFARE
SERVICES

From the funds provided in Specific Appropriation 342, 52,500,000
from the General Revenue Fund is provided for adoption incentive awards
to community-based care lead agencies or their subcontractors, pursuant
to section 409.1662, Florida Statutes.

3423 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - ADOPTION ASSISTANCE
PAYMENTS AND MAINTENANCE SUBSIDIES

Funds provided in Specific Appropriation 342aA, are provided to

14



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

community-based care lead agencies for the payment of adoption
assistance subsidies pursuant to section 409.166, Florida Statutes.

By February 15, 2017, the Department of Children and Families shall
provide to the chair of the Senate Appropriations Committee and the
chair of the House Appropriations Committee, a report providing the
total number of finalized adoptions occurring from July 1, 2016 through
January 31, 2017. For each lead agency during this period, the report
must include the number of adopticns finalized, the average subsidy
amount, the number of adoptees receiving an enhanced subsidy, and the
average enhanced subsidy amount. The report must alsc include a year-end
projection of the total funding need for adoption assistance subsidies
based upon, but not limited to, the aforementioned data reqguirements.

By April 30, 2017, the department shall perform a reconciliation of the
funding appropriated and the projected expenditures for adoption
assistance subsidies for each lead agency. Any projected vear-end
surplus of funding shall either revert or, if necessary, be re-allocated
to lead agencies that are projecting a year-end deficit.

PROGRAM: MENTAL HEALTH PROGRAM
MENTAL: HEALTH SERVICES

350 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - CONTRACTED PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES

From the funds in Specifie Appropriation 350, %1,211,727 from the
General Revenue Fund is provided to contract with a mental health
facility for no less than 11 additional secure forensic flex beds to
ensure capacity for forensic individuals being admitted within 15 days
of a court order as reguired by chapter 916, Florida Statutes.

PROGRAM: ECONOMIC SELF SUFFICIENCY PROGRAM
ECONCMIC SELF SUFFICIENCY SERVICES

361 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - CHALLENGE GRANTS

Funds in Specific Appropriation 361, which have been transferred from
the Department of Economic Opportunity, Specific Appropriation 2224,
shall bhe used to provide services to homeless persons according teo the
provisions of section 420.622, Florida Statutes.

363 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - HCMELESS HOUSING
ASSISTANCE GRANTS

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 363, recurring sum of
$2,700,000 and the nonrecurring sum of $300,000 from the General Revenue
Fund are provided to the local homeless coalitions throughout the state.

364 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
CONTRACTED SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 364, the nonrecurring sums
of $250,000 from the General Revenue Fund and $250,000 from the Federal
Grants Trust Fund are provided for enrollment assistance for individuals
age sixty and over that are eligible, but are not enrolled in the
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program.

PROGRAM: COMMUNITY SERVICES

COMMUNITY SUBSTANCE ABUSE AND MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES

381 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - PUBLIC SAFETY, MENTAL
HEALTH, AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE LOCAL MATCHING
GRANT PROGRAM

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 381, the recurring sum of
$6,000,000 from the General Revenue Fund is provided to expand the
Criminal Justice, Mental Health and Substance Abuse Reinvestment Grant
Program.

i5



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

382 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
CHILDREN'S ACQTION TEAMS FOR MENTAL HEALTH
AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES

From the funds provided in Specific Appropriation 382, the sum of
$13,500,000 from the General Revenue Fund shall be used by the
Department of Children and Families to contract directly with each of
the following providers for a total of $750,000 each for the operation
of Community Action Treatment {(CAT) teams that provide community-based
gervices to children ages 11 to 21 with a mental health diagnosis or
co-occurring substance abuse diagnosis with accompanying characteristics
such as: being at-risk for out-of-home placement as demonstrated by
repeated failures at less intensive levels of care; having two or more
hospitalizations or repeated failures; involvement with the Department
of Juvenile Justice or multiple episodes involving law enforcement; or,
poor academic performance and/or suspensions. Children younger than 11
may be candidates if they meet two or more of the aforementioned
characteristics.

The department shall fund the following contracts:

salusCare (Lee Mental Health) - Lee

Manatee Glens - Sarasota, Desoto

Circles of Care - Brevard

Life Management Center - Bay

David Lawrence Center - Collier

Child Guidance Center - Duval

Institute for Child and Family Health - Miami-Dade
Mental Health Care - Hillsborough

Personal Enrichment Mental Health Services - Pinellas
Peace River Center - Polk, Highlands, Hardee

COPE Center - Walton

Lifestream Behavioral Center - Sumter and Lake
Family Preservation Services of Florida - Treasure Coast
Lakeside Behavioral Healthcare - Orange

Ccitrus Health Network - Miami-Dade

Manatee Glens - Manatee

Lakeview Center - Escambia

Sinfonia - Alachua

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 382, the recurring sum of
$3,750,000 from the General Revenue Fund is provided for five additional
Community Action Treatment teams in the areas of greatest need, as
determined by the Department of Children and Families.

383 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND ATDS - COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 383, the sum of %455,000
from the General Revenue Fund shall continue to be provided to the
Citrus Health Network for behavioral health services.

From the Funds in Specific Appropriation 383, the nonrecurring sum of
41,814,880 from the General Revenue Fund is provided for mental health
transitional beds to move eligible individuals currently in the state
mental health institutions to community settings as an alternative to
more costly institutional placement. The Department of Children and
Families shall «contract directly with the three not-for-profit,
comprehensive community mental health treatment facilities located in
the northern, central, and southern regions of the state that are
currently under contract with the department for this service and
qualified teo provide integrated healthcare, offer a full continuum of
care including emergency, residential, and outpatient psychiatric
services, and have immediate capacity for placement.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 383, the recurring sum of
53,260,000 from the General Revenue Fund is provided for the creation of
five pilot community forensic multidisciplinary teams designed to divert
individuals from secure forensic commitment by providing community-based
services. The teams will be placed in the areas of greatest need, as
determined by the Department of Children and Families.

385 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - COMMUNITY SUBSTANCE
ABUSE SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 385, the recurring sum of
$10,000,000 from the General Revenue Fund shall centinue to be provided

16



HHS APPROPRIATICNS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

for the expansion of substance abuse services for pregnant women,
mothers, and their affected families. These services shall include the
expansion of residential treatment, outpatient treatment with housing
support, outreach, detoxification, child care and post-partum case
management supporting both the mother and c¢hild congistent with
recoemmendations from the Statewide Task Force on Prescription Drug Abuse
and Newborns. Pricrity for services shall be given to counties with the
greatest need and available treatment capacity.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 385, §750,000 from the
General Revenue Fund is provided to the Department of Children and
Families to continue contracting dJdirectly with Informed Families of
Florida for the purpose of providing a statewide program for the
prevention of child and adolescent substance abuse.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 385, 57,400,000 from the
General Revenue Fund shall continue to be provided to implement the
Family Intensive Treatment (FIT) team model that is designed to provide
intensive team-based, family-focused, cemprehensive services to families
in the child welfare system with parental substance abuse. Treatment
shall be available and provided in accordance with the indicated level
of care required and providers shall meet program specificaticns. Funds
shall be targeted to select communities with high rates of child abuse
cases.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 385, the recurring sum of
%2,800,000 from the General Revenue Fund is provided to expand the
Family Intensive Treatment team model in the areas of greatest need, as
determined by the Department of Children and Families.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 385, $278,100 from the
General Revenue Funds shall continue to be provided to First Steps of
garasota, Inc¢., for the Drug Free Babies Program.

From the funds in Specific 2Appropriation 385, the recurring sum of
£200,000 and the nonrecurring sum of $300,000 from the General Revenue
Fund shall be provided to Here'’s Help, Inc.

From the funds in Specific 2Appropriation 385, $250,000 from the
General Reverue Fund shall continue to be provided to the Drug Abuse
Comprehensive Coordinating Office (DACCO} .

386 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - CENTRAL RECEIVING
FACILITIES

The funds in Specific Appropriation 386 are provided for a statewide
initiative to fund centralized receiving systems. A central receiving
system consists of a designated central receiving facility and other
service providers that serve as a single point or a coordinated system
of entry for individuals needing evaluation or stabilization under
gection 394.463 or section 397.675, Florida Statutes, or crisis services
as defined in subsections 394.67(17)-(18), Florida Statutes. Centralized
receiving systems provide a single point or a coordinated system of
entry for an array of behavioral health services, conduct initial
assessments and triage, and provide case management and related
services, including jail diversion programs for individuals with mental
health or substance abuse disorders. The Department of Children and
Families shall administer a matching grant program to provide funding
for the start-up or on-going costs of a centralized receiving system.
Each award, including awards granted by the department in Fiscal Year
2015-2016, may be granted for a period of up to five years, and shall
require a local match of at least 50 percent of the state award. The
department shall work with local agencies to encourage and support the
development of centralized receiving systems.

387 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
CONTRACTED SERVICES

From the funds in Specific B2ppropriation 387, the sum of $1,500,000
from the General Revenue Fund shall continue to be provided to contract
with a nonprofit organization for the distribution and associated
medical costs of naltrexone extended-release injectable medication to
treat alcochol and opioid dependency.

388 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - CONTRACTED SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 388, the nonrecurring sum of
43,293,000 from the General Revenue fund is provided for the following

17



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

projects:

Gracepoint - Crisis stabilization units.........covveevnnann B48, 000
Meridian Behavioral Healthcare, Inc., - Health home for

individuals with severe mental illnesses and substance use

o B =T 1= o 410,000
Directions for Living.....v.iieeseinanncansnnasononsrnsoarsen 400,000
Citrus Health Network - Graduate Medical Education residency

program in peyChiatry.. v iiins ittt et 350,000
Camillus House - Behavioral health services...........cncuunn 200,000
Florida Certification Board - Expansion of training center.. 300,000
Florida Certification Board - Credentialing Program for

Recovery Residence AGministrators........eeveonvenccanncnnaes 100,000
BayCare Behavioral Health - Veteran Intervention Program.... 485,000
Florida Psychological and Associated Healthcare - Behavioral

health Services. . ...vr i i i i iits st sarnnannrnesrnns 100,000
Starting Point Behavioral Healthcare - Behavieral health

LT e 1= - 100,000

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 388, the sum of $100,000
from the @General Revenue Fund is provided to the David Lawrence Center
for behavioral health services.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 388, the sum of $100,000
from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the Ft. Myers Salvation
army for behavicral health services.

395 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
CONTRACTED SERVICES - SUBSTANCE ABUSE AND
MENTAL HEALTH ADMINISTRATICHN

Funds in Specific Appropriation 395 are provided for the
administration costs of the seven regicnal managing entities that
deliver behavioral health care through local network providers.

396A GRANTS AND AIDS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AND
NONSTATE ENTITIES - FIXED CAPITAL OUTLAY
GATEWAY COMMUNITY SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 396a, the nonrecurring sum of
4200, 000 is provided to Gateway Community Services for the construction
and renovation of buildings and patient rooms.

ELDER AFFAIRS, DEPARTMENT OF
PROGRAM: SERVICES TO ELDERS PROGRAM
COMPREHENSIVE ELIGIBILITY SERVICES
397 SALARIES AND BENEFITS

From the funds in Specific Appropriations 3%7 through 404, $3,288,197
from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the Department of Elder
Affairs to fund the state portion of the Non-Preadmission Screening
Regsident Review activities. These funds are contingent upon federal
approval of the state’s submission of the amended Public Assistance Cost
Allocation Plan that identifies the services provided by the Department
of Elder Affairs’ Comprehensive Assessment and Review for Long-Term Care
Services (CARES) program for Medicaid-related activities for individuals
seeking nursing or community-based services. These funds shall be held
in reserve until official approval of the cost allocation plan is
received from the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services by
the state. Once official approval has been received, the department is
authorized to submit budget amendments for the release of these funds
and the placement of trust funded budget equal to the match in reserve,
in accordance with chapter 216, Florida Statues.

HOME AND COMMUNITY SERVICES
410 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - ALZHEIMER'S DISEASE

INITIATIVE

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 410, the following projects
are funded from nonrecurring gehneral revenue funds:

Easter Seals of South Florida...........cu00vs B 101, 850
Alzheimer’s Community Care Association........ .....-........ 250,000

18



HHS APPROPRIATIQNS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 410, $1,700,000 from the
General Revenue Fund is provided for Alzheimer’'s respite care services
to serve indiwviduals on the waitlist statewide.

411 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - COMMUNITY CARE FOR THE
ELDERLY

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 411, §2,000,000 from the
General Revenue Fund is provided to serve elders on the waitlist.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 411, %650,000 from the
General Revenue Fund and $650,000 from the Operationsz and Maintenance
Trust Fund are provided to the Area Agencies on Aging related to the
Statewide Medicaid Managed Care Long Term Care program,

413 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - OLDER AMERICHENS ACT
PROGRAM

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 413, the following projects
are funded from nonrecurring general revenue funds:

City of Hialeah Gardens - Hot MealsS...... v crunncnnansan 200,000

415 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - CONTRACTED SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 415, $50,000 in nonrecurring
funds from the General Revenue fund is provided to the Villa Serena
Group in Miami-Dade County to provide a consumer referral program for
indigent persons needing a placement in an assisted living facility. The
program will provide information and referral to assisted living
facilities in Miami-Dade County and shall provide a report by July 1,
2017 to the Executive Office of the Governor. President of the Senate
and Speaker of the House of Representatives to document the program’s
activities and make recommendations to assist indigent person’s needing
care in an assisted living facility.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 415, $500,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided for United
Home Care Assisted Living Facility - Miami Dade to provide subsidized
residency to low-income elders.

From the funds in specific  Appropriation 415, £200,000 in
nonrecurring funds frem the General Revenue Fund is provided to American
Communities for Assisted Living PFacility Housing for low income
individuals in Miami - Dade County.

419A GRANTS AND AIDS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AND
NONSTATE ENTITIES - FIXED CAPITAL OUTLAY
GRANTS AND AIDS - ALZHEIMER'S COMMUNITY
CARE AND SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 419A, $60,037 in nonrecurring
funds from the General Revenue Fund to Easter Seals South Florida.

4198 GRANTS AND AIDS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AND
NONSTATE ENTITIES - FIXED CAPITAL QUTLAY
GRANTS AND AIDS - SENICR CITIZEN CENTERS
From the funds in Specific Appropriation 4198, &100,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provide provided to
Violeta Duenas Senior Center.
CONSUMER ADVOCATE SERVICES

433 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
PUBLIC GUARDIANSHIP CONTRACTED SERVICES

From  the funds in specific  Appropriation 433, $750,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revernnue Fund 1is provided for
additional Public Guardianship services.

HEALTH, DEPARTMENT OF

PROGRAM: EXECUTIVE DIRECTION AND SUPPORT

19



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

4433 LUMP SUM
DISASTER RECOVERY SERVICES

Funds in Specific Appropriation 443A are provided tor the Department
of Health to obtain a managed disaster recovery service that does not
require the purchase of hardware. The department is authorized to
submit budget amendments for the release of the lump sum appropriation
pursuant to the provisions of chapter 216, Florida Statutes. Requests
for release of funds shall include a detailed implementation plan and
project spend plan.

PROGRAM: COMMUNITY PUBLIC HEALTH
COMMUNITY HEALTH PROMOTION

The Florida Hospital/Sanford-Burnham Translational Research Institute is
designated as a State of Florida rescurce for research in diabetes
diagnosis, prevention and treatment. The Florida Hospital/
Sanford-Burnham Translational Research Institute may coordinate with the
Department of Health on activities and grant opportunities in relation
to research in diabetes diagnosis, prevention and treatment.

453 SALARIES AND BENEFITS

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 453, $316,778 and four
positions are provided to implement the Comprehensive Statewide Tobacco
Education and Prevention Program in accordance with Section 27, Article
X of the State Constitution.

461 AID TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS
SCHOOL HEALTH SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriations 461 and 476, $5,000,000
from the Federal Grants Trust Fund is provided for school health
services using Title XXI administrative funding.

464 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - CRISIS COUNSELING

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 464, $2,000,000 from the
General Revenue Fund is provided to the Florida Pregnancy Support
Services Program. These funds must be used to provide wellness services,
including but not limited to, high blood pressure screening, flu
vaccines, anemia testing, thyreid screening, cholesterol screening,
diabetes screening, assistance with smoking cessation, and tetanus
vaccines.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 464, a minimum of 85 percent
of the appropriated funds shall be spent on direct client services,
program awareness, and communications.

The Pepartment of Health shall award a contract to the current Florida
Pregnancy Support Services Program contract management provider for this
Specifie Appropriation. The contract shall provide for payments to such
provider of £400 per month per sub-contracted direct service provider
for contract oversight, to include technical and educational support.
The department is authorized to spend no more than $50,000 for agency
program oversight activities.

466 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - CONTRACTED SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 466, 52,500,000 from the
General! Revenue Fund is provided to the Florida Council Against Sexual
violence. At least 95 percent of the funds provided shall be distributed
to certified rape crisis centers to provide services statewide for
victims of sexual assault.

From the funds in Specific 2Appropriation 466, 51,192,219 from the
Federal Grants Trust Fund is provided to the Florida Council Against
Sexual Violence to implement portions of the Violence Against Women Act
STOP Formula Grant.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 466, $750,000 from the
General Revenue Fund is provided to the Florida Heiken Children’s Vision
Program to provide free comprehensive eye examinations and eyeglasses to
financially disadvantaged school children who have no other source for

20



HHS APPROPRIATIQONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAT, YEAR 2016-17

vision care.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 466, $1,000,000 from the
General Revenue Fund is provided to VisionQuest to provide free
comprehensive eye examinations and eyveglasses to financially
disadvantaged school children who have no access to vision care. These
services will be provided statewide and VisionQuest shall be reimbursed
at current Medicaid rates for exams, refractions, and dispensing; and at
a flat rate of $48 for eyeglasses.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 466, the following projects
are funded with nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund:

Miami Dade Health Action NetworK......uceeeiaivamnionassenss 250,000
JI=Y=" 0 R 4 o o =Y - T 350,000
Mary Brogan Breast and Cervical Cancer Early Detection

PrOQEAM. o o« « s s v v s v aos srensnsassessonenananeneneatosonasninssas 300,000
Sant La Haitian Neighborhood Center..........ccevsuasccnnnas 200,000
Banyan Community Health Center................... PR o { - 500,000
St, John BOSCO CliniC. .. ieerrnocarrammnnnnnraastossnacnsnns 200,000
FIU - Telemedicine and Student Health Services...........--. 250, 000
Expanded Primary Care Access - Manatee, Sarasota

and Desoto Counties.......oovumvemeamnenians P 300,000
Andrews Institute Foundation - Eagle Fund............ e 100,000
Hands of St. Lucie County. .. .. ... .ivuvaronnn e e eeaiaaaa 700,000
Florida Donated Dental Services..........-.. Py S 170,000
Community Water Fluoridation........e.eveemnceeceranianannns 200,000

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 466, 5450,000 from the
General Revenue Fund is provided to the Florida State University College
of Medicine - Immokalee.

From the funds in Specific 2ppropriation 466, $9,500,000 from the
General Revenue Fund, of which %500,000 is nonrecurring, is provided to
the Florida Association of Free and Charitable Clinics.

467 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - HEALTHY START COALITIONS

From the funds in specific Appropriation 467, $681,250 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the
Department of Health to fund designated Healthy Start Coalitions and
federally cqualified health centers to integrate the Nurse-Family
Partnership model to provide intensive nurse visitation services for
women and their infants. From these funds, the Department of Health
shall use %10, 000 to contract with the Nurse-Family Partnership Naticnal
Service Office for process and outcome data identification, management,
and analysis. Any needed training and programmatic support will also be
provided.

470 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
WILLIAM G. "BILL" BANKHEAD, JR., AND DAVID
COLEY CANCER RESEARCH PROGRAM

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 470, £500,000 from the
Biomedical Research Trust Fund is provided to maintain the statewide
Brain Tumor Registry Program at the McKnight Brain Institute.

472 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
FLORIDA CONSORTIUM OF NATIONAL CANCER
INSTITUTE CENTERS PROGRAM

Funds in Specific Appropriation 472 are provided for the Florida
Consortium of National Cancer Institute (NCI} Centers Program
established in section 381.915, Florida Statutes.

Cancer centers are eligible for Tier 1, Tier 2 and Tier 3 designation to
participate in the Florida Consortium of Naticnal Cancer Imstitute (NCI)
Centers Program as follows: H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center and Research
Institute is eligible for Tier 1 designation as a NCI-designated
comprehensive cancer center; and the University of Miami Sylvester
Comprehensive Cancer Center and the University of Florida Health Shands
Cancer Hospital are eligible for Tier 3 designation in the Florida
Consortium of NCI Centers Program.

472A SPECIAL CATEGORIES
BICMEDICAL RESEARCH

From the funds in Specific 2Appropriation 472a, $2,600,000 from the
Biomedical Research Trust Fund is provided to the Sanford-Burnham

21



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

Medical Research Institute.

From the funds in Specific Mppropriation 472A, $250,000

in

nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the

Torrey Pines Institute for Molecular Studies.

473 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
ENDOWED CANCER RESEARCH

Funds in Specifiec Appropriation 473 are provided to the Maye Clinic
Cancer Center of Jacksonville to fund an endowed cancer research chair

pursuant to section 381.922(4), Florida Statutes.

474 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
ALZHEIMER RESEARCH

Funds in Specific Appropriation 474 are provided for the Ed and Ethel
Moore Alzheimer’s Disease Research Program established in section

381,82, Florida Statutes.

480 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
COMPREHENSIVE STATEWIDE TOBACCO PREVENTION
AND EDUCATION PROGRAM

FPunds in Specific Appropriation 480 shall be used to implement the

Comprehensive Statewide Tobacco Education and Prevention Program
accordance with Section 27, Article X of the State Constitution
adjusted annually for inflation, using the Consumer Price Index

in
as
as

published by the United States Department of NLabor. The appropriation

ghall be allocated as follows:

State & Community Interventions.......... eerasernrieenanas 11,202,740
State & Community Interventions - AHEC. ... ......viieiiararoas 5,607,264
Health Communications Interventions..... e e 22,561,422
Cessation Interventions.................. R veecsres-a. 13,366,084
Cessation Interventions - AHEC......c.uiauecnnnna B 7,602,298
surveillance & Evaluation........veeenesacasnas T 6,040,198
Administration & Management ... ..o eeveseneivasrsicnsaannnn AN 1,372,012

From the funds in Specific BAppropriation 480, the Department

of

Health may use nicotine replacements and other treatments approved by
the federal Food and Drug Administration as part of smoking cessation

interventions.

A1l contracts awarded through this Specific Appropriation shall include
performance measures and measurable outcomes. The Department of Health
shall establish specific performance and accountability criteria for all

intervention and evaluation contracts. The criteria shall be based

on

best medical practices, past smoking cesgation experience, the federal
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Best Practices for
Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs, and the ability to impact the

broadest population.

481A GRANTS AND AIDS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AND
NONSTATE ENTITIES - FIXED CAPITAL OUTLAY
GRANTS AND AIDS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AND
NONSTATE ENTITIES - FIXED CAPITAL OUTLAY

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 481a 353,000,000

in

nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the

Mount Sinai Medical Center.
481B GRANTS AND AIDS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AND
NONSTATE ENTITIES - FIXED CAPITAL QUTLAY
RURAL HOSPITALS

From  the funds in Specific Appropriation 481B, $2,000,000

in

nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided for the

Rural Hespital Capital Improvement Program and shall be allocated
accordance to the grant process in section 395.6061, Florida Statutes.

DISEASE CONTROL AND HEATLTH PROTECTION

486 AID TD LOCAL GOVERNMENTS
GRANTS AND ATDS - RYAN WHITE CONSORTIL

in

Funds in Specific aAppropriation 486 from the Federal Grants Trust
Fund are contingent upon sufficient state matching funds being
identified to qualify for the federal Ryan White grant award. The
Department of Health and the Department of Corrections shall collaborate

22



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

in determining the amount of general revenue funds expended by the
Department of Corrections for AIDS-related activities and services that
qualify as state matching funds for the Ryan White grant.

491 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
CONTRACTED SERVICES

From the funds in S8pecific Appropriation 491, $450,000 from the
General Revenue Fund is provided to the Birth Defects Registry.

492 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND ATDS - CONTRACTED SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 4%2, 51,000,000 from the
General Revenue Fund is provided for Florida academic and research
institutions designated as Centers for AIDS Research {CFAR} by the
National Institutes of Health to enhance high qguality HIV/AIDS research
projects conducted in response to the health needs of Florida's
citizens.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 492, the following projects
are funded with nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund:

The Center of Central Florida. .. ...ucevuorvavnannnrnnsnnn e 35,000
HIV/AIDS Qutreach for Broward Health.........ccevemnnuns . 350,000
Hope & Health Center - Hug Me! Pediatric and Adelescent

HIV CAre PrOQram. -« -v.ueevesorssorsassnmmasnasranseronssasmmss 710,000

STATEWIDE PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES

518 AID TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS
GRANTS AND ATDS - LOCAL HEALTH COUNCILS

From  the funds in Specific  Appropriation 518, 5500,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the
Health Council of South Florida.

521a LUMP SUM
COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS

The release of nonrecurring funds in Specific Appropriation 5213 is
contingent upon the Department of Health submitting a budget amendment,
in accordance with the provisicns of chapter 216, Florida Statutes,
detailing the distribution of funds to eligible Federally Qualified
Health Centers.

524 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
CONTRACTED SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 524, §500,000 from the
General Revenue Fund is provided to the Department of Health to support
the Florida Prescription Drug Monitoring Program.

525 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - CONTRACTED SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 525, $250,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the
Bitner/Plante Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis Initiative of Florida.

526 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
DRUGS, VACCINES AND OTHER BIQLOGICALS

Funds in Specific Appropriation 526 from the Federal Grants Trust
Fund are contingent upon sufficient state matching funds being
identified to qualify for the federal Ryan White grant award. The
Department of Health and the Department of Corrections shall collaborate
in determining the amount of state general revenue funds expended by the
Department of Corrections for AIDS-related activities and services that
gualify as state matching funds for the Ryan White grant.

527A SPECIAL CATEGORIES
BRATN AND SPINAL CORD HOME AND COMMUNITY
BASED SERVICES WAIVER

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 527A, $389,032 from the
General Revenue Fund and $608,743 from the Brain and Spinal Cord Injury
Program Trust Fund are provided to expand the current Traumatic Brain
Injury/Spinal Cord Injury Medicaid Waiver to serve an additional 25

23



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

individuals. The funding shall be used to reduce the current waitlist
for those individuals that are at the greatest risk for
institutionalization or developing secondary complications requiring
hospitalization.

530 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - STATE AND FEDERAL
DISASTER RELIEF OPERATIONS

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 530, £150,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to Florida
International University’s Disaster Medical Response Program to enhance
the deployment capabilities of the university’s disaster medical
rasponse teams.

532 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - SPINAL CORD RESEARCH

From the funds in Specific  Appropriation 532, $200,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the
Miami Project to Cure Paralysis.

536A GRANTS AND AIDS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AND
NONSTATE ENTITIES - FIXED CAPITAL OUTLAY
GRANTS AND AIDS TC LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AND
NONSTATE ENTITIES -~ FIXED CAPITAL QUTLAY

From the funds in specific Appropriation 536A, 5$200,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund are provided to the
West Pembroke Pines Clinic.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 536a, $70,000 in nonrecurring
funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to Florida International
University’s Digaster Medical Response Program to enhance the deployment
capabilities of the university’'s disaster medical response teams.

PROGRAM: CHILDREN'S MEDICAL SERVICES
CHILDREN'S SPECIAL HEALTH CARE

From the funds is Specific Appropriations 537 through 549, the
Department of Health shall provide to the Governor, the President of the
Senate, and the Speaker of the House of Representatives monthly
gsurplus-deficit reports projecting the total Children's Medical Services
expenditures, by program, for the fiscal! year along with any corrective
action plans necessary to align program expenditures with annual
appropriations.

541 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - CHILDREN'S MEDICAL
SERVICES NETWORK

Funds in Specific Appropriation 541 shall not be used to support
continuing education courses or training for health professionals or
staff employed by the Children’s Medical Services (CMS} Network or under
contract with the Department of Health. This limitation shall include
but not be limited to: classroom instruction, train the trainer, or
web-based continuing education courses that may be considered
professional development, or that results in continuing education
credits that may be applied towards the initial or subgeguent renewal of
a health professional’s license. This does not preclude the CMS Network
from providing information on treatment methodologies or best practices
to appropriate CMS Network health professionals, staff, or contractors.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 541, $1,000,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to the St.
Joseph’s Children’s Hospital.

5413 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - SAFETY NET PROGRAM

The funds in Specific &ppropriation 5412 shall be used by the
Department of Health Children’'s Medical Services Program to provide
benefits authorized in section 391.0315, Florida Statutes, for children
with chronic and serious medical conditions who do not qualify for
Medicaid or Title XXI of the Social Security Act. Children eligible for
assistance using these funds must be uningured, or ingured but not
covered for medically necessary services, or unable to access services
due to lack of providers or lack of financial resources regardless of
insurance status. The Department may serve children on a first-come,

24



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

first-serve basis until the appropriated funds are fully obligated.
Receiving services through the Safety Net Program does not constitute an
entitlement for coverage or services when funds appropriated for this
purpose are exhausted.

544 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - CONTRACTED SERVICES

From the funds in specific  Appropriation 544, $250,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided for the
Department of Health and the Information Clearinghouse on Developmental
Disabilities Advisory Council te work in collaboration with internal and
external stakeholders, including but not limited to, the Children’s
Medical Services Program, Local Early Steps providers, Area Health
Education Centers, the Agency for Health Care Administration, the Agency
for Persons with Disabilities, and the Department of Education to
conduct a statewide marketing campaign to promote Bright Expectations -
the Information Clearinghouse on Developmental Disabilities -
egtablished pursuant to section 383.141, Florida Statutes. The
statewide marketing campaign shall be designed to educate the broadest
population permissible under the funds provided in this Specific
Appropriation and shall include, but not be limited to, social media,
print, radio, and the proliferation of informational pamphlets in all
health care settings where the target market receives health care
services.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 544, the following projects
are funded with nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund:

Guardian Hands Foundation.....eeveeeevanrenroassnvsnsnannnnnn 50,000
Islet Cell Transplantation to Cure Diabetes..........ccvuea.n 321,668
Sertoma Speech and Hearing Foundation of FL.......ovveeenaus 223,326

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 544, 5300,000 from the
General Revenue Fund is provided to A Safe Haven for Newborns.

From the funds in specific Appropriation 544, $400,000 in
nonrecurring funds from the @General Revenue Fund is provided to the
Division of Community Health Promotion Bureau of Chronic Disease for
grants to auditory-oral early intervention programs serving deaf
children in multiple counties including rural and underserved areas.
These early intervention programs must solely offer auditory-oral
educational habilitation and services, as defined in section 1002.391,
Florida Statutes, and have a supervisor and faculty members who are
credentialed as Certified Listening and Spoken Language Specialists.

547 SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - DEVELOPMENTAL EVALUATION
AND INTERVENTION SERVICES/PART C

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 547, $3,783,221 from the
General Revenue Fund is provided as the state match for Medicaid
reimbursable early intervention services in Specific Appropriation 1897.

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 547, at least 85 percent of
funds distributed to Local Early Steps providers must be spent on direct
client services.

VETERANS' AFFAIRS, DEPARTMENT OF
PROGRAM: SERVICES TO VETERANS’' PROGRAM
VETERANS' HOMES

579 FIXED CAPITAL OUTLAY
STATE NURSING HCME FOR VETERANS - DMS MGD

Funds in Specific Appropriation 5§79 are provided for the continued
construction of a seventh State Veterans’ Nursing Home in St. Lucie
County.

580 FIXED CAPITAL OUTLAY
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF STATE-OWNED
RESIDENTIAL FACILITIES FOR VETERANS

Funds in Specific Appropriation 580 are provided to support the
following maintenance and repair projects:

Lake City State Veterans’ HOME.........=- Y 250,000
Daytona Beach State Veterang® HOME. .. .... c.uuivnrancnrancas 200,000

25



HHS APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE - DRAFT PROVISO FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

Land o' Lakes State Veterans’ Home. .........ceveereenenennn- 450,000
Pembroke Pines State Veterans’ HOME.........ccu:veeuscoiannenn 130,000
Panama City State Veterans' Home........ e S 220,000
Port Charlotte State Veterans’ Home..... e ma i Ea e 490,000
St. Augustine State Veterans’ Home...... e mmh e Ed e 200, 000

VETERANS® BENEFITS AND ASSISTANCE

593A SPECIAL CATEGORIES
GRANTS AND AIDS - CONTRACTED SERVICES

From the funds in Specific Appropriation 593A, the nonrecurring sum of
$75,000 from the General Revenue Fund is provided for a Veterans
Adaptive Bowling Pilot Program.

From  the funds in Specific  Appropriation 593a, $125,000 in

nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund is provided to Disabled
Veterans Insurance Careers Inc., for career training and job placement.

26



Health and Human Services Implementing Bill Summaries

Budget Flexibility for Hospital Funding Programs

The Agency for Health Care Administration is authorized to submit a budget amendment to
realign funding based on the model, methodology, and framework in the “Medicaid Hospital
Funding Programs”.

Funding changes shall be consistent with the intent of the model, methodology, and framework
displayed, demonstrated, and explained in the “Medicaid Hospital Funding Programs”
document, while allowing for the appropriate realignment to appropriation categories related
to Medicaid Low-Income Pool, Disproportionate Share Hospital, Graduate Medical Education,
Inpatient Hospital and Outpatient Hospital programs, Prepaid Health Plans, and the diagnosis
related groups (DRG) methodology for hospital reimbursement, including requests for additional
trust fund budget authority.

If the chair or vice chair of the LBC or the President of the Senate or the Speaker of the House
timely advises the Executive Office of the Governor, in writing, that the budget amendment
exceeds the delegated authority of the Executive Office of the Governor or is contrary to
legislative policy or intent, the Executive Office of the Governor shall void the action.

This section expires July 1, 2017.

APD Wait List Prioritization

The Agency for Persons with Disabilities shall offer enrollment in the Medicaid home and
community-based waiver program in the following order of priority:
0 Individuals in category 1
0 Individuals in category 2
0 Individuals in categories 3 and 4 in an order based on the Agency for Persons with
Disabilities Waitlist Prioritization Tool.
0 Individuals in category 6 shall be moved to the waiver during the 2016-2017 fiscal year,
to the extent funds are available, based on meeting the following criteria:
= Theindividual is 30 years of age or older;
= The individual resides in the family home;
= The individual has been on the wait list for waiver services for at least 10
continuous years; and
= Theindividual is classified at a level of need equal to Level 3, Level 4, or Level 5
based on the Questionnaire for Situational Information.
The agency shall allow an individual who meets the eligibility requirements to receive home and
community-based services in this state if the individual’s parent or legal guardian is an active-
duty military servicemember and, at the time of the servicemember’s transfer to this state, the
individual was receiving home and community-based services in another state.
Upon the placement of individuals on the waiver, individuals remaining on the wait list are
deemed not to have been substantially affected by agency action and are, therefore, not
entitled to a hearing under s. 393.125, Florida Statutes, or an administrative proceeding under
chapter 120, Florida Statutes.
This section expires July 1, 2017.



APD Algorithm

e Provides that until the Agency for Persons with Disabilities adopts a new allocation
algorithm and methodology by final rule:

0 Each client’s iBudget in effect as of July 1, 2016, shall remain at its July 1, 2016,
funding level.

0 The Agency for Persons with Disabilities shall determine the iBudget for a client
newly enrolled on the home and community-based services waiver on or after July
1, 2016, using the same allocation algorithm and methodology used for the iBudgets
in effect as of July 1, 2016.

e After a new algorithm and methodology is adopted by final rule, a client’s new iBudget shall
be determined based on the new allocation algorithm and methodology and shall take
effect as of the client’s next support plan update.

e Funding allocated under subsections (1) and (2) may be increased pursuant to s.
393.0662(1)(b), Florida Statutes. A client’s funding allocation may also be increased if the
client has a significant need for transportation services to a waiver-funded adult day training
program or to a waiver-funded supported employment. However, such increases may not
result in the total of all clients’ projected annual iBudget expenditures exceeding the
agency’s appropriation for waiver services.

e This section expires July 1, 2017.

Nursing Home Transition to Home and Community Based Services Waivers

The Agency for Health Care Administration shall ensure that nursing facility residents who are
eligible for funds to transition to home and community-based services waivers must first have
resided in a skilled nursing facility for at least 60 consecutive days.

This section expires July 1, 2017.

Medicaid Long-term Managed Care Prioritization

The Agency for Health Care Administration and the Department of Elderly Affairs shall prioritize
individuals for enrollment in the Medicaid Long-Term Care Waiver program using a frailty-based
screening that provides a priority score and shall enroll individuals in the program according to
the assigned priority score as funds are available.

The agency may adopt rules and enter into interagency agreements necessary to administer
enrollment to eligible individuals. Such rules or interagency agreements adopted by the agency
relating to the scoring process may delegate to the Department of Elderly Affairs the
responsibility for implementing and administering the scoring process, providing notice of
Medicaid fair hearing rights, and the responsibility for defending, as needed, the scores assigned
to persons on the program wait list in any resulting Medicaid fair hearings.

The Department of Elderly Affairs may delegate the provision of notice of Medicaid fair hearing
rights to its contractors.

This section expires July 1, 2017.



Medicaid Managed Medical Assistance Realignment

The Agency for Health Care Administration, in consultation with the Department of Health, may
submit a budget amendment to realign funding within and between agencies based on
implementation of the Managed Medical Assistance component of the Statewide Medicaid
Managed Care program for the Children’s Medical Services program of the Department of
Health.

The realignment shall reflect the actual enroliment changes due to the transfer of beneficiaries
from fee-for-service to the capitated Children’s Medical Services Network. The Agency for
Health Care Administration may submit a request for nonoperating budget authority to transfer
the federal funds to the Department of Health.

This section expires July 1, 2017.

Prescription drug monitoring program.—

For the 2016-2017 fiscal year only, the department may use state funds appropriated in the FAA
to administer the prescription drug monitoring program.

Neither the Attorney General nor the department may use funds received as part of a
settlement agreement to administer the prescription drug monitoring program.

This subsection expires July 1, 2017

Medicaid Hospital Funding Programs

The calculations for the Medicaid Low-Income Pool, Disproportionate Share Hospital, and
hospital reimbursement programs for the 2016-2017 fiscal year contained in the document
titled "Medicaid Hospital Funding Programs," dated __ , 2016, and filed with the Secretary of
the Senate, are incorporated by reference for the purpose of displaying the calculations used by
the Legislature, consistent with the requirements of state law, in making appropriations for the
Medicaid Low-Income Pool, Disproportionate Share Hospital, and hospital reimbursement
programs.

This section expires July 1, 2017.

Personal Needs Allowance — State Veteran’s Nursing Homes

Provides that the provisions of s. 296.37(1), F.S., be waived for the 2016-2017 fiscal year to
increase the income disregard for the contribution of care from $35 to $105 per month for
residents of State Veterans' Nursing Homes. This will maintain parity in the amount of income
that all residents are allowed to keep for incidental expenses not covered by room and board.
This section expires July 1, 2017.



Medicaid Conforming Bill 2016-17

Identity Verification for Medicaid Fraud Prevention
S. 322.143, Fla. Stat.
e Allows for access to the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicle’s driver
license photo database, under a written agreement with the department, as a personal
identifier for verification of Medicaid eligibility to combat Medicaid fraud.

Rural Hospitals
s. 395.602(2)(e), Fla. Stat.
¢ Revises the definition of “rural hospital” to include sole community hospitals with up to
175 licensed beds.

Fair Hearings on Medicaid
s. 409.285, Fla. Stat.
¢ Requires that appeals related to Medicaid programs administered by AHCA must be
directed to AHCA.
¢ Requires that appeals related to Medicaid programs administered by APD must be
directed to APD.

Kidcare and Medicaid Eligibility for Lawfully Residing Immigrant Children
ss. 409.811, 409.814, 409.904, and 624.91, Fla. Stat.
e Eliminates the five-year waiting period for lawfully residing immigrant children to be
eligible for Kidcare and Medicaid. (Identical to provisions of SB 248.)

Limitation on Payments for ER Visits
s. 409.905(5), Fla. Stat.
¢ Repeals the current-law provision that limits payment for hospital ER visits for non-
pregnant Medicaid recipients 21 years of age or older to six visits per fiscal year.

Medicaid Temporary Housing Assistance
ss. 409.906(13)(e) and 409.968(5), Fla. Stat.
o Directs AHCA to seek federal approval to provide temporary housing assistance for
persons with severe mental illness and/or substance abuse disorders through the
Medicaid program.

Medicaid Eligibility for Phelan-McDermid Syndrome
s. 409.9063, Fla. Stat.
¢ Directs AHCA to seek federal approval to provide home and community based services
for individuals diagnosed with Phelan-McDermid Syndrome.

Overpayments to Medicaid Providers that Go Out-of-Business
s. 409.907(12), Fla. Stat.
e Authorizes AHCA to certify that a Medicaid provider has gone out of business and that
any overpayments made to the provider cannot be collected, in accordance with federal
law.



Charter Schools and Private Schools as Medicaid Providers
s. 409.9072, Fla. Stat.
¢ Provides that charter schools and private schools may become Medicaid providers in
order to provide the same school-based services for Medicaid-eligible children that public
school districts may provide under the certified school match program.

Rates for Medicaid Providers
s. 409.908(23), Fla. Stat.
¢ Revises the requirement for AHCA to set rates for certain providers at levels that ensure
no increase in statewide expenditures resulting from changes in unit costs, by no longer
including nursing homes, effective July 1, 2017.

Statewide Medicaid Residency Program
S. 409.909, Fla. Stat.
e Adds psychiatry to the current list of primary care specialties.

Disproportionate Share Hospital Program
ss. 409.911, 409.9113, 409.9115, and 409.9119 Fla. Stat.
¢ Directs AHCA to use the average of the 2007, 2008, and 2009 audited DSH data to
determine each hospital's Medicaid days and charity care for the 2016-17 fiscal year.
o Amends various DSH statutes to notwithstand the current calculations and methodologies
for the DSH programs in deference to the DSH distributions contained in the Senate’s LIP
model for 2016-17.

Managed Care Payments to Non-contracted Providers for Emergency Services
ss. 409.9128(5), 409.967(2)(b), 409.975(1), and 641.513(6)-(7), Fla. Stat.
e Brings Florida law into compliance with federal law regarding the amount a Medicaid
managed care plan must pay to a non-contracted provider for emergency services.
¢ Provides parameters for the amount a Florida Healthy Kids HMO must pay to a non-
contracted provider for emergency services.

Essential Providers
s. 409.975(1), Fla. Stat.
o Clarifies the definition of the term “essential provider” in MMA relating to requirements for
managed care plans to have essential providers in their networks.

Contracted Rates Between Hospitals and Managed Care Plans
s. 409.975(6), Fla. Stat.
¢ Deletes from statute provisions requiring MMA managed care plans to negotiate payment
rates with hospitals within a certain range under certain circumstances, unless AHCA
approves of rates higher than 120% of the Medicaid fee-for-service rate.

PACE
¢ Provides that the existing Program for All-inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE)
organization authorized for up to 150 PACE slots in Broward County under ch. 2012-33,
L.O.F., may also use those same slots for frail elders in Miami-Dade County, subject to
federal approval and a contract amendment with AHCA.
¢ Authorizes a new PACE project in Escambia County with up to 100 slots, subject to
federal approval.



Department of Health 2016 Conforming Bill

The bill amends s. 381.82, F.S., regarding the Ed and

Ethel Moore Alzheimer’s Disease Research Program

o Allows the Ed and Ethel Moore Alzheimer’s Disease
Research Program to carry forward unexpended
funds up to 5 years.

e This will enable scientists to conduct research

projects that span multiple fiscal years.



THE FLORIDA SENATE

APPEARANCE RECORD

l : { , (Deliver BOTH copies of this form to the Senator or Senate Professional Staff conducting the meeting)
Meéting Date Bill Number (if applicable)

Topic ﬂ | /7 D Amendment Barcode (if applicable)

Name /»(a-}/m Clintrr
Job Title 6/7 ﬁ//' F]D/’/J’d /QSS&CM% O7L W %V/a‘/m’

Addresss é@jo gS MS&%[[@ AI/A. Phone 32/' 573 4%5/

TrAusvilke 2 32700 EmailLlprida AHCP® QL7

City = State Zip
4
Speaking: [ ]|For [ ]Against Rlnformation Waive Speaking: [ _|In Support | |Against
(The Chair will read this information into the record.)

Representing _/— /OKM/Q ASSDZIMﬂﬂ 01£ M@fdéfs

Appearing at request of Chair: | | Yes IX.NO Lobbyist registered with Legislature: [ | Yes No

While it is a Senate tradition to encourage public testimony, time may not permit all persons wishing to speak to be heard at this
meeting. Those who do speak may be asked to limit their remarks so that as many persons as possible can be heard.

This form is part of the public record for this meeting. S-001 (10/14/14)



CourtSmart Tag Report

Room: SB 401 Case No.:
Caption: Senate Appropriations Subcommittee on Health and Human Services

Type:
Judge:

Started: 1/28/2016 10:06:20 AM

Ends: 1/28/2016 11:15:13 AM Length: 01:08:54
10:06:26 AM  Sen. Garcia (Chair)
10:06:54 AM  SB 1496
10:07:07 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:09:28 AM Am. 616578
10:09:35 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:10:06 AM  Am. 378426
10:10:18 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:10:57 AM  Am. 234188
10:11:23 AM  Am. 602790 (SA to Am. 234188)
10:11:34 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:11:52 AM  Sen. Sobel
10:12:01 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:12:39 AM  Sen. Sobel
10:12:48 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:13:07 AM  Sen. Sobel
10:13:21 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:13:31 AM  Sen. Garcia
10:13:45 AM  Am. 575020
10:13:51 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:14:44 AM  SB 1496 (cont.)
10:14:45 AM  Sen. Smith
10:14:59 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:16:14 AM  Sen. Smith
10:16:49 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:17:22 AM  Sen. Smith
10:18:31 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:19:26 AM  Sen. Smith
10:19:35 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:19:59 AM  Sen. Smith
10:20:25 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:21:40 AM  Sen. Grimsley
10:22:26 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:24:34 AM  Sen. Grimsley
10:25:07 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:25:47 AM  Sen. Grimsley
10:26:09 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:29:14 AM  Sen. Sobel
10:29:43 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:30:37 AM  Sen. Bean
10:31:40 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:32:32 AM  Sen. Sobel
10:33:02 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:34:07 AM  Sen. Sobel
10:34:40 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:34:45 AM  Sen. Sobel
10:34:52 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:35:19 AM  Sen. Garcia
10:35:45 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:36:23 AM  Sen. Sobel
10:36:33 AM  Sen. Bradley
10:36:36 AM  Sen. Sobel
10:36:39 AM  Sen. Bradley



10:36:53 AM
10:37:08 AM
10:38:23 AM
10:41:07 AM
10:44:35 AM

Sen. Garcia

Sen. Benacquisto

Sen. Bradley

Toni Large, Florida College of Emergency Physicians/Florida Othopedic Society

Richard Polangin, Government Affairs Director, Florida Alliance for Retired Veterans, League of Women

Veterans of Florida, waives in support

10:45:03 AM
10:46:59 AM
10:48:00 AM
10:49:35 AM
10:50:43 AM
10:51:40 AM
10:51:46 AM
10:54:49 AM
10:54:55 AM
10:55:20 AM
10:55:23 AM
10:59:22 AM
11:01:52 AM
11:03:30 AM
11:04:32 AM
11:06:08 AM
11:07:11 AM
11:07:43 AM
11:07:45 AM
11:08:06 AM
11:08:31 AM
11:08:36 AM
11:09:15 AM
11:09:30 AM
11:09:44 AM
11:10:28 AM
11:14:21 AM
11:15:12 AM
11:15:13 AM
11:15:13 AM
11:15:13 AM
11:15:13 AM
11:15:13 AM
11:15:13 AM
11:15:13 AM
11:15:13 AM
11:15:13 AM
11:15:13 AM
11:15:13 AM
11:15:13 AM
11:15:13 AM

Corrina Madrid, Chapter President, National Multiple Sclerosis Society, speaking in support
Bill Bell, General Counsel, Florida Hospital Association, speaking for information
Kathy Clinton, Chair, Florida Association of Homecare Providers

Sen. Grimsley

Sen. Smith

Sen. Abruzzo

Sen. Bradley

Sen. Sobel

Close on bill

Reported Fav/CS

TAB 2 - Review and Discussion of Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budget Issues Relating to:
Agency for Health Care Administration

Agency for Persons with Disabilities

Department of Children and Families

Department of Health

Department of Veterans' Affairs

Sen. Sobel

Sen. Garcia

Sen. Sobel

Sen. Garcia

Scarlet Pigott, Staff Director, Senate Appropriations Subcommittee on Health and Human Services
Sen. Sobel

Sen. Garcia

Sen. Smith

Sen. Garcia

K. Clinton

Sen. Garcia

Meeting Adjourned



	Intro
	Bill and Amendment List Report
	Expanded Agenda (Long)

	Tab 1
	S1496
	Request to Hear (SB 1496) - Senator Bradley.pdf
	Appearance Records (SB 1496).pdf
	AHS Bill Analysis 2/1/2016
	616578
	378426
	575020
	234188
	602790
	1496__


	Tab 2
	Comment
	Tab 2 - Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budget Issues.pdf
	Appearance Records (Tab 2).pdf

	Comment
	CourtSmart Tag Report.pdf





